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Portfolio Performance Summary
OPERATING
PARTNER
NPC
Quantum Murray
Morrison Williams
Peerless
Gemma
Brompton
Titan
Capital C
NP LP
Armstrong
Hargraft
BMI
Gusgo
IC Group
Rlogistics
S&E
Total Current Portfolio

Invested
Capital
$ 113,100
77,900
42,000
36,000
28,000
27,200
25,200
23,700
20,700
20,000
18,300
18,200
12,500
10,800
10,000
5,700
$ 489,300

Ownership Date of Initial
Interest
Investment
80%
64%
80%
90%
80%
42%
92%
67%
100%
80%
100%
78%
80%
80%
36%
80%

Oct. 2004
Mar. 2006
Aug. 2005
Jun. 2006
Mar. 2005
Aug. 2005
Sep. 2006
Aug. 2005
Aug. 2005
Oct. 2006
Apr. 2006
Apr. 2007
Oct. 2006
Jul. 2006
May 2006
Oct. 2004

2009
Adjusted
EBITDA

2009
Cash
Yield

Cash Yield
Since
Inception

$ 19,478
5,566
4,482
6,633
3,786
1,225
1,324
5,707
1,528
1,175
(1,270)
893
1,877
2,685
1,105
314
$ 56,507

14.0%
1.4%
10.7%
17.7%
12.6%
0.0%
1.6%
21.0%
7.1%
5.5%
(6.6%)
5.5%
17.4%
27.1%
11.1%
4.9%
9.3%

16.5%
12.4%
19.2%
15.2%
19.2%
11.1%
7.3%
23.6%
23.5%
9.3%
7.7%
13.3%
20.4%
25.1%
13.6%
10.8%
15.8%

2009 Financial Summary
($000s) Year ended December 31
FINANCIAL highlights
Revenue
Gross profit
Adjusted EBITDA after corporate costs
Maintenance capital expenditures
Cash interest expense
Distributable cash from continuing operations
FINANCIAL POSITION
Total assets
Revolving facility and term debt
Convertible debt
Unitholders’ equity

2009

2008

2007

$ 584,873
146,388
43,704
2,073
37,008

$ 652,719
169,547
66,010
5,625
32,621

$ 512,667
145,341
70,704
4,390
27,950

(952)

26,009

39,519

$ 479,324
160,588
156,136
21,019

$ 619,042
237,400
152,683
55,602

$ 813,893
252,389
149,530
366,830

2009
Financial
Highlights:
•

2010
Objectives:

Earned 9.3% cash yield on $489 million of
invested capital in current portfolio.

•

Stabilize the Fund’s balance sheet and long term
capital structure by reducing and restructuring
existing debt.

•

Complete the Fund’s conversion to a corporation
to reduce the cost of capital.

•

Earned $43.7 million of adjusted EBITDA.

•

Sold investment in ESR for total proceeds of
$74.6 million.

•

Increase focus on reducing operating costs and
streamlining operations at investee businesses.

•

Repaid $27.4 million of Revolving Credit Facility
and $59.5 million of Term Debt.

•

Strengthen the leadership at investee businesses
by adding seasoned industry leaders to boards.

•

In default of Senior Credit Agreement, and entered
Forbearance Agreement with Senior Lenders and
agreed to repay all debt by July 21, 2010.

•

Assess portfolio at end of Forbearance period and
review options to maximize value.

•

Restricted from paying interest on unsecured
subordinated convertible debentures.

•

Negotiating to restructure unsecured
subordinated convertible debentures.
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Dear Unitholders

We were pleased with the Elliott Special Risks transaction which
closed in early October 2009 and allowed us to make a very good
start on our repayment program. As we look to sell additional assets
in a business environment where our need to sell is well known, we
are taking a very strategic approach to these transactions where we
balance the short term need to convert assets into cash in
compliance with the Forbearance Agreement, with the long term
need to preserve the growth potential of the portfolio.

Newport Partners Income Fund started an important process of
transformation last year and I want to take this opportunity to report
on the progress that we have made and to set down our
expectations and goals for 2010.
Last year, we set four objectives for the new management team:
stabilize the balance sheet, review the merits of conversion to a
corporation, improve the operating performance of the businesses
in the Fund’s portfolio, and strengthen the boards of our businesses
with industry leaders.

The second important component of stabilizing our balance sheet is
restructuring the $165 million of convertible debentures that are
outstanding. Being in breach of covenants on our senior credit
facility earlier in the year, and later signing the Forbearance
Agreement, triggered restrictions on the Fund’s ability to pay
interest on the convertible debentures during 2009. We have been
holding discussions with principal holders of the convertible
debentures as we look to a solution for this obligation.

The most pressing of these objectives was to bring stability to our
balance sheet and to put in place a sustainable long term capital
structure. Step one in this process was to reduce and restructure
our existing debt. As you know, at the beginning of 2009, we were
in breach of several covenants on our senior credit facility. For
almost six months we were engaged in intensive negotiations with
our senior lenders with a view to reaching an agreement which
would satisfy all of our financial stakeholders. These were very
challenging negotiations, but in the end we were able to preserve
value for the unitholders by convincing the senior lenders not to
exercise the default related remedies available to them under the
terms of the senior credit facility. This was a significant achievement
that was only made possible because of the good faith that
prevailed throughout these discussions.

Dean T. MacDonald
President and CEO,
Newport Partners
Income Fund

The negotiated outcome was a Forbearance Agreement in which
the senior lenders agreed to allow the Fund one year to repay its
senior indebtedness in full by July 21, 2010. At the time, the
principal owed to the senior lenders amounted to $242 million and
the Forbearance Agreement established a series of repayment
milestones that would signal our commitment and capacity to
eliminate this debt. The Fund agreed to make these repayments
through a combination of proceeds from asset sales, cash on hand
and debt re-financings at our investee businesses. To date we have
paid $118.6 million, most of which has been applied against the
principal balance owing. $70.1 million was paid from the proceeds
of the sale of Elliott Special Risks, with the balance paid from cash
on hand. All of the repayment milestones have been met which now
gives the Fund the time to proceed in a more orderly fashion to
repay the remaining balance of $132.5 million at the end of the
Forbearance period.
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response to the economic slump in late 2008. We are now seeing
some improvement in demand, and we are helping the group
access new opportunities and lever each others’ strengths. With the
potential of a more robust domestic economy, we believe we can
provide even greater assistance to our investee businesses in 2010
than we did in 2009, and we look forward to having more time to
do so once we have completed our refinancing.

Our second objective was to look into the merits of converting the
Fund into to a corporation. Our initial review concluded that this was
a lower priority for us in 2009. This conclusion was supported by
our estimate, which proved to be correct, that the Fund would not
have taxable income in 2009. However, we do expect that we will
seek unitholder approval to convert to a corporation later this year.
Our third objective was to improve the operating performance of
the businesses in the portfolio. This proved to be a formidable
undertaking in 2009 as few sectors of the global economy escaped
the impact of the sudden and steep economic downturn. Our first
half results definitely reflected the hangover from the unprecedented
financial and credit markets collapse in late 2008, our third quarter
was improved, perhaps more with seasonal contribution, and our
fourth quarter was mixed, but overall slightly down from 2008.
For the full year, the Fund reported $584.9 million in revenue
representing a 10% decrease from the previous year, and a 14%
decrease in gross margin to $146.4 million. EBITDA, adjusted for
write downs, was $43.7 million in 2009 compared to $66 million in
2008, a decrease of 34%. Each operating segment reported lower
results for the full year than in 2008.

I will admit that we were not successful in 2009 at our objective
of adding seasoned industry leaders to the boards of our investee
businesses. This is difficult to achieve when we are unsure which
businesses we will retain, however, some solid groundwork has
been laid in this regard, and we feel we will have more to report on
this in 2010, especially after our balance sheet is stabilized.
Our goals for 2010 are a continuation of those we set for 2009. We
need to stay focused. We need to stay disciplined. We’ve made
progress, but need to finish the job of stabilizing our balance sheet.
Once we get back to a position of strength, where our capital
structure is an asset rather than a liability, we can begin to look to
deliver the returns expected by our stakeholders.
We did add one goal this year. We want to conclude on what the
Fund will look like going forward, what we want as investments in
our portfolio. You will note that this is goal five as we know very
well that the starting point in achieving this goal is successful
forbearance period exit and convertible debenture restructuring.

Despite the weakness in these overall results, we are pleased with
the progress made at NPC, our investment in the Western Canadian
oil and gas services industry. This is our largest investment, both in
terms of invested capital and contribution to EBITDA. As such, it has
merited the most attention by management of the Fund. A new
leadership team has been put in place at NPC, the operations are
being re-aligned with cost savings, and significant progress has
been made in reducing costs in the conventional gas maintenance
service businesses where business volumes are well below historic
levels. Good progress has also been made at Titan and the
demolition division of Quantum Murray to re-align costs. While both
of these businesses are being impacted by weak economic
conditions, we believe they are well placed to respond to any
uptick in demand.

This year of transformation for the Fund has been a very
challenging year. It has tested us, and has been difficult for our
employees, our operating partners, and our capital providers. I
would like to express my sincere appreciation to all stakeholders
for their support, efforts and commitment throughout 2009. I look
forward to providing you a much improved report card next year.
With thanks.

More recently we have been working closely with the managers of
our various investments in the specialty marketing services industry.
We recognize that in 2009, the clients of these businesses were
very cautious with their discretionary spending. This is a natural

Newport Partners Income Fund
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Current Portfolio Snapshot by Segment
Financial Services

Marketing

• Two insurance businesses – Hargraft and BMI – specializing
in the transportation and construction sectors.

• Technology is changing the marketing industry as major
marketers shift more of their budgets away from mass
activities like advertising to targeted, direct-to-consumer
applications.

• Investments with long histories of growth and profitability,
specialized ‘niche’ expertise, relatively high margins, low requirements for capital expenditures and high variable cost structures.

• This plays directly into the capabilities of our five marketing
businesses, Gemma, Capital C, S&E, IC Group and Armstrong
which have well-established positions in their respective areas.

• Three asset management businesses – Morrison Williams,
NP LP, Brompton – highly respected franchises in institutional,
high net worth and retail markets, respectively, with total
$5.6 billion of assets under management.
• Canada’s aging population favours savings and investment trend.
• Transfer of wealth creates demand for these services.

Gusgo
T r a n s p o r t

Other
• Four businesses with diverse characteristics compose the
Fund’s Other Segment.

Industrial Services

• The largest, Peerless, is the dominant supplier of military gear
for the federal government.

• Our two largest investments, NPC and Quantum Murray,
provide ‘essential services’ in the energy sector and
infrastructure development.

• Titan is the largest independent distributor of wear parts and
ground engaging tool products in Alberta.

• NPC participates in the growth and development of the oil
sands and traditional oil and gas sectors.

• Gusgo, a provider of intermodal freight services, and container
storage services.

• Quantum Murray benefits from growth in infrastructure
development, urban densification and the trend toward
tougher environmental standards at all levels of government.

• Rlogistics is a re-seller of closeout, discount and refurbished
consumer electronics and household goods with more than 13
retail outlets in Ontario carrying over 6,000 different products.

Newport Partners Income Fund
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
March 8, 2010
The following is management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the consolidated results of operations, financial position and cash flows of
Newport Partners Income Fund (the “Fund”) for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the
Fund’s audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the notes thereto.
All amounts in this MD&A are in Canadian dollars. The accompanying audited consolidated financial statements of the Fund have been prepared by
and are the responsibility of management. The contents of this MD&A have been approved by the Board of Trustees of the Fund, on the
recommendation of its Audit Committee. This MD&A is dated March 8, 2010 and is current to that date unless otherwise indicated.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). This MD&A makes
reference to certain Non-GAAP Measures and contains Forward-Looking Information. Non-GAAP Measures do not have any standard meaning
prescribed by GAAP and are therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. See Non-GAAP Measures and
Forward-Looking Information.
Capitalized terms are defined terms, their meaning is explained in the “Definitions” section located on page 55, and references to "we", "us",
"our" or similar terms, refer to Newport Partners Income Fund, unless the context otherwise requires.
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Forward-Looking Information
This MD&A contains certain forward-looking information. Certain information included in this MD&A may constitute forward-looking information within the meaning of securities laws. In some cases,
forward-looking information can be identified by terminology such as “may”, “will”, “should”, “expect”, “plan”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “estimate”, “predict”, “potential”, “continue” or the negative
of these terms or other similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical facts. Forward-looking information may relate to management’s future outlook and anticipated events or results and
may include statements or information regarding the future plans or prospects of the Fund or the Operating Partnerships and reflects management’s expectations and assumptions regarding the growth,
results of operations, performance and business prospects and opportunities of the Fund and the Operating Partnerships. Without limitation, information regarding the future operating results and
economic performance of the Fund and the Operating Partnerships constitute forward-looking information. Such forward-looking information reflects management’s current beliefs and is based on
information currently available to management of the Fund and the Operating Partnerships. Forward-looking information involves significant risks and uncertainties. A number of factors could cause actual
events or results to differ materially from the events and results discussed in the forward-looking information including risks related to investments, conditions of capital markets, economic conditions,
taxation of income trusts, dependence on key personnel, limited customer bases, interest rates, regulatory change, compliance with the terms of the Amended Forbearance Agreement with the senior
lenders, ability to meet working capital requirements and capital expenditures needs of the Operating Partners, factors relating to the weather and availability of labour. These factors should not be
considered exhaustive. In addition, in evaluating this information, investors should specifically consider various factors, including the risks outlined under “Risk Factors”, which may cause actual events or
results to differ materially from any forward-looking statement. In formulating forward-looking information herein, management has assumed that business and economic conditions affecting the Fund and
the Operating Partnerships will continue substantially in the ordinary course, including without limitation with respect to general levels of economic activity, regulations, taxes and interest rates. Although
the forward-looking information is based on what management of the Fund and the Operating Partnerships consider to be reasonable assumptions based on information currently available to it, there can
be no assurance that actual events or results will be consistent with this forward-looking information, and management’s assumptions may prove to be incorrect. This forward-looking information is made
as of the date of this MD&A, and the Fund does not assume any obligation to update or revise it to reflect new events or circumstances except as required by law. Undue reliance should not be placed on
forward-looking information. The Fund is providing the forward-looking financial information set out in this MD&A for the purpose of providing investors with some context for the “2010 Outlook”
presented. Readers are cautioned that this information may not be appropriate for any other purpose.

Non-GAAP Measures
The terms “adjusted EBITDA”, “LTM cash yield from the portfolio”, ‘‘distributable cash’’, ‘‘EBITDA’’, ‘‘invested capital’’, (collectively the ‘‘Non-GAAP Measures’’) are financial measures used in this MD&A
that are not standard measures under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (‘‘GAAP’’). NPF’s method of calculating Non-GAAP Measures may differ from the methods used by other issuers.
Therefore, NPF’s Non-GAAP Measures, as presented may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers.
Adjusted EBITDA refers to EBITDA excluding the gain or loss on reduction of ownership interest (dilution gains or losses), the write-down of goodwill and intangibles and the impairment of long-term
investments. The Fund has used Adjusted EBITDA as the basis for the analysis of its past operating financial performance. Adjusted EBITDA is used by the Fund and management believes it is a useful
supplemental measure from which to determine the Fund’s ability to generate cash available for debt service, working capital, capital expenditures, income taxes and distributions. Adjusted EBITDA is a
measure that management believes facilitates the comparability of the results of historical periods and the analysis of its operating financial performance which may be useful to investors.
LTM Cash yield from the portfolio refers to the Fund’s cash on cash return for the last 12 months from an Operating Partnership based on free cash flow paid to the Fund as a percentage of weighted
invested capital. Management believes that overall yield is a useful supplemental measure for investors to assess the quality of the investments in the Fund’s portfolio and management’s ability to invest in
successful businesses at reasonable prices. Management uses this measure to monitor the performance of its investment strategy.
Distributable cash is not a standard measure under GAAP and is generally used by Canadian income funds as an indicator of financial performance. The Fund’s method of calculating distributable cash
may differ from similar computations as reported by other similar entities and, accordingly, may not be comparable to distributable cash as reported by such entities. The Fund suspended distributions paid
to its unitholders in October 2008. Under the Amended Forbearance Agreement, the Fund is prohibited from making distributions to unitholders and the Fund is retaining cash to meet working capital
requirements, capital expenditures needs of the Operating Partners and to repay debt. Management believes it is, therefore, a useful financial measure as an indication of the Fund’s ability to generate
cash and use such cash to repay debt and fund operations. Distributable cash generated by an Operating Partnership is also used by management in the calculation of yield which it uses to monitor the
performance of the Fund’s Operating Partnerships.
EBITDA refers to net earnings determined in accordance with GAAP, before depreciation and amortization, net of gain or loss on disposal of capital assets, interest expense and income tax expense.
EBITDA is used by management and the Trustees as well as many investors to determine the ability of an issuer to generate cash from operations. Management also uses EBITDA to monitor the
performance of the Fund’s reportable segments and believes that in addition to net income or loss and cash provided by operating activities, EBITDA is a useful supplemental measure from which to
determine the Fund’s ability to generate cash available for debt service, working capital, capital expenditures, income taxes and distributions. The Fund has provided a reconciliation of income to EBITDA in
its MD&A.
Invested capital refers to the cost to acquire an equity interest in an Operating Partnership and excludes transaction costs and any working capital provided to such Operating Partnership. Management
uses this measure to monitor the performance of its investment strategy and as an input to the calculation of its targeted overall yield for an Operating Partnership. Management believes that invested
capital is a useful supplemental measure that provides investors with useful information about the capital that the Fund deploys for each Operating Partnership which can subsequently be used to
determine the performance of each Operating Partnership.
Investors are cautioned that the Non-GAAP Measures are not alternatives to measures under GAAP and should not, on their own, be construed as an indicator of performance or cash flows, a measure of
liquidity or as a measure of actual return on the Units. These Non-GAAP Measures should only be used in conjunction with the financial statements included in the MD&A and the Fund’s annual audited
financial statements available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com or at www.newportpartnersincomefund.ca.

Newport Partners Income Fund
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VISION, CORE BUSINESS AND STRATEGY
VISION

AND

CORE BUSINESS

Investing in private businesses has the potential to deliver superior returns. However, the considerable challenges
of finding and financing private investments prevent many investors from participating. These businesses are
generally hard to access as standalone investments, have few external shareholders, require large minimum
investment amounts and are generally illiquid. It is also time-consuming and costly to conduct proper due
diligence.
The Fund was set up to provide investors with a simple ‘turnkey’ way to participate in the profits and growth of
successful Canadian private businesses through a professionally managed, well-diversified and publicly-traded
portfolio.

STRATEGY
The Fund’s business and investment strategy is based on:
x

Addressing and solving the Fund’s balance sheet issues including reducing debt levels and restructuring
convertible debentures.

x

Stabilizing the Fund and providing operational support to facilitate the growth and performance of the
businesses.

x

Investing in well established businesses with leading or niche positions in their respective industries,
histories of profitability, growth plans and talented management teams.

x

Providing capital and strategic financial advice to the businesses.

x

Investing for long-term returns.

Newport Partners Income Fund
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KEY OBJECTIVES, KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
KEY OBJECTIVES
x

Stabilize the Fund’s balance sheet and long term capital structure by reducing senior debt and
restructuring existing convertible debt.

x

Focus on reducing operating costs and streamlining operations at investee businesses.

x

Strengthen the leadership at investee businesses by providing hands-on operational support and, over
time, adding seasoned industry leaders to boards.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

AND

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Some of the Fund’s key performance indicators and financial highlights as at December 31, 2009, are set out below:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
2009

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations
Distributable cash from continuing operations

$
1

$

2008

2007

43,704

$

66,010

$

70,704

(952)

$

26,009

$

39,519

AS AT DECEMBER 31

KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2009

Total assets

$

Revolving credit facilities

$

2008

2007

479,324

$

619,042

$

949,236

10,089

$

27,400

$

47,527

Senior long-term debt

$

150,499

$

210,000

$

210,000

Convertible debt

$

156,136

$

152,683

$

149,530

Non-controlling interest
Unitholders’ equity

$

-

$

15,649

$

107,466

21,019

$

39,953

$

259,364

1 The Fund ceased to pay distributions after October 15, 2008. The Amended Forbearance Agreement prohibits distributions and the Fund is
retaining distributable cash in order to meet working capital requirements and capital expenditure needs of the Operating Partners and to repay
debt.

Newport Partners Income Fund
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CAPABILITY TO DELIVER RESULTS
LIQUIDITY

AND

CAPITAL RESOURCES

FINANCING
The Fund, through Newport Finance Corp., a subsidiary of the Fund, has a Senior Credit Agreement with a
syndicate of lenders (”the Lenders”). Since December 31, 2008, the Fund has not been in compliance with certain
covenants under the Senior Credit Agreement. On April 1, 2009 and April 29, 2009, the Fund received from the
Lenders notices confirming the events of default, advising that no future advances would be available to the Fund
from any of the commitments under the Senior Credit Agreement, other than at the sole discretion of the Lenders,
and that no other debt could be incurred by the Fund. In addition, the Lenders provided notice to the Fund that it
would be charged default interest at 3% per annum for the period from January 31, 2009.
At the beginning of 2009, management of the Fund began discussions with the Lenders with a view to reaching an
agreement on the events of default. On July 21, 2009 the Fund announced that a Forbearance Agreement had
been entered into with the Lenders. Under the terms of the Forbearance Agreement, the Lenders have agreed to
forbear from exercising their default-related rights and remedies under the Senior Credit Agreement for a period
of up to 365 days, which period may be reduced upon the occurrence of certain new defaults (the "Forbearance
Period").
The Fund agreed to repay the Lenders in full by the end of the Forbearance Period, by realizing minimum net
proceeds on disposals of assets and from the proceeds of re-financings of the investee businesses of the Fund by
certain agreed-upon dates. The minimum debt repayment targets and agreed upon dates were $70 million by
November 10, 2009 and $55 million by January 7, 2010 with the balance to be repaid by July 21, 2010. The Fund is
also subject to a minimum EBITDA covenant and to a maximum capital expenditures covenant during the
Forbearance Period beginning with the period ended January 2010.
Assuming that the Fund is in compliance with the Forbearance Agreement, the Lenders have also agreed that no
default interest will accrue or be payable during the Forbearance Period and have agreed to waive certain
prepayment fees which would otherwise continue to apply. Default interest up until the beginning of the
Forbearance Period in the amount of $3.5 million is to be paid in part from the proceeds of asset sales with the
balance payable at the end of the Forbearance Period.
A forbearance fee is to be paid to the Lenders, in part from asset sales with the balance payable at the end of the
Forbearance Period. The fee is initially 75 basis points of the principal amount outstanding under the Senior Credit
Agreement, but could be reduced to 25 basis points upon certain repayment targets being achieved. The minimum
fee that can now be charged is 50 basis points but only if full repayment is made within 300 days of July 21, 2009.
A maximum fee of $1.9 million has been recorded for the year ended December 31, 2009.
On October 1, 2009, the Fund sold its investment in Elliott Special Risks LP for $74.6 million, and the Fund used
$70.1 million to repay the Lenders, satisfying in advance the first milestone of the Forbearance Agreement.
On November 25, 2009, the Fund announced that an amendment to the Forbearance Agreement had been entered
into with the Lenders (the “First Amendment”). Under the terms of the First Amendment, the requirement to
repay $55 million by January 7, 2010 by way of proceeds from the asset sales was amended. The Lenders agreed to
allow for repayments by using cash on hand and proceeds from asset sales. $30 million was repaid on November
25, 2009 from cash on hand and the next repayment was scheduled for February 28, 2010 in the amount of $35
million with the balance to be repaid by July 21, 2010. As part of the First Amendment, the Lenders consented to
NPH acquiring all of the issued and outstanding equity interests of Gemma that it did not currently own.
On February 19, 2010 the Fund announced a second amendment to the Forbearance Agreement (the “Second
Amendment”). Under the terms of the Second Amendment, the requirement to repay $35 million by February 28,
2010 was amended to a requirement to repay $18.5 million. The Fund paid $20 million on February 18, 2010 from
cash on hand which amount included a $1.5 million rescheduling fee.
In conjunction with the signing of the Forbearance Agreement, NPH, a subsidiary of the Fund, has arranged for a
$20 million subordinated financing facility from an affiliate in order to provide sufficient working capital. The
facility bears interest at 10% per annum and repayments of principal and interest can be made after full repayment
of amounts owing under the Senior Credit Agreement.
As a consequence of the continuing events of default under the Senior Credit Agreement, the Fund was
contractually prohibited under the Collateral Covenants Agreement with the Lenders from remitting the June 30,
2009 interest payment on the Unsecured Subordinated Convertible Debentures (the “Debentures”) and as of July
15, 2009, the failure to make the interest payment constituted an event of default under the terms of the Trust
Indenture governing the Debentures. The Forbearance Agreement does not permit the Fund to make further
interest payments during the Forbearance Period.
Newport Partners Income Fund
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Under the terms of the Trust Indenture, the debenture trustee can provide notice to the Fund to declare all
principal and interest to become due and payable as a result of the default. The Fund has been in discussions with
principal holders of the Debentures with a view to reaching an agreement to restructure the Debentures.
DEBT BALANCES OWING
Amounts drawn as at December 31, 2009 under the Senior Credit Agreement consist of $150.5 million of term debt.
The term debt of $150.5 million is classified as a current liability. Subsequent to the amount paid on February 18,
2010, $132.5 million was outstanding on this facility.
Amounts drawn on the subordinated financing facility as at December 31, 2009 were $10.1 million. Interest
expense on this facility has been recorded and is payable at the expiry of the Forbearance Period.
Amounts outstanding at December 31, 2009 on the Fund’s two series of unsecured subordinated convertible
debentures were $156.1 million, which is classified as a current liability in the Fund’s consolidated financial
statements. This amount is net of unamortized issue costs and amounts categorized as the equity component of
the convertible debentures. The principal amount outstanding in total is $164.4 million.
Given the uncertainty surrounding the ability of the Fund to satisfy the terms of the Forbearance Agreement and
to restructure the unsecured subordinated convertible debentures, the Fund’s consolidated financial statements
include going concern disclosure.
SATISFYING THE FORBEARANCE AGREEMENT
Management of the Fund is focused on executing against the terms of the Forbearance Agreement. Subsequent to
the payment of $20 million on February 18, 2010 the Fund is obligated to repay to the Lenders by July 21, 2010
$132.5 million plus an approximate $4 million of default interest and forbearance fees, as well as any swap
breakage fees for which the Fund may be responsible. Management is actively engaged in discussions with
potential buyers on several files with a view to satisfying the majority of the remaining obligation through asset
sales. To satisfy the final amounts owing, the Fund expects to arrange, in conjunction with the management of
certain Operating Partnerships, senior secured credit facilities for these investments. These facilities, when
arranged, will allow the repayment of working capital advances to the Fund, and the final payment of amounts
owing to the Lenders.
Management of the Fund believes that, with cash distributions it receives from its investments, it should have
sufficient cash resources to fund its corporate expenses, interest expense on senior debt, net working capital needs
and capital expenditure needs of its investments during the Forbearance Period.
OPERATING CASH FLOW AND WORKING CAPITAL
Cash provided by operations was $58.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to $55.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2008. As a result of the reclassification of $150.5 million of term debt and the
reclassification of convertible debentures of $156.1, the Fund had a working capital deficiency of approximately
$(212.3) million at December 31, 2009, compared to $(118.3) million at December 31, 2008.
Under the terms of the Forbearance Agreement, the Fund is not permitted to make distribution payments. The
Fund will retain cash distributions to meet working capital requirements and capital expenditure needs of the
Operating Partners and repay debt.
Financing will be provided from cash from operations, the $20 million subordinated financing facility and from
portfolio sales, net of debt repayment and related expenses.
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
The portfolio incurred total capital expenditures (capital lease payments and capital expenditures) of $14.2 million
in the year ended December 31, 2009 compared with $13.4 million in the prior year primarily to support contracts
at NPC. The industrial services segment accounted for 89.1% of the Fund’s total capital expenditures for the year
ended December 31, 2009 (2008 – 85.3%). Restrictions and limits on capital expenditure have been put in place by
the Fund.
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OTHER FACTORS IMPORTANT TO UNDERSTANDING OUR RESULTS
SIMPLIFIED STRUCTURE – NEWPORT PARTNERS INCOME FUND

AND

NPY

The Fund is an unincorporated, open-ended, limited purpose trust, which was created to hold an indirect interest in
NPY. NPY is a limited partnership formed to invest in securities of private businesses. Management at the Fund and
Operating Partnerships, principals and employees of NP LP, Trustees of the Fund, and founding investors of NPY
own approximately 50.9 % of the 71,631,431 Units outstanding as at December 31, 2009.

NEWPORT PARTNERS INCOME FUND
Commencement of Operation: August 8, 2005
Owns 100% of A1 LP units of NPY
NEWPORT PRIVATE YIELD LP (NPY)
(A1 units)
Date of Formation: February 27, 2004

Financial Services
Segment

Marketing
Segment

Industrial Services
Segment

Other Segment

Morrison Williams

S&E

NPC

Rlogistics

NP LP

Gemma

Quantum Murray

Peerless

Hargraft

Capital C

Titan

BMI

IC Group

Gusgo

Brompton

Armstrong

Corporate
Segment

In accordance with CICA guidelines, the Fund groups Operating Partnerships that have generally similar business
characteristics into business segments.

UNITS

OUTSTANDING AS AT

D E C E M B E R 31, 2009

Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement between CT and NPY, 25,090,701 NPY LP Units were exchanged for Trust
units of the Fund during the year ended December 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2009, all NPY LP units were
exchanged and there were no remaining NPY LP units outstanding. Trust units of the Fund outstanding as at
December 31, 2009 and as at February 28, 2010 were 71,631,431.
On January 20, 2009, the Fund received approval from the TSX for a Normal Course Issuer Bid (“NCIB”) to purchase
for cancellation through the facilities of the TSX, up to 2,327,194 units through to January 22, 2010, representing
5% of its then-issued and outstanding units. No units were purchased for cancellation under the NCIB.
The unitholders of the Fund approved an Incentive Option Plan (the "Plan") on November 30, 2009. Pursuant to
the Plan 7,100,590 units of the Fund have been listed and reserved for issuance upon the exercise of the stock
options granted. On January 13, 2010, 7,000,000 options were granted to employees and directors at an exercise
price of $0.403 per unit with options vesting in 2010 through to 2013.

Newport Partners Income Fund

11

Annual Report 2009

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND

ESTIMATES

The Fund prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of the financial
statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses for the period of the consolidated financial statements. Significant accounting policies
and methods used in the preparation of the financial statements are described in note 1 in the 2009 audited
annual consolidated financial statements, as well as in “Accounting Policies –Accounting Standards Adopted by the
Fund in 2009” discussed below. The Fund and the Operating Partnerships evaluate their estimates and assumptions
on a regular basis, based on historical experience and other relevant factors. Included in the consolidated financial
statements are estimates used in determining allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory valuation, the useful lives
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, revenue recognition and other matters. Actual results
could differ materially from those estimates and assumptions.
The assessment of goodwill and intangible assets for impairment requires the use of judgements, assumptions and
estimates. Due to the material nature of these factors, they are discussed here in greater detail.

GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE

ASSETS

Goodwill is the residual amount that results when the purchase price of an acquired business exceeds the sum of
the amounts allocated to the assets acquired, fewer liabilities assumed, based on their fair values. When the Fund
enters into a business combination, the purchase method of accounting is used. Goodwill is assigned as of the date
of the business combination to reporting units that are expected to benefit from the business combination.
Goodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The book value of goodwill was $68.9 million at
December 31, 2009 (2008 - $70.6 million).
Intangible assets acquired individually or as part of a group of other assets are recognized and measured at cost.
Intangible assets acquired in a transaction, including those acquired in business combinations, are recorded at their
fair value. Intangible assets with determinable useful lives, such as customer relationships and contracts, and
management contracts, are amortized over their useful lives and are tested for impairment when there is an
indicator of impairment. Intangible assets having an indefinite life, such as brands, are not amortized but instead
are tested for impairment on an annual or more frequent basis by comparing their fair value with book value. The
net book value of intangible assets was $102.0 million at December 31, 2009 (2008 - $169.0 million).

GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE WRITE-DOWNS

During the third and fourth quarters of 2009, the Fund reviewed the carrying value of all of its investments. The
original investment carrying value is based upon the consideration paid by the Fund for each investment. The
consideration paid is typically based on a multiple of earnings of the business being acquired. Further, this
consideration is allocated to the tangible and intangible assets of the business acquired based on estimates of fair
value at the time of acquisition, with any excess being allocated to goodwill. The Fund determined that the fair
value of certain investments was lower than the carrying value. As a result, the Fund recorded a goodwill
impairment charge of $3.6 million. In assessing whether there was an impairment, the Fund estimated the fair
value of its investments using certain assumptions and estimates of earnings. These assumptions may differ or
change quickly depending on economic conditions or other events. Therefore, it is possible that future changes in
assumptions may negatively impact future valuations of its investments and goodwill which would result in further
impairment of goodwill.
At the time of the initial public offering of the Fund, net proceeds raised were indirectly invested into NPY giving
the Fund an initial indirect ownership of 35% of NPY. The Fund’s ownership interest has increased to 100% as at
December 31, 2009 through both an additional indirect investment in June 2006, following a public issue of units
of the Fund, and also through the exchange by unitholders of units of NPY into units of the Fund. The 2009 unit
exchanges resulted in goodwill of $3.6 million at the Fund level. The Fund has determined that the goodwill
created on these exchanges is impaired and therefore it has been written off.
During the review of its carrying value of its investments, the Fund also performed an impairment test of its
intangible assets, whereby the carrying amount of intangible assets was compared to the discounted future cash
flows expected from their use. Impairment tests involve a significant degree of judgement, as expectations
concerning future cash flows and the selection of an appropriate discount rate are subject to considerable risks and
uncertainties. The Fund concluded that an impairment had occurred and, consequently, the Fund reduced the
carrying value of intangible assets by $23.5 million with respect to customer relationships and $12.4 million with
respect to brands.
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Write-downs of goodwill, customer relationships and brands recorded by the Fund during the year ended
December 31, 2009 were as follows:
CUSTOMER
INVESTMENT

S&E
NPC
Quantum Murray
Hargraft
Titan
Gusgo
BMI

GOODWILL

RELATIONSHIPS

BRANDS

TOTAL

$

371
132
3,086
-

$

903
11,163
7,729
3,655
-

$

6,278
1,067
833
3,552
347
290

$

1,274
17,573
1,067
11,648
7,207
347
290

$

3,589
3,567

$

23,419
-

$ 12,398
-

$

39,406
3,567

$

7,156

$

23,419

$ 12,398

$

42,973

NPY

Write-downs of goodwill, customer relationships and brands recorded by the Fund during the year ended
December 31, 2008 was as follows:
CUSTOMER
INVESTMENT

NP LP
S&E
NPC
Morrison Williams
Quantum Murray
Hargraft
Titan
Armstrong
BMI

GOODWILL

RELATIONSHIPS

BRANDS

TOTAL

$

37,338
12,376
14,461
4,158
7,203
6,375
-

$

6,700
1,051
5,065
7,836
10,360
2,440
1,533
5,077
4,859

$ 2,952
7,842
468
193
4,051
2,560
461

$

46,990
1,051
25,283
22,765
14,711
2,440
12,787
14,012
5,320

$

81,911
85,940

$ 44,921
-

$ 18,527
-

$

145,359
85,940

$

167,851

$ 44,921

$ 18,527

$

231,299

NPY

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Investments over which the Fund is able to exercise significant influence are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the original cost of the investment is adjusted for the Fund’s share of postacquisition earnings or losses, less distributions in the case of investments in partnerships and dividends in the case
of investments in companies. Investments are written down when there is evidence that a decline in value that is
other than temporary has occurred. The Fund reviews all of its investments for possible impairment on an annual
basis, or more frequently if there is an event which in the view of management would trigger an earlier review.
The Fund concluded that there was no impairment of long-term investments as at December 31, 2009.

INCOME TAXES
As a result of the Fund suspending distributions in October 2008, and being precluded from making distributions
under the Forbearance Agreement, the Fund would be subject to income taxes on its undistributed taxable income.
At December 31, 2009, a tax recovery has been recorded to reflect current period losses. The Fund’s taxable income
is compiled by results from Operating Partnerships and reflects CRA pronouncements and reassessments. In future
years, it is anticipated that the Fund would have taxable income.
Although the Fund, its subsidiaries including the Operating Partnerships and their subsidiaries are of the view that
all expenses to be claimed by them in the determination of their respective incomes under the Income Tax Act
(“Tax Act”) is reasonable and deductible in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Tax Act, and that the
allocation of partnership income for purposes of the Tax Act between the holders of LP Units and the Commercial
Trust is reasonable, there can be no assurance that the Tax Act or the interpretation of the Tax Act will not change,
or that CRA will agree with the expenses claimed or such allocation. If CRA successfully challenges the deductibility
of such expenses at the level of the Fund and/or any of its subsidiaries or the allocation of such income, NPY’s
allocation of taxable income to the Commercial Trust and its limited partners, and indirectly the taxable income of
Newport Partners Income Fund
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the Fund and the Unitholders of the Fund could be changed. Several of the Operating Partnerships and the Fund
are undergoing a review by CRA and the process is ongoing. The Fund, as a flow through entity, will aggregate
the results of the review and assess the impact on Unitholders and limited partners of NPY.
Interest on the CT Notes held by the Fund accrued at the Fund level for income tax purposes. The interest rate on
the CT Notes was set to zero percent in March 2009. The Declaration of Trust provides that an amount equal to the
taxable income of the Fund will be distributed each year to Unitholders in order to reduce the Fund’s taxable
income to zero. If sufficient cash is not available, such distributions will be in the form of Units. Unitholders will
generally be required to include an amount equal to the fair market value of those Units into their taxable income,
in circumstances where they do not receive a cash distribution. The taxable income of the Fund will be determined
by the allocations from CT less expenses and other deductions for tax purposes of the Fund.
The acquisitions of Operating Partnerships involved various structuring events to complete the transactions in a tax
effective manner. These transactions involved interpretations of the Tax Act which could, if interpreted differently,
result in additional tax liabilities.
The Government of Canada’s enactment of Bill C-52 in June 2007 implemented provisions that will make public
income trusts (formed before October 31, 2006) subject to the payment of an income tax on their earnings
commencing in 2011 (or earlier if certain equity capitalization thresholds are exceeded or if the Fund converts to
corporate form). The impact to the Fund of the enactment of Bill C-52 was that, commencing in the second quarter
of 2007, the Fund must from that time forward comply with the CICA’s recommendations regarding the accounting
for future taxes arising from differences between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its carrying amount on
the balance sheet under GAAP. What this means for the Fund is that it must estimate the expected value of its
assets and liabilities as of January 1, 2011 and compare this to the estimated tax value for these assets and liabilities
and record the difference as non-cash future tax amounts using the applicable estimated tax rates of 28.25% in
2011, 26.25% in 2012, 25.5% in 2013 and 25% in subsequent years. In general, there are no material differences in
the values for operating assets and liabilities such as accounts receivable, inventory and trade payables for the
1
Operating Partnerships. There are, however, differences , for example between the carrying values of definite life
intangibles (e.g. customer contracts) and indefinite life intangibles (e.g. brands) that arise as part of the Fund’s
accounting for its investments in the underlying Operating Partnerships. As one example, under GAAP, the Fund
records intangible assets related to acquisitions and these assets, typically, have a lesser value for tax purposes
depending on the manner in which the acquisition was structured. In this case, a future tax liability would be
recorded for the difference. If the Fund was to divest of one or more of its Operating Partnerships for an amount
that is greater than the tax carrying value this would give rise to a gain because the proceeds would be greater
than the tax value of the assets. The current tax liability, if any, would be paid out of the proceeds of the
divestiture with no impact on the Fund’s operating cash flow and the future tax liability previously recorded with
respect to the divested Operating Partnership would be reduced accordingly.
Prior to the decision to suspend distributions, no future taxes were recorded on those differences expected to
reverse before 2011. At December 31, 2009 the Fund has recorded a future tax liability related to differences that
are expected to reverse in 2010 using the applicable estimated tax rate of approximately 31%.
The recording of a future tax expense/recovery has no impact on cash generated by operating activities or on
distributable cash.
The Fund has evaluated its alternatives as to the best structure for its unitholders, and intends to propose to
unitholders a conversion to a corporate structure in due course.
1 These differences are referred to as either deductible temporary differences or taxable temporary differences and may result in tax-deductible amounts or
taxable amounts in future periods and GAAP requires that these differences be recorded.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Fund’s accounting policies are disclosed in the notes to the 2009 audited annual consolidated financial
statements and in the following disclosure regarding the impact of new accounting standards adopted by the Fund
in the 2009.
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ADOPTED BY THE FUND IN 2009
The Fund adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA), Section 3064 “Goodwill and Intangible
Assets”, Section 3862 “Financial Investments: Disclosures”, and EIC 173, “Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities”.
(a) Goodwill and Intangible Assets
In February 2008, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3064, Goodwill and Intangible Assets, replacing
Section 3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, and Section 3450, Research and Development Costs.
This section establishes standards for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
goodwill subsequent to its initial recognition and of intangible assets by profit-oriented enterprises. The
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new section, which was adopted by the Fund effective January 1, 2009, did not have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
(b) Financial Instrument Disclosures
In March 2009, the AcSB amended CICA Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments – Disclosures, to
enhance the disclosure requirements regarding fair value measurements including the relative reliability of
the inputs used in those measurements and the liquidity risk of financial instruments. The standard also
requires disclosure of a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency of
inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The amendments are effective
for the Fund’s 2009 annual consolidated financial statements and its adoption did not have an impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Fund as Section 3862 relates to disclosures.
(c) Credit Risk and Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
In January 2009, the CICA issued EIC 173, Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, which clarifies that the credit risk should be taken into account in determining the fair value of
derivative instruments. EIC 173 is to be applied retrospectively without restatement of prior periods to all
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in interim and annual financial statements for periods
ending on or after the date of issuance of EIC 173. The adoption by the Fund of EIC 173 effective January
1, 2009, did not have a material impact on the interim consolidated financial statements.
FUTURE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
In 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly accountable enterprises will be
required to adopt International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), for interim and annual reporting purposes,
beginning on or after January 1, 2011. The adoption date of January 1, 2011 will require the restatement, for
comparative purposes, of amounts reported by the Fund for its year ended December 31, 2010 and of the opening
balance sheet as at January 1, 2010.
The Fund began planning the transition from current Canadian GAAP to IFRS, in 2008, by establishing a project
plan and a project team. The project team is led by a senior finance member who will provide overall project
governance, management and support. Members also will include representatives from various areas of the Fund,
as necessary as well as representatives from the Operating Partnerships. We have completed the delivery of
+training to all employees with responsibilities in the conversion process. The Fund is also working closely with its
external auditors in the IFRS conversion project.
A quarterly report is made to the Audit Committee of the Fund and the Audit Committee has also held
consultations and information sessions with the external auditors.
The project plan consists of three phases: the initial assessment, detailed assessment and design, and
implementation.
The Fund has completed the initial assessment phase. After completing a high level review of the major
differences between current Canadian GAAP and IFRS, the Fund has determined that the areas of accounting
differences with the highest potential to impact its business are accounting for investments and accounting for
fixed assets, as well as initial adoption of IFRS under the provisions of IFRS 1, First-Time Adoption of IFRS.
The Fund is currently in the process of completing the detailed assessment and design phase, which is primarily
focussed on completing a comprehensive analysis of the impact of the IFRS differences identified in the initial
assessment phase.
Under current IFRS, as it exists at the date of this MD&A, the Fund would continue to account for its investments in
Operating Partnerships using the proportionate consolidation method and there will be no significant changes to
the consolidated financial statements. However, IASB Exposure Draft 9 is in its final stages of development and is
expected to be issued in the first quarter of 2010. Significant changes suggested in the Exposure Draft include a
change that proportionate consolidation will no longer be allowed for jointly controlled entities and they must be
accounted for using the equity method. If the Exposure Draft is approved in its current form, significant
components of the balance sheet would be condensed to one line item “Investment in Operating Partnerships” for
jointly controlled entities. Similarly, the income statement would be primarily condensed to one line item “Income
from Jointly Controlled Entities”.
During the implementation phase, the Fund will incorporate identified changes to business processes, financial
systems, accounting policies, disclosure controls and internal controls over financial reporting.
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2009 PERFORMANCE
Summary Financial Table – (segmented) ($000s)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
FINANCIAL
SERVICES

Revenues
Gross profit
Income/(loss) from continuing operations before noncontrolling interest
EBITDA from continuing operations
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations
2
Interest income (expense)
3
Non-cash interest expense
Income tax expense
Maintenance capital expenditures and reserves
Capital lease payments
5

Priority Income per partnership agreement

Distributable cash from (used by) continuing operations
Distributable cash from discontinued operations
6
Distributable cash retained by the Fund

MARKETING

$ 27,789
$ 17,907

$
$

$ (8,555)
$ (5,080)
11,938
$ 6,858
121
(25)
(1,205)
(14)

INDUSTRIAL
SERVICES2

CORPORATE1

TOTAL

88,400
32,252

$
$

397,525
75,524

$ 71,159
$ 20,705

$

-

$ 584,873
$ 146,388

$

3,590

$

(17,038)

$ (4,068)

$

(44,599)

$ (70,670)

$

12,393
1,274
13,667
(184)
(806)
(233)

$

6,403
18,640
25,043
(2,680)
86
(5,508)

$

$

$

20

$

-

$ 5,755

OTHER

$

12,444

$

3,385
7,554
$ 10,939
(923)
(148)
(233)

-

436

16,941

$ 10,071

(16,370)
3,567
$ (12,803)
(36,795)
3,453
(18)
-

$

731
42,973
$ 43,704
(40,461)
3,453
(43)
(2,073)
(5,988)

$

(46,163)

456
$
$

1 The results of the Corporate segment include corporate costs and corporate interest expense.
2 The Fund advanced approximately $62,000 to NPC to allow it to complete its investment in Golosky on July 31, 2007. This long term facility can be converted
into equity, if certain future performance criteria are met, and in anticipation of the triggering targets being met, and also in order to remove the financing
component from the operating results of NPC, interest expense of NPC, and the Industrial Services segment in this Summary Financial table has been reduced
by $6,027 for the year ended December 31, 2009 and such amount has been added to the interest expense of the Corporate segment (2008 - $7,507; 2007 $2,537).
3 Non-cash interest expense relates to the amortization of deferred financings charges and the accretion of the equity component of the Convertible
Debentures. Issue costs are amortized over the term of the Debentures, and the debt portion will accrete up to the principal balance at maturity.
4 Management of Gemma has the option to receive its distributions as bonuses. Where this option is chosen, an adjustment is required to calculate the
distributable cash to the Fund.
5 To the extent that in any reporting period, calculated on a cumulative basis, the Fund’s proportionate share of distributable cash is more or less than its
priority amount, an adjustment to distributable cash is made to reflect the actual cash distributions payable to the Fund by the operating partner.
6 As there were no distributions made during 2009, distributable cash per unit information has not been provided.
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(952)
6,724
5,772

Summary Financial Table – (segmented) ($000s)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
FINANCIAL
SERVICES

MARKETING

INDUSTRIAL
SERVICES2

OTHER

CORPORATE1

TOTAL

Revenue
Gross profit
Loss from continuing operations before noncontrolling interest
EBITDA from continuing operations
Loss on dilution of ownership interest
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment of long- term investment

$
$

34,368
22,746

$
$

94,036
35,855

$
$

438,781
86,908

$
$

85,534
24,038

$
$

-

$
$

652,719
169,547

$

(92,790)

$

(5,359)

$

(42,178)

$

(7,819)

$ (123,113)

$

(271,259)

$

(91,273)
77,516
29,000

$

193
15,063
-

$

(10,039)
39,994
-

$

(422)
12,786
-

$

(93,593)
845
85,940
-

$

(195,134)
845
231,299
29,000

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations
2
Interest income (expense)
3
Non-cash interest expense
Income tax expense-current
Maintenance capital expenditures and reserves
Capital lease payments
4
Distributions expensed
5
Priority income per partnership agreement

$

15,243
304
(19)
(252)
(6)
223

$

15,256
(309)
(19)
(876)
(132)
415
315

$

29,955
(1,947)
(6)
(4,188)
(4,356)
1,809

$

12,364
(1,486)
(309)
(175)
196

$

(6,808)
(37,528)
8,345
-

$

66,010
(40,966)
8,345
(44)
(5,625)
(4,669)
415
2,543

Distributable cash from (used by) continuing operations
Cash from discontinued operations

$

15,493

$

14,650

$

21,267

$

10,590

$

(35,991)

$

26,009
12,378

Distributable cash

$

38,387

Distributable cash per unit from continuing
operations

$

0.36

Cash provided per unit from discontinued operations

0.17

Distributable cash per unit

$

0.53

Summary Financial Table – (segmented) ($000s)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007
FINANCIAL
SERVICES

Revenues
Gross profit

MARKETING

INDUSTRIAL
SERVICES2

OTHER

$

86,816

$

296,943

$ 93,015

$

-

$

512,667

$ 24,273

$

-

$

145,341

$

(5,022)

$

(36,457)

$

(38,664)

$

(12,967)

$

60,759

$ 24,375

$

33,998

$

62,695

$

(1,206)

$

(3,078)

$

7,099

EBITDA from continuing operations

$ 21,109

$

11,583

$

28,891

$ 12,143

Loss on dilution of ownership interest

-

-

-

-

Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets

-

2,987

-

-

Non-cash interest expense

3

Income tax expense - current
Maintenance capital expenditures and reserves
Capital lease payments
Distributions expensed

4
5

Priority Income per partnership agreement

TOTAL

$ 35,893

Income (loss) from continuing operations before noncontrolling interest

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations
2
Interest income (expense )

CORPORATE1

$ 21,109

$

293

14,570

$

(309)

6,958

6,958
-

$

(6,009)

2,987

28,891

$ 12,143

(2,330)

(2,427)

(25,974)

$

(30,747)

70,704
2,797

-

-

-

-

2,797

(6)

-

-

-

(4)

(10)

(701)

(872)

(2,312)

(505)

-

(4,390)

(2)

(186)

(3,162)

(77)

-

(3,427)

-

894

-

-

-

894

213

612

2,387

486

-

3,698
$

39,519

Distributable cash

$

49,945

Distributable cash per unit from continuing
operations

$

0.55

$

0.70

Distributable cash from (used by) continuing operations
Distributable cash from discontinued operations

$ 20,906

$

14,709

$

23,474

$

9,620

$

(29,190)

10,426

0.15

Cash provided per unit from discontinued operations
Distributable cash per unit
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INVESTMENT & FUNDING ACTIVITIES IN 2009
On January 30, 2009, the minority limited partner of ESR delivered to the Fund an offer letter pursuant to the
Shotgun Buy-Sell provision of the limited partnership agreement governing ESR. On February 27, 2009 the Fund
elected to accept the minority limited partner’s offer to sell its 20% interest in ESR. The transaction closed on
March 31, 2009, at which time the Fund paid $8,500 and its interest in ESR increased to 100%. On October 1, 2009,
the Fund sold its 100% interest in ESR. (See Discontinued Operations)
On February 10, 2009, Hargraft sold the shares of its wholly owned subsidiary, Hargraft Schofield Benefits Inc. for
proceeds of $1,274 to the Fund, and recorded a nominal gain on the transaction.
On August 31, 2009, the Fund paid to the vendor of IC Group, the final payment of a three year earn-out provision,
pursuant to the original purchase and sale agreement dated July 2006. The final payment amount was $2,337.
On December 4, 2009 the Fund paid $96 to acquire an additional 6% interest in Hargraft, increasing its ownership
to 100%.
On August 4, 2009, the minority limited partner of Gemma delivered to the Fund an offer letter pursuant to the
Shotgun Buy-Sell provision of the limited partnership agreement governing Gemma. The Fund elected to accept
the minority limited partner’s offer to sell its 20% interest in Gemma. The transaction closed on January 4, 2010, at
which time, the Fund paid $4,316 and its interest in Gemma increased to 100%.
Summary Results from Continuing Operations – ($000s)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
2009

Revenues

$

Cost of revenues

584,873

2008

$

(438,485)

Gross profit

$

Selling, general and administrative expenses

146,388

652,719

2007

$

(483,172)
$

169,547

512,667
(367,326)

$

145,341

(105,022)

(107,839)

(81,852)

Amortization expense

(30,368)

(35,180)

(32,086)

Depreciation expense

(13,329)

(11,450)

(8,343)

1,106

1,824

3,109

Income from equity investments
Other income
Interest expense
Loss on dilution of ownership interest
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment of long- term investment
Income tax expense-current
Income tax recovery (expense)-future

-

330

1,119

(40,461)

(40,966)

(30,747)

-

(845)

(6,958)

(42,973)

(231,299)

(2,987)

-

(29,000)

-

(43)

(44)

(10)

14,032

13,663

(25,850)

Loss from continuing operations

$

(70,670)

$

(271,259)

$

(38,664)

Loss from continuing operations

$

(70,670)

$

(271,259)

$

(38,664)

Add:
Amortization

30,368

35,180

1

13,411

11,662

8,343

1,150

1,936

2,387

40,461

40,966

30,747

Depreciation

Amortization of Brompton intangible assets
Interest expense
Income tax expense-current
Income tax (recovery) expense-future
EBITDA

$

Loss on dilution of ownership interest

43

44

10

(14,032)

(13,663)

25,850

731

$

-

Adjusted EBITDA

$

43,704

(195,134)

$

845

42,973

Write-down of goodwill, intangible assets and long-term investment

32,086

6,958

260,299
$

66,010

60,759

2,987
$

70,704

1 Depreciation of $82 was recorded in Cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2009 (2008 - $212; 2007 – $nil).
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2009 R E S U L T S

COMMENTARY

The Fund’s Continuing Operations from its portfolio investments are reported in four operating segments: Financial
Services, Marketing, Industrial Services and Other. Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $584,873
compared to $652,719 in 2008, a decrease of 10.4%. This decrease in revenue from 2008 to 2009 reflects the overall
weak economy and its impact on budgets of the clients and industries of all the operating segments. Revenues in
2009 increased 14.1% compared to revenues of $512,667 in 2007 reflecting a full year of investments acquired in
2007.
Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $146,388 compared to $169,547 in 2008, a decrease of
13.7% and an increase of 0.7% compared to $145,341 in 2007. Gross profit margins have remained consistent at
25.0% for 2009 and 26.0% for 2008.
These four operating segments produced $56,507 of adjusted EBITDA for the Fund compared to $72,818 in 2008,
and $76,713 in 2007.
The five largest EBITDA contributors in the portfolio in 2009 were NPC, Peerless, Capital C, Quantum Murray and
Morrison Williams. Each business had a slow start to the year, however, they gained momentum as the economy
strengthened in the second half of the year.
NPC’s results for the year were mixed. The specialty wear technology division benefited from increased demand
and had strong gross margin contribution. The conventional oil and gas maintenance service businesses struggled
alongside the industry as clients reduced or deferred spending and increased competition impacted pricing.
Construction revenue in both the conventional and oil sand sectors has been significantly reduced with the lower
commodity prices.
Peerless had a strong year as it successfully executed on two large government projects that were secured in late
2008.
Capital C had satisfactory results this year considering clients were cautious with their marketing spending. The first
half of the year was marked by clients reducing and deferring their marketing budgets. Business development
activities have been successful in attracting new clients, and new assignments and deeper relationships with
existing clients.
Quantum Murray’s performance was mixed on a divisional basis. The environmental division was a strong
contributor as it benefited from a large remediation project from the Ontario Ministry of the Environment. The
demolition division had a disappointing year with first quarter losses from cost overruns and limited large industrial
demolition projects as a result of the economic climate. Competitive pressures were extensive and smaller
industrial projects had to be aggressively priced to secure the work, resulting in compressed margins. Slumping
commodity prices throughout the year caused margin compression and inventory losses at the scrap metal division.
Morrison Williams’ and NP LP’s results for the year were as expected given the volatility in the financial markets.
AUM levels began to modestly improve during the last quarter of the year.
The Fund’s results were also impacted by strong results from IC Group which achieved its best year since its
acquisition. Interactive and on-line loyalty programs have been well received by core clients who continued to
expand their business with IC Group.
Gemma had a solid year as it replaced, to a large extent, its financial services clientele with other clients who were
less impacted by the global recession. Gemma was successful in diversifying its service offering during the year to
expanded inbound customer care programs with key clients, in addition to its outbound offerings. While revenues
did not return to prior year levels, great strides were made in client development, which should position Gemma
for revenue gains in the future.
Gusgo suffered from reduced transportation revenue volumes as the entire industry was impacted by the weak
economy. Storage services continued to be a steady revenue stream for Gusgo during the year.
S&E had a transitional year as it tried to rebuild its client base which was greatly impacted by competitive pressures.
Armstrong’s results have been impacted by the drop in consumer spending particularly in the US where many of its
customers operate. Armstrong focused on diversifying its product offering to become a fully integrated marketing
services company offering expanded marketing and advertising options to its existing and new client base.
Both Hargraft’s and BMI’s insurance operations have been affected by a continuing soft insurance market which
has increased competition and put downward pressure on premiums and also commission income. Hargraft was
particularly hard hit which necessitated sharp cost reductions and restructuring of operations.
The Fund’s Corporate segment includes administrative costs to operate the Fund, and interest costs on borrowings
to fund investments and working capital of the portfolio’s businesses. The costs include significant legal costs
associated with initiatives to restructure the balance sheet and the cost of increased resources to manage the
Fund’s investments. Corporate office costs were $12,803 for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared with
$6,808 in 2008 and $6,009 in 2007. These costs reduced total adjusted EBITDA to $43,704 for the year ended
December 31, 2009 compared with $66,010 in 2008 and $70,704 in 2007.
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The main items that reduce Adjusted EBITDA to arrive at distributable cash are interest expense and maintenance
capital expenditures. Cash interest costs for the year increased from 2008 due to the default interest and interest
related to the Forbearance Agreement. During the year, cash interest costs were $37,008 compared with $32,621 in
2008 and $27,950 in 2007.
During 2009, the operating segments had capital expenditures and capital lease payments of $14,236, as compared
to $13,442 in 2008 and $8,735 in 2007. The majority of these expenditures are incurred in the Industrial Services
segments.
Distributable cash used by continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $(952) compared with
$26,009 in 2008 and $39,519 in 2007.
Non-cash items that impacted the results were depreciation and amortization, the write-down of goodwill and
intangible assets, impairment of long- term investments and future income taxes. Depreciation and amortization
was $43,779 for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to $46,842 in 2008 and $40,429 in 2007. The largest
component of this expense is the amortization of intangible assets, which are recorded as investments are made.
During the third and fourth quarters of 2009, the Fund reviewed the carrying value of all of its investments. As part
of the review, the Fund re-calculated the fair value of intangible assets and goodwill based on current or expected
earnings of the businesses, and based on current earnings multiples consistent with publicly available multiples of
comparable businesses. This review has resulted in write-downs of goodwill and intangible assets of several
investments for $42,973, (2008 - $231,299; 2007 - $2,987). There was a write-down of a long- term investment in the
amounts of $29,000 in 2008.
In addition, in 2008 management of the Fund reviewed its investment in NPY and determined that the net
goodwill of $85,940 created on the Fund’s initial investments in NPY should be written off. In 2009 goodwill of
$3,567 was created on exchanges and was subsequently written off.
The enactment in June 2007 of Bill C-52, subjecting the Fund to taxation on its taxable income beginning in 2011,
resulted in a GAAP requirement to record a future income tax expense in 2007 of $25,850 as the Fund was required
to record future income tax related to temporary differences, which reverse after 2010, at the Fund level. These
differences are between the accounting and tax basis of the Fund’s net assets, and the majority of the differences
relates to intangible assets. As a result of the write-downs of intangible assets, the Fund has recorded a future
income tax recovery in 2009 of $14,032 and $13,663 in 2008. In addition, due to the decision to suspend
distributions in late 2008, the Fund no longer qualifies for the exemption from recording future taxes under
Accounting Emerging Issues Guidance (EIC 107), which is available to income trusts that are committed to
distributing their taxable income to unitholders. Accordingly, the Fund has also recorded a net future tax liability in
respect of differences reversing prior to 2011 for which, previously, the EIC 107 exemption had applied.
The tax recoveries recorded in 2009 of $14,032 and of $13,663 in 2008, and the tax expense recorded in 2007 of
$25,850, are non-cash items that have no current impact on the Fund’s cash from operating activities.
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2009 from continuing operations before non-controlling interest was
$(70,670) compared to a loss of $(271,259) in 2008 and $(38,664) in 2007.
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2009 P E R F O R M A N C E S U M M A R Y –
OPERATING
PARTNERSHIP

ADJUSTED
EBITDA
($000s)

BY OPERATING PARTNERSHIPS

DISTRIBUTABLE
CASH ($000s)

2009 YIELD
(%) (2)

COMMENTARY

FINANCIAL SERVICES
Brompton

1,225

-

Morrison Williams

4,482

NP LP

Hargraft

BMI

-

Brompton is an asset manager of public and private investment funds. During
the year, net AUM increased by $494 million or 47%. The increase resulted from
Brompton’s appointment as manager of two new funds, the launch of two new
funds and the exercise of warrants issued by funds and market appreciation. The
increase in net assets from these items was partially offset by annual
redemptions. Brompton continues to search for and structure new investment
products which can be brought to market.

4,482

10.7%

Morrison Williams provides investment management services to institutional
clients. Morrison Williams results reflect a lower average AUM base than in
prior years given the major sell-off in equity securities in the fourth quarter of
2008. Morrison Williams results were impacted by continued weak and volatile
market conditions in early 2009. Revenue for Morrison Williams is driven by the
performance of the equity and bond markets which started to show a rebound in
the second quarter. Improvements during the latter half of the year partially
offset the decline from prior levels with a 1% increase in AUM year over year. In
light of the tumultuous market conditions, Morrison Williams focused on client
retention throughout the year and has maintained a stable client base. With the
expectation of market and economic conditions improving, so will AUM and
Morrison Williams’ revenues in the foreseeable future.

1,528

1,475

7.1%

NP LP provides investment management, corporate advisory and insurance
services to its clients. Results for the year were mixed as investment
management fees for the first half of the year were below prior year levels due to
market conditions, lower AUM and significant cash holdings as a defensive
response to the market instability. A continuous growth in clients, as well as an
improvement in the financial markets resulted in higher AUM and management
fee revenue in the second half of the year. Consulting fees were below prior year
levels reflecting reduced levels of corporate advisory assignments. Insurance
services revenues were comparable to prior year levels. There is cautious
optimism for the upcoming year with the expectation of a strengthening
economy and momentum in financial markets. There is continued focus on
developing the client base and growing AUM.

(1,270)

1

(1,208)

(6.6%)

Hargraft is an insurance broker specializing in the transportation, manufacturing
and construction sectors. The competitive landscape within which Hargraft
operates has been very onerous. Hargraft’s transportation clients continued the
trend of reducing fleet sizes and applying pressure on premiums. Restructuring
measures at Hargraft commenced in the third quarter and continued in to the
fourth quarter in response to current circumstances. With the appointment of
new senior management in the fourth quarter, there is cautious optimism that
business development efforts will improve results for the upcoming year.

893

1

1,006

5.5%

BMI is a full service insurance broker focusing primarily on commercial clientele
with expertise in the transportation sector. The global economic recession
impacted all business segments to some degree causing contraction of BMI’s
client base. The “soft market” in insurance has also persisted with resultant rate
reductions required to retain business. BMI’s results were impacted by the loss of
a significant client early in the year who restructured its program with another
provider; otherwise client retention has been good. BMI has initiated cost savings
measures in response to these conditions. Since insurance capacity is in ample
supply, the competitive commercial market is expected to continue into the next
year, and with a slow economic recovery some further business contraction is
possible. Management is focusing on expanding certain segments within its
commercial portfolio that have shown signs of opportunities for growth.

6,858

5,755

1

280

4.9%

S&E is a provider of sports-related marketing and sponsorship and event
management services. S&E had a transitional year with a change in senior
management and the loss of two significant clients. Management modified its
service offering to focus on sponsorship and marketing consulting, sponsorship
account and event management. Client development was the focus throughout
the year and there were great strides made in attracting new accounts.
Management’s focus for the new year is to develop the client base and promote
its new service offering.

3,786

3,523

12.6%

Gemma is an outsourced contact centre operator providing outbound revenue
generation and inbound customer care services. Gemma had a challenging year
as it recovered from the sharp reductions of credit marketing activities across its
financial services portfolio in late 2008. This portfolio represented a significant
portion of the prior year revenues. On a positive note, management was able to
replace a substantial portion of this revenue through organic growth of existing
clients who were less impacted by the weak economy. In addition Gemma was
successful in launching a large inbound sales program which has improved the
balance of the revenue stream between inbound customer care and outbound
telesales. Client development efforts brought in a few key large clients during
the last month of the year which is providing optimism for the upcoming year.

MARKETING
S&E

Gemma

314
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OPERATING
PARTNERSHIP

ADJUSTED
EBITDA
($000s)

DISTRIBUTABLE
CASH ($000s)

2009 YIELD
(%) (2)

COMMENTARY

Capital C

5,707

4,983

20.9%

Capital C is an integrated marketing services agency. Capital C had a strong year
considering the economic turmoil and uncertainty. During the first half of the year,
Capital C saw their clients often deferring and sometimes curtailing their marketing
budgets. Through client development and product diversification Capital C was able
to expand its customer base and consolidate services for their existing clients. The
second half of the year saw a surge in business as there was pent up demand for
marketing services. With the revival in marketing spending, Capital C expects a
strong upcoming year as clients gain more confidence in the economy.

IC Group

2,685

2,567

27.1%

IC Group is a provider of online promotional and loyalty programs, and a provider of
select insurance products. Results for 2009 marked IC Group’s best performance
since its acquisition in 2006. Revenues were significantly above previous year’s
levels primarily due to growth in interactive revenues from a few key accounts. This
growth more than offset the decline in revenue from the insurance division. IC
Group’s outlook is cautiously optimistic. A few key accounts will be the main
revenue drivers which creates some risk of reliance on large clients. Mitigating this
risk is a focus on business development of existing and new clients that is showing
signs of traction. Resources have been added to the insurance division to revitalize
this important segment of the business.

Armstrong

1,175

1,091

5.5%

Armstrong is a fully integrated marketing agency providing in-store promotional
marketing, digital and social media marketing solutions. Armstrong’s results for the
year were satisfactory considering the economic climate. With its customer base in
both the US and Canada, many clients reduced their advertising budgets and
deferred their marketing programs. Armstrong invested in strategic growth areas to
overcome the trend of margin compression and reduced client expenditure in
traditional services. Social media marketing and digital services are areas of focus
for Armstrong. The second half of the year showed signs of client spending
improvement and client development activities showed some traction and
Armstrong is positioned well for the upcoming year.

13,667

12,444

19,478

1

15,879

15.0%

NPC provides oil and gas maintenance, construction and wear technology services to
both the conventional oil and gas industry and to the oil sands. The results for the
year were sharply contrasted in the first and second half of the year. The first half of
the year was slow across all divisions except the wear technology division. With low
oil and gas prices, clients deferred conventional gas exploration and development
projects. In addition, conventional and oil sands maintenance services were subject
to competitive pricing pressures, and these divisions experienced cost overruns on
fixed price contracts as well. The second half of the year saw a revival in demand for
maintenance and labour supply in both the conventional and oil sands services
division. The wear technology division experienced stronger demand and maintained
its margins. The conventional oil and gas services divisions remained below prior
year levels and fabrication work continued to be lower throughout 2009 due to
lower oil sand construction activity. NPC’s outlook for 2010 is optimistic. The
fabrication and wear technology division anticipates increased volumes. Increased
activity is expected in the oil sands industry with the announcement of four major
projects.

5,565

1

1,062

1.6%

Quantum Murray is a national provider of demolition, remediation and scrap metal
services. Results for the year were mixed from a divisional standpoint. The
environmental division had a strong year mostly due to a large project for the
Ontario Ministry of the Environment. This project was completed in December,
2009. There were also two substantial federal government projects in the Arctic that
contributed to the division’s success in the year. The demolition division struggled
throughout the year as a result of the economic downturn and its impact on
industrial demolition activity. The smaller commercial demolition projects that made
up the bulk of the division’s business in 2009 carried lower margins due to
competitive pressures. In addition, the division’s results were impacted by losses on
a major B.C. project in the first quarter of the year. Cost cutting measures were
taken in the demolition division throughout the year to align costs with lower
volumes. On a positive note, there are signs in early 2010 that industrial demolition
activity is beginning to improve. The metals division also had a difficult year. While
scrap prices increased through the year, industrial and demolition scrap volumes
were reduced. As a result, margins were compressed as competition for buying
scrap metal increased direct costs. The outlook for the metals division will largely be
dependent on the recovery of industrial activity in Ontario.

25,043

16,941

INDUSTRIAL SERVICES

NPC

Quantum Murray
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OPERATING
PARTNERSHIP

ADJUSTED
EBITDA
($000s)

DISTRIBUTABLE
CASH ($000s)

2009 YIELD
(%) (2)

COMMENTARY

OTHER
Peerless

6,633

6,385

17.7%

Peerless is a supplier of garments to the Canadian military. Peerless had a strong
year as it executed on two large government contracts that were awarded by the
Ministry of Defence in late 2008/early 2009. During the first half of the year, some
subcontractor and material procurement challenges were experienced which delayed
the ramp up in production. However, by the second half of the year full production
and shipment was reached on these contracts. Consequently, as the year
progressed, margins improved as production efficiencies in material consumption
were realized. As Peerless looks forward there is optimism that additional options
on current contracts will be awarded. Since Peerless’ revenue is dependent on the
awarding of government contracts it is difficult to predict the timing of new
contracts.

Titan

1,324

1

400

1.9%

Titan is a manufacturer and distributor of rigging products, rigging services and
ground engaging tools to a number of industries including, oil and gas,
transportation, mining, pipeline, construction and government. Titan had a
challenging year with revenue down across all product lines. Titan’s business is
heavily reliant on the Alberta oil and gas industry which has been depressed since
2008. As well, the construction industry was hard hit by the economic downturn.
The reduction in drilling activity resulted in a sharp decrease in rigging product and
service revenues. Gross margin compression also impacted results due to stiff pricing
competitiveness. Management promptly reacted to the decline in business with deep
cost cutting measures. Looking forward, drilling activity is expected to modestly
improve which should translate into improved revenues from the oil and gas
industries including the transportation sector. With the anticipated increase in oil
sands activity Titan should see some improvement in the second half of 2010.

Gusgo

1,877

1

2,181

17.4%

Gusgo is a provider of container transportation and storage services. Gusgo had a
satisfactory year considering the economic downturn and the struggling
transportation industry. Overall results were down from prior years as container
shipment business volumes were down in Canada and the US. Gusgo was able to
maintain its customer base despite competitive pricing pressures, and reduced
revenues were simply a reflection of lower volumes. The storage services business
remained a solid revenue stream for Gusgo. It is expected that it will take more
time for the transportation industry to rebound to historical levels. Gusgo continues
to look for ways to consolidate business with existing clients who may use several
logistics providers.

Rlogistics

1,105

1,105

11.1%

Rlogistics is a reseller of close-out, discount and refurbished consumer electronic and
household goods in Ontario. Rlogistics continued to face a very competitive retail
environment in 2009. Rlogistics has experienced downward pressure on same store
sales and has seen an increase in inventory shrinkage in its retail stores. Rlogistics
plans to open new stores when management sees opportunities and close
underperforming stores. There are also plans to move certain stores with smaller
footprints to larger locations (where possible) that can be better merchandised.

10,939

10,071

1 Excludes a write-down of intangible assets, refer to the Goodwill and Intangible Write-downs sections
2 Distributable cash as a percentage of weighted invested capital
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SEGMENT OPERATING RESULTS
FINANCIAL SERVICES
The Financial Services segment includes the Fund’s proportionate share of NP LP, Morrison Williams, Brompton,
Hargraft and BMI. The results of ESR, sold on October 1, 2009, are included in Discontinued Operations and are not
reflected in the tables below (see Discontinued Operations section on page 39).
Morrison Williams
NP LP
Hargraft
BMI

-

Brompton

-

Provides investment management services to institutional clients
Provider of investment management and corporate advisory and insurance services
Insurance broker specializing in the transportation, manufacturing and construction sectors
Full-service insurance broker focusing primarily on commercial clientele with expertise in the
transportation sector
Asset manager of public and private investment funds

Summary Financial Table ($000s)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Revenues

2009

2008

2007

$ 27,789

$ 34,368

$ 35,893

Cost of revenues
Gross profit

(9,882)

(11,622)

(11,518)

$ 17,907

$ 22,746

$ 24,375

Selling, general and administrative expenses

(12,245)

(10,079)

(8,574)

Amortization expense

(7,545)

(8,635)

(8,098)

Depreciation expense

(317)

(323)

(378)

46

310

1,802

Income from equity investments
Other income
Interest income
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment of long- term investments
Income tax expense-current

-

330

1,119

121

304

293

(11,938)

(77,516)

-

-

(29,000)

-

(25)

(19)

(6)

5,441

9,092

(11,739)

(8,555)

$ (92,790)

Amortization

7,545

8,635

Depreciation

317

323

378

Amortization of Brompton intangible assets

1,150

1,936

2,387

Interest income

(121)

(304)

(293)

25

19

6

(5,441)

(9,092)

11,739
$ 21,109

Income tax (expense) recovery -future
Loss for the year

$

$

(1,206)

Add:

Income tax expense -current
Income tax expense (recovery) -future
EBITDA

$

Write-down of goodwill, intangible assets and long-term investments
Adjusted EBITDA

$

8,098

(5,080)

$ (91,273)

11,938

106,516

-

6,858

$ 15,243

$ 21,109

Supplementary Financial Information – AUM (millions)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
2009

NP LP
Morrison Williams

$

Brompton

2008

$

1,540

Total

Newport Partners Income Fund

1,006
3,035

$

24

5,581

856
2,975

2007

$

1,046
$

4,877

1,107
4,344
2,261

$

7,712

Annual Report 2009

2009 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2008
(I) REVENUES
Revenue from the Financial Services segment was $27,789 in 2009, which represents a 19.1% decrease over the
$34,368 reported for 2008.
2009 was a challenging year for all the businesses within the financial services segment. The turbulent economy
impacted the insurance businesses client base and reduced AUM for the investment management businesses. The
commercial insurance market remained soft throughout the year which impacted the two insurance companies in
the portfolio. With insurance capacity in ample supply, competitive pressure necessitated rate reductions to retain
clients. A large segment of BMI’s business is derived from the transportation sector which has been greatly
impacted by the recession. Business closures and consolidations eroded the client base at both BMI and Hargraft.
The investment management businesses of NP LP and Morrison Williams had a mixed year as the financial markets’
sell off in the second half of 2008 continued into the first quarter of the year. Modest market recovery began in
the second half of the year with assets under management appreciating. Revenues at both Morrison Williams and
NP LP are driven by AUM, which were improved at year end compared to prior year by 1% and 18% respectively.
Both NP LP and Morrison Williams focused on client retention during this year of market uncertainty.
(II) GROSS PROFIT
Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $17,907, which translated into a 64.4% gross profit margin.
This compares to gross profit of $22,746 for the prior year, reflecting a gross profit margin of 66.2%.
(III) SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses were $12,245 for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared with
$10,079 for the year ended December 31, 2008. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenues was 44.1%, compared to 29.3% in 2008. These costs are typically fixed, however this years’ increase in
SG&A expenses reflect restructuring costs incurred at Hargraft primarily relating to employee severance costs and
bad debt provisions.
(IV) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization was $7,862 for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $8,958 for the year
ended December 31, 2008. The largest component of this expense is the amortization of intangible assets which
were recorded as investments were made in Operating Partnerships.
(V) WRITE-DOWN OF INTANGIBLES
During 2009, a write-down of intangible assets in the amount of $11,938 was recorded relating to the Fund’s
investment in BMI and Hargraft. In 2008, a write-down of intangible assets in the amount of $77,516 was recorded
relating to the Fund’s investment in each business within the financial services segment. The investment in
Brompton was written down by $29,000. See section “Goodwill and Intangible Write-downs”.
(VI) ADJUSTED EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA was $6,858 for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $15,243 in 2008. Adjusted EBITDA
also includes the income from the Fund’s equity investment in Brompton.
(VII) INCOME TAX
Current tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $25 compared to $19 in 2008. Future tax recovery
for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $5,441 compared to $9,092 in 2008.
Please see a discussion on income taxes in the section on Income Taxes.
(VIII) LOSS
Net loss for the year was $(8,555) compared to net loss of $(92,790) in 2008.
(IX) SEASONALITY
The asset management businesses and insurance businesses are not subject to material seasonality factors.
(X) OUTLOOK
Conditions in the commercial insurance market are expected to remain challenging into 2010. With insurance
capacity in ample supply and client closures and consolidations, the competitive landscape is expected to continue.
Both Hargraft and BMI have taken cost cutting measures in response to the soft insurance market. The president of
BMI is now overseeing both operations and with this change, steps are being taken to provide a shared cost
structure, and to strengthen the overall platform of the insurance operations Management is focusing on
expanding certain segments within the commercial portfolio that have shown signs of opportunities for growth.
The cautious view is that the trend of market improvement is expected to continue into the new year. Based on
stable or improved financial markets, Morrison Williams believes it will see improvement in AUM, but new business
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will take longer to develop. NP LP is focusing on client development to organically grow AUM and to attract
advisory and insurance services business.
2008 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2007
(I) REVENUES
Revenue from the Financial Services segment was $34,368 for the year ended December 31, 2008, which represents
a 4.2% decrease from the $35,893 reported for the year ended December 31, 2007.
Revenues of each business in this segment are lower than the prior year. Revenues of the two insurance businesses
have been negatively impacted by a continuing soft insurance market. Heightened competition and price
compression have limited growth opportunities as insurance premiums have been reduced, which has, in turn,
reduced commission income earned. Significant marketing activities have been undertaken in efforts to retain
existing clients. In addition, commission income from both Hargraft and Baird’s transportation clients were lower
due to industry consolidation.
The investment management businesses of both Morrison Williams and NP LP were severely impacted by the
unprecedented market volatility. For these two businesses, assets under management at December 31, 2008 were
32% and 23% respectively below the 2007 year end levels. These asset reductions, driven by market conditions,
result in top line and bottom line impacts for these businesses. NP LP’s corporate advisory and insurance services
businesses have performed well in 2008, with increases over prior year revenues.
(II) GROSS PROFIT
Gross profit was $22,746, which translated into a 66.2% gross profit margin. This compares to gross profit of
$24,375 for 2007, reflecting a gross profit margin of 67.9%.
(III) SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $10,079 compared with
$8,574 in 2007. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues was 29.3%, compared to
23.9% in 2007. The increase relates to changes in senior management at Hargraft.
(IV) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization for the year ended December 31, 2008 was $8,958 compared to $8,476 for 2007. The
largest component of this expense is the amortization of intangible assets which are recorded as a result of
investments made in Operating Partnerships.
(V) WRITE-DOWN OF GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES
During 2008, a write-down of intangible assets in the amount of $77,516 was recorded relating to the Fund’s
investment in each business within the financial services segment. The investment in Brompton was written down
by $29,000. See section “Goodwill and Intangible Write-downs”. There were no write-downs of intangibles assets
in 2007.
(VI) ADJUSTED EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA was $15,243 for the year ended December 31, 2008 and for 2007 the Adjusted EBITDA was
$21,109. EBITDA also includes the income from our equity investment in Brompton.
(VII) INCOME TAX
Current tax expense for 2008 was $19 compared to $6 in 2007. Future tax recovery for the year ended December
31, 2008 was $9,092 compared to Future Tax Expense of $11,739 in 2007.
In 2008, the Fund recorded the write-down in its carrying value of intangibles. This resulted in a recording of
future income tax recovery. Also, due to the Fund suspending distributions in late 2008, it is expected that in
future periods the Fund will be subject to income tax on its taxable income. The Fund is, therefore, required to
record a future tax liability related to timing differences that are expected to reverse between 2008-2010, and for
which there was no future tax liability recorded in 2007. The future tax recovery for 2008 was $9,092 compared
with a future tax expense of $11,739 in 2007.
(VIII) LOSS
Net loss for 2008 was $(92,790) compared to net loss of $(1,206) in 2007.
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MARKETING
The Marketing segment includes the Fund’s proportionate share of the results of S&E, Gemma, Capital C, IC Group
and Armstrong.
S&E
Gemma

-

Capital C
IC Group

-

Armstrong

-

Provider of sports related marketing, sponsorship and event management services
Outsourced contact centre operator providing outbound revenue generation and inbound
customer care services
Integrated marketing services agency
Provider of on-line promotional and loyalty programs and a provider of select insurance
products
Fully integrated marketing agency providing in-store promotional marketing, digital and
social media marketing solutions

Summary Financial Table ($000s)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Revenues

2009

2008

$ 88,400

$ 94,036

Cost of revenues
Gross profit

(56,148)

(58,181)

$ 32,252

$ 35,855

Selling, general and administrative expenses

2007

$ 86,816
(52,818)
$ 33,998

(18,535)

(20,642)

(19,428)

Amortization expense

(7,052)

(6,268)

(6,586)

Depreciation expense

(1,485)

(1,474)

(1,542)

(50)

43

-

(184)

(309)

(309)

(1,274)

(15,063)

(2,987)

-

(19)

-

(82)

2,518

(6,224)

Income from equity investments
Interest expense
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Income tax expense-current
Income tax (expense)recovery -future
Income (loss) for the year

$

3,590

$

(5,359)

$

(3,078)

Income (loss) for the year

$

3,590

$

(5,359)

$

(3,078)

Add:
Amortization

7,052

6,268

6,586

Depreciation

1,485

1,474

1,542

184

309

309

-

19

-

82

(2,518)

6,224

Interest expense
Income expense – current
Income tax expense (recovery) -future
EBITDA

$ 12,393

Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Adjusted EBITDA

$

193

1,274

15,063

$ 13,667

$ 15,256

$

11,583

$

14,570

2,987

2009 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2008
(I) REVENUES
Revenues for the Marketing segment were $88,400, a 6% decrease over 2008 revenues of $94,036.
In general, all five businesses within the marketing segment were impacted to various degrees by client budget
reductions in light of the uncertain economy. The first half of the year was marked by clients reducing marketing
spending either deferring or cancelling their advertising and marketing programs. The second half of the year
showed signs of growing confidence and client spending improvements.
Gemma had a challenging year as it recovered from the reduced credit card marketing revenue from its large
financial services clients. Significant progress was made during the year in securing new clients and expanding
services with existing clients. Gemma’s revenue mix changed during the year from being weighted towards
outbound sales support to a mix of inbound customer care and outbound sales.
Armstrong had a satisfactory year considering the economic climate. Revenues were down from prior year as
clients reduced their advertising budgets. Armstrong focused on diversifying its service offering to attract new
clients and to offer expanded advertising and marketing options to existing clients.
IC Group had its most successful year since it was acquired. Revenues were significantly above prior year levels
primarily due to increased interactive revenues and prizing revenue from a few key accounts.
Capital C’s revenues were comparable to prior year, despite a slow start to the year. The first half of the year was
marked by reduced client spending as clients deferred their marketing budgets until signs of a stronger economy.
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There was a surge in business in the last quarter of the year as clients fulfilled pent up demand for marketing
services. Capital C also benefited from client development activities and from client consolidation of marketing
services providers.
S&E experienced reduced revenues compared to prior year as two major clients reduced their business volumes.
Some progress was made during the year in securing new accounts and building its client base.
(II) GROSS PROFIT
Gross profit for the Marketing segment was $32,252 and gross margin was 36.5% for the year ended December 31,
2009. For the comparative year ended December 31, 2008, gross profit was $35,855 and gross profit margin was
38.1%.
The decline in gross margin reflects the competitive landscape and pricing pressure the marketing segment is
experiencing.
(III) SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $18,535 compared to
$20,642 in 2008. These expenses as a percentage of revenues were 21.0% in 2009 compared to 22.0% in 2008. The
decrease relates to cost cutting measures taken to offset some of the revenue decline.
(IV) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization expense was $8,537 for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared with $7,742
in 2008. The largest component of this expense is the amortization of intangible assets, which were recorded as
investments were made in Operating Partnerships. Typically, the level of capital expenditures in this service
segment is low.
(V) WRITE-DOWN OF GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES
During 2009, write-downs of goodwill and intangibles assets in the amount of $1,274 were recorded relating to the
Fund’s investment in S&E. In 2008, write-downs of goodwill and intangible assets in the amount of $15,063 were
recorded relating to the Fund’s investment in Armstrong and S&E. See section ”Goodwill and Intangibles Writedowns”.
(VI) ADJUSTED EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA was $13,667 for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared with $15,256 in 2008.
(VII) INCOME TAX
The current tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $nil, compared to $19 in 2008. Future tax
expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $82, compared to a future tax recovery of $2,518 for 2008.
Please see a discussion on income taxes in the section on Income Taxes.
(VIII) INCOME (LOSS)
Net income for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $3,590, compared to a loss of $(5,359) in 2008. The variance
largely relates to the goodwill and intangible write-offs recorded in 2008.
(IX) SEASONALITY
Seasonality is not typically a material factor for the Marketing segment.
(X) OUTLOOK
The outlook is somewhat optimistic for the marketing segment. It is anticipated that if the economy strengthens,
companies will return to traditional levels of marketing and advertising activities.
Armstrong has seen increased spending in its customer base in the last half of the year and anticipates this trend to
continue. With an expanded service offering, Armstrong is positioned for a strong year.
IC Group’s interactive and loyalty programs are being well received in the market and the outlook for this niche is
positive although there may be some margin pressure. Resources have been added to the insurance division to
grow this business.
Gemma’s outlook is optimistic as client development efforts have seen traction in the year. The increase in inbound
customer care programs provides an opportunity to balance the revenue streams and attract new clients.
Capital C is expecting a solid year as clients continue to have confidence in the economy and client development
efforts show traction.
S&E’s outlook is mixed. New business is being sought and significant efforts are being made in client development
areas. However revenue is not expected to return to prior year levels in the short term.
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2008 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2007
(I) REVENUES
Revenues for the Marketing segment were $94,036 and 8% increase over 2007 revenues of $86,816. The majority of
the increase relates to a strong performance in the year from Capital C. The lengthy business development activities
commenced in mid-2007 at Capital C have resulted in new clients and new assignments, and deeper relationships
with existing clients. Revenues were also higher at Armstrong, but primarily because of final quarter media
purchases, which are primarily flow through revenues. Revenues were largely consistent with prior years at
Gemma, IC Group and S&E. Gemma reported strong revenues in the first half of the year, and has done well in the
second half to replace reducing revenues at financial services clients. IC Group struggled in the first half of the year
to replace revenues lost from US based clients, but had a strong second half with new loyalty programs. S&E has
made some progress in 2008 but retainer fees have been below expectations.
(II) GROSS PROFIT
For the year ended December 31, 2008, gross profit for the Marketing segment was $35,855 and gross profit
margin was 38.1%. For the comparative year ended December 31, 2007, gross profit was $33,998 and gross profit
margin was 39.2%. Gross margins at Capital C and IC Group were largely in line with prior years. Gemma, despite
revenue challenges, has been able to improve margins through operating efficiencies. S&E’s margins have been
gradually improving as the business model moves more to consulting fee based. The drop in consumer spending
has impacted Armstrong’s client base, resulting in lower work volumes and client price pressure.
(III) SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 were $20,642 compared to
$19,428 in 2007. These expenses as a percentage of revenues were 22.0% compared to 22.4% in 2007. These
expenses were largely in line with the previous year. Rationalization of expenses at Armstrong during the year
were offset by higher business development expenses, particularly in the first half of the year, at IC Group.
(IV) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization was $7,742 for the year ended December 31, 2008, compared with $8,128 in 2007.
The largest component of this expense is the amortization of intangible assets, which is recorded as investments
are made in Operating Partnerships.
(V) WRITE-DOWN OF GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES
During the third and fourth quarters of 2008, write-downs of goodwill and intangible assets in the amount of
$15,063 were recorded relating to the Fund’s investment in Armstrong and S&E. In 2007, write-downs of goodwill
and intangible assets in the amount of $2,987 were recorded relating to the Fund’s investment in S&E. See Section
“Goodwill and Intangible Assets”.
(VI) ADJUSTED EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA was $15,256 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $14,570 in 2007.
(VII) INCOME TAX
As discussed in the section on Future Income Taxes, the enactment in June 2007 of Bill C-52 resulted in a
requirement to record a future tax expense in June 2007 related to temporary differences, which will reverse after
2010, between the accounting and tax basis of the Fund’s net assets.
In 2008, the Fund recorded the write-down in its carrying value of intangibles. This resulted in a recording of
future income tax recovery. Also, due to the Fund suspending distributions in late 2008, it is expected that in
future periods the Fund will be subject to income tax on its taxable income. The Fund is, therefore, required to
record a future tax liability related to timing differences that are expected to reverse between 2008-2010, and for
which there was no future tax liability recorded in 2007. The future tax recovery for 2008 was $2,518 compared
with a future tax expense of $6,224 in 2007.
(VIII) LOSS
The loss for the year was $(5,359) compared to a loss of $(3,078) in 2007.
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INDUSTRIAL SERVICES
The Industrial Services segment includes the Fund’s proportionate share of the results of NPC and Quantum Murray.
NPC

-

Quantum Murray

-

Provides oil & gas maintenance, construction and wear technology
services to both the conventional oil and gas industry and to the oil
sands
National provider of demolition, remediation and scrap metal
services

Summary Financial Table ($000s)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
2009

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Amortization expense
Depreciation expense
Interest expense
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Income tax expense-current
Income tax (expense) recovery -future
Income (loss) for the year

$ 397,525
(322,001)
$ 75,524
(50,481)
(8,418)
(10,680)
(8,707)
(18,640)
4,364
$ (17,038)

Add:
Amortization
1
Depreciation
Interest expense
Income tax expense - current
Income tax expense (recovery) -future
EBITDA
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Adjusted EBITDA

8,418
10,680
8,707
(4,364)
$ 6,403
18,640
$ 25,043

2008

$
$

$

$
$

2007

438,781
(351,873)
86,908
(57,072)
(13,448)
(8,930)
(9,454)
(39,994)
(6)
(182)
(42,178)

$
$

$

13,448
9,049
9,454
6
182
(10,039)
39,994
29,955

296,943
(234,248)
62,695
(33,804)
(10,532)
(5,719)
(4,867)
(674)
7,099

$
$

10,532
5,719
4,867
674
28,891
28,891

1 Depreciation of $nil relating to production equipment has been included in cost of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2009 (2008 - $119; 2007 - $nil).
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
2009
QUANTUM
MURRAY

NPC

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Amortization expense
Depreciation expense
Interest expense
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Income tax expense -current
Income tax (expense) recovery -future
Income (loss) for the year
Add:
Amortization
Depreciation
Interest expense
Income tax expense - current
Income tax expense (recovery) -future
EBITDA
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Adjusted EBITDA
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$
$

$

$
$

255,159
(206,798)
48,361
(28,883)
(5,291)
(5,964)
(8,222)
(17,573)
2,112
(15,460)

5,291
5,965
8,222
(2,112)
1,905
17,573
19,478

2008

$
$

$

$
$

142,366
(115,203)
27,163
(21,598)
(3,127)
(4,716)
(485)
(1,067)
2,253
(1,578)

3,127
4,716
485
(2,252)
4,498
1,067
5,565

30

QUANTUM
MURRAY

NPC

$
$

$

$
$

294,963
(242,175)
52,788
(30,841)
(6,326)
(5,970)
(9,118)
(25,283)
(6)
1,151
(23,605)

6,326
6,089
9,118
6
(1,151)
(3,217)
25,283
22,066

2007

$
$

$

$
$

143,818
(109,698)
34,120
(26,231)
(7,122)
(2,960)
(336)
(14,711)
(1,333)
(18,573)

7,122
2,960
336
1,333
(6,822)
14,711
7,889

$
$

$

$
$

NPC

QUANTUM
MURRAY

186,695
(156,720)
29,975
(14,036)
(4,102)
(3,998)
(4,692)
320
3,467

$ 110,248
(77,528)
$ 32,720
(19,768)
(6,430)
(1,721)
(175)
(994)
$
3,632

4,102
3,998
4,692
(320)
15,939
15,939

6,430
1,721
175
994
12,952
12,952

$
$
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2009 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2008
(I) REVENUES
Revenues from the Industrial Services segment were $397,525 compared with $438,781 in 2008, a decrease of 9.4%
NPC’s revenues for the year reflect increased revenues from the oil sands services divisions compared to a year ago,
but these increases are offset by lower demand for conventional oil and gas services. The oil sands divisions have
benefited from increased volumes in the wear technology divisions which are operating at capacity. Demand for
maintenance and labour supply activities in the oil sands sector improved as the year progressed with levels
returning to historical levels in the fourth quarter. With limited exceptions, the conventional oil and gas services
divisions are experiencing reduced volumes across the board, and are unlikely to see a return to previous levels
while gas prices remain depressed.
Quantum Murray’s revenues for the year on a divisional basis were mixed. The remediation division benefited
throughout the year from one large project for the Ontario Ministry of the Environment. This project was
completed in December 2009. In addition, the remediation division’s results include revenues from two Arctic
projects for the Canadian government. Conversely, the demolition and metals divisions revenues were below prior
year levels. The demolition division’s revenues are significantly reduced as this division continues to experience
reduced volumes as larger industrial demolition projects remain on hold, and smaller commercial projects are
aggressively priced. The demolition division has been most impacted by the economic downturn and its impact on
the construction, auto, steel and petro-chemical industries. The metal division had a difficult year as scrap prices
fluctuated and industrial and demolition scrap volumes were down.
(II) GROSS PROFIT
Gross profit was $75,524 for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared with $86,908 in 2008. Gross profit
margins were 19.0% compared to 19.7% in 2008. Gross margins were higher at NPC but are reduced at Quantum
Murray compared to a year ago.
NPC’s gross margin improvement reflects the contribution of its oil sands wear technology divisions. This has more
than offset margin compression in its maintenance divisions where there is fierce competition for a declining
amount of work. In addition, these divisions experienced losses early in the year from project cost overruns. Steps
were taken during the year to improve the focus and discipline around project management which has shown
positive results.
At Quantum Murray gross margins are under pressure in all three divisions compared to a year ago. Larger
industrial projects, where margins have historically been strong, are currently on the shelf, and this impacts both
the demolition and scrap metals divisions. Also, margins were impacted in the demolition division in the first
quarter from cost overruns, and in the metals division margins were compressed as competition for buying scrap
metal increased direct costs.
(III) SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses were $50,481 for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to
$57,072 in 2008. These expenses as a percentage of revenues were 12.7%, reduced from 13.0% in 2008. Expenses
at NPC have been reduced, particularly in the conventional divisions where revenues have been significantly
reduced, and further cost savings initiatives are being explored. Expenses at Quantum Murray have been reduced
from a year ago, primarily at the demolition division where headcount and truck fleets have been reduced.
(IV) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization was $19,098 for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared with $22,378 in 2008.
The largest component of this expense is the amortization of intangible assets, which were recorded as investments
were made in Operating Partnerships.
(V) WRITE-DOWN OF GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES
During 2009, write-downs of goodwill and intangibles assets in the amount of $18,640 were recorded relating to
the Fund’s investments in both NPC and Quantum Murray compared to $39,994 in 2008. See section ”Goodwill and
Intangibles Write-downs”.
(VI) ADJUSTED EBITDA
The Industrial Services segment produced $6,403 of EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared with
$(10,039) of EBITDA earned in 2008 reflecting higher intangible asset write-downs in 2008. Adjusted EBITDA for
the year ended December 31, 2009 was $25,043 compared to $29,955 in 2008.
(VII) INCOME TAX
The future tax recovery relating to the assets of the Industrial Services segment was $4,364 for the year ended
December 31, 2009 compared to a future tax expense of $182 in 2008.
Current taxes for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $nil compared to $6 for 2008.
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Please see a discussion on income taxes in the section on Future Income Taxes.
(VIII) LOSS
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $(17,038) compared to a net loss of $(42,178) in 2008.
(IX) SEASONALITY
NPC’s revenues and profits are impacted by seasonality and weather conditions. For example, severe winter
conditions and excessively rainy periods can delay equipment moves and thereby adversely affect revenues. Spring
break-up typically occurs in March and April leaving many roads temporarily incapable of supporting heavy
equipment travel, thereby negatively impacting NPC’s business.
Quantum Murray’s remediation activity can be reduced in the winter months, depending on assignment location
and weather. In addition, due to the timing of large contracts, quarterly results can fluctuate.
(X) OUTLOOK
NPC expects the strong demand for its specialty wear technology services to continue. The operating divisions
focusing on conventional gas, and construction and fabrication divisions will be slow to return to prior year levels
while oil and gas prices remain low. There is some optimism that with the announcement of four large oil sands
projects, there will be increased demand for fabrication work.
Quantum Murray’s outlook is mixed. With the signs of an economic recovery the industrial demolition division
should see increased activity. It is unlikely the remediation division will secure another project similar to the
magnitude of the 2009 project from the Ontario Ministry of the Environment, however many projects are in the
pipeline. The Metals division outlook will largely be dependant on the recovery of industrial activity in Ontario.
2008 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2007
(I) REVENUES
Revenues from the Industrial Services segment were $438,781 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared
with $296,943 in 2007. This reflects a 47.8% increase over the previous year. Revenue growth is from a
combination of organic growth, and the inclusion of a full year of revenues in 2008 from investments made during
2007.
NPC’s revenues on its conventional oil and gas services business increased over 2007. This was despite a significant
reduction in construction services revenues. Volatile commodity prices typically have had an indirect and limited
impact on conventional maintenance service providers. Since the significant drop in oil prices, sustained low
commodity prices have caused delays or postponements of construction projects, and have also caused increased
competition within the maintenance sector as construction service businesses attempt to replace lost revenues by
entering the maintenance service business. The oil sands services division has a more diverse services offering and
therefore is less impacted by low oil prices. While its construction services have also been impacted this year, all
other service areas, including trucking, maintenance and wear technology services have been very active, and all
have shown considerable growth over the previous year.
Quantum Murray reported revenues above those of 2007 despite finishing the year in a very challenging economy.
In 2008, the results of the demolition and metals divisions were severely impacted by reducing scrap metal revenues
as commodity prices declined significantly. In addition, a slowing economy signalled delays and postponements of
industrial demolition projects, and there was also intensified competitive pressures on the fewer commercial
projects being brought to market. Revenue challenges at these divisions was more than offset by a strong revenue
performance from the Environmental division which generated better than expected results, in part due to work
secured in the Arctic, and strong activity in BC and Alberta.
(II) GROSS PROFIT
Gross profit was $86,908 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared with $62,695 in 2007. Gross profit
margins were 19.8% compared to 21.1% in 2007. The conventional maintenance services business of NPC
experienced increase competition and pricing pressure. The oil sands division had a better experience due to
stronger demand for its higher margin wear technology services.
Based on first half results, it was looking as if Quantum Murray would report record results, but from the third
quarter gross margins were significantly impacted by the drop in scrap metal prices. The unprecedented commodity
price declines in the late summer surprised many industry participants. The impact on the metals division was
twofold, with declining margins on sales, and write-downs of inventories on hand. In addition, the demolition
division was working on a number of projects where the scrap metal revenue component was very high, resulting
in significant reserves being taken on these projects against anticipated revenues.
(III) SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses were $57,072 for the year ended December 31, 2008, compared to
$33,804 in 2007. The dollar increase is largely attributable to the fact that 2007 includes only five months of the
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results of Golosky. These expenses as a percentage of revenues increased to 13.0% for the year ended December
31, 2008, compared to 11.4% in 2007. Integration of operations took longer than expected.
(IV) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization was $22,378 for the year ended December 31, 2008, compared with $16,251 in
2007. The largest component of this expense is the amortization of intangible assets which is recorded as
investments are made in Operating Partnerships.
(V) WRITE-DOWN OF GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES
During the fourth quarter of 2008, write-downs of goodwill and intangible assets in the amount of $39,994 were
recorded relating to the Fund’s investments in both NPC and Quantum Murray. There were no write-downs of
goodwill and intangible assets in 2007. See Section “Goodwill and Intangible Assets”.
(VI) ADJUSTED EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA was $29,955 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $28,891 in 2007.
(VII) INCOME TAX
As discussed in the section on Future Income Taxes, the enactment in June 2007 of Bill C-52 resulted in a
requirement to record a future tax expense in June 2007 related to temporary differences, which will reverse after
2010, between the accounting and tax basis of the Fund’s net assets.
In 2008, the Fund recorded the write-down in its carrying value of intangibles. This resulted in a future income tax
recovery. Also, due to the Fund suspending distributions in late 2008, it is expected that in future periods the Fund
will be subject to income tax on its taxable income. The Fund is, therefore, required to record a future tax liability
related to timing differences that are expected to reverse between 2008-2010, and for which there was no future
tax liability recorded in 2007. The future tax expense for 2008 was $182 compared with a future tax expense of
$674 in 2007.
(VIII) INCOME (LOSS)
Loss for the year was $(42,178) compared to income of $7,099 in 2007.
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OTHER
The Other segment includes the Fund’s proportionate share of the results of Rlogistics, Peerless, Titan and Gusgo.
Peerless
Titan

-

Gusgo
Rlogistics

-

Supplier of garments to the Canadian military
Manufacturer and distributor of rigging products, rigging services and ground
engaging tools
Provider of container transportation and storage services
Reseller of close-out, discount and refurbished consumer electronic and household
goods

Summary Financial Table ($000s)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Revenues

2009

2008

2007

$ 71,159

$ 85,534

$ 93,015

(50,454)

(61,496)

(68,742)

$ 20,705

$ 24,038

$ 24,273

(10,958)

(13,238)

(7,353)

(6,829)

(13,437)
(6,870)

Cost of revenues
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Amortization expense
Depreciation expense

(728)

(596)

(704)

Income from equity investments

1,110

1,471

1,307
(2,427)

Interest expense
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Income tax recovery (expense) - future
Loss for the year

$

(923)

(1,486)

(7,554)

(12,786)

-

1,633

1,607

(7,164)

(4,068)

$

(7,819)

$

(5,022)

Add:
Amortization

7,353

6,829

1

810

689

704

923

1,486

2,427

Depreciation

Interest expense
Income tax (recovery) expense - future

(1,633)

EBITDA

(1,607)

7,164

(422)

$ 12,143

7,554

12,786

-

$ 10,939

$ 12,364

$ 12,143

$

Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Adjusted EBITDA

6,870

3,385

$

1 Depreciation of $82 relating to production equipment has been included in cost of revenues (2008 - $93; 2007 - $nil).

2009 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2008
(I) REVENUES
Revenues for the Other segment were $71,159 for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to $85,534 in 2008
a decrease of 16.8%.
The majority of the decline in revenue relates to Titan. Throughout 2009, Titan has been challenged by the
difficult economy in Alberta. Slower construction and drilling activity has resulted in revenue reductions across all
product lines compared to prior year. Peerless’ revenues were higher than prior year as a result of full production
on two large government contracts that were awarded in late 2008. Gusgo’s revenues were below prior year, a
reflection of the recession and its impact on the transportation industry. Some of the decrease was offset by
storage services revenues.
(II) GROSS PROFIT
Gross profit was $20,705 for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared with $24,038 for 2008. Gross profit
margins were 29.1%, compared to 28.1% in 2008.
With Titan’s decline in revenue as well as competitive pressure on margins, gross profit and margins significantly
decreased from a year ago.
As production ramped up at Peerless on the two large government contracts, production efficiencies were achieved
and gross margins were strengthened as the year progressed.
Gusgo was able to maintain margins despite competitive pressure in the transportation sector.
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(III) SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses were $10,958 for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared with
$13,238 for 2008. These expenses as a percentage of revenues were 15.4%, compared to 15.5% in 2008. The
reduction in these expenses is attributable to Titan. Significant cost controls were implemented throughout the
year to offset the decline in revenues.
(IV) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization was $8,081 for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to $7,425 in 2008.
The largest component of this expense is the amortization of intangible assets, which were recorded as investments
were made in Operating Partnerships.
(V) WRITE-DOWN OF INTANGIBLES
As at December 31, 2009, write-downs of intangible assets in the amount of $7,554 relating to the Titan and Gusgo
investments were recorded compared to $12,786 in 2008. See section “Goodwill and Intangible Write-downs”.
(VI) ADJUSTED EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA after adding back goodwill and intangible write-offs for this segment was $10,939 compared with
$12,364 in 2008. EBITDA includes the income from the Fund’s equity investment in Rlogistics of $1,110 compared
to $1,471 in the prior year.
(VII) INCOME TAXES
The future tax recovery relating to the assets of Other segment was $1,633 for the year ended December 31, 2009,
compared to $1,607 in 2008.
For a description of these changes see Income Taxes below.
(VIII) LOSS
Loss for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $(4,068) compared to $(7,819) in 2008.
(IX) SEASONALITY
Peerless’ business is not subject to material seasonal variance. However, due to the timing of large government
contracts, annual revenues and EBITDA can sometimes fluctuate significantly.
Titan’s business is positively impacted by severe cold and harsh weather conditions that create increased demand
for replacement parts on heavy equipment and snow-removal related products. The first and fourth quarters have
historically been the strongest.
Seasonality is not typically a material factor for Gusgo.
(X) OUTLOOK
Peerless will continue to benefit from the two Ministry of Defence contracts well into 2010. Since Peerless’ revenue
is dependant on the awarding of government contracts it is difficult to predict the timing of new contracts.
There is cautious optimism that Titan will have a stronger upcoming year. Drilling activity is expected to slowly
increase and upcoming oil sands projects should translate into improved revenues for Titan.
As the economy recovers, Gusgo should see revenues return in time to prior year levels as it has a solid client base.

2008 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2007
(I) REVENUES
Revenues from this segment were $85,534 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared with $93,015 in 2007.
This represents a decrease of 8.0%. This decrease can be attributed to the results of Peerless which were impacted
throughout 2008 by delays in the awarding of federal government contracts on which it had bid. Peerless
manufactures outerwear for the Canadian military but its revenue levels are dependent on the timing of the
release of contracts. Gusgo experienced some US based client loss at the beginning of the year. The slowing
economy also led to a contraction in its transportation business but Gusgo was largely able to replace reducing
revenues through offering storage services to its client base, resulting in revenues at a similar level to 2007. Titan is
a distributor of drilling products to the oil and gas industry, and of ground engaging tools to the transportation
and construction industries. Slower construction activity impacted revenues and slow drilling activity in the first
half of 2008 negatively impacted Titan revenues. There was some improvement in the second half of 2008,
resulting in Titan’s revenues ending the year at levels similar to 2007.
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(II) GROSS PROFIT
Gross profit was $24,038 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared with $24,273 in 2007. Gross profit
margins were 28.1%, compared to 26.1% a year ago. The improvement in gross margin came from both Peerless
and Gusgo. Improved operational efficiencies underline Peerless’ performance in 2008, and Gusgo benefited from
higher margin revenues from storage services which were introduced in 2008. Titan’s margins were slightly reduced
from a year ago reflecting product mix variation.
(III) SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses were $13,238 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared with
$13,437 in 2007. These expenses as a percentage of revenues were 15.5%, compared to 14.4% in 2007.
(IV) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization was $7,425 for the year ended December 31, 2008, compared to $7,574 in 2007. The
largest component of this expense is the amortization of intangible assets, which is recorded as investments are
made in Operating Partnerships.
(V) WRITE-DOWN OF GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES
During the third and fourth quarters of 2008, write-downs of goodwill and intangible assets in the amount of
$12,786 were recorded relating to the Fund’s investment in Titan. There were no write-downs of intangible assets
in 2007. See Section “Goodwill and Intangible Assets”.
(VI) ADJUSTED EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA was $12,364 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to $12,143 in 2007.
(VII) INCOME TAX
As discussed in the section on Future Income Taxes, the enactment in June 2007 of Bill C-52 resulted in a
requirement to record a future tax expense in June 2007 related to temporary differences, which will reverse after
2010, between the accounting and tax basis of the Fund’s net assets.
In 2008, the Fund recorded the write-down in its carrying value of intangibles. This resulted in a future income tax
recovery. Also, due to the Fund suspending distributions in late 2008, it is expected that in future periods the Fund
will be subject to income tax on its taxable income. The Fund is, therefore, required to record a future tax liability
related to timing differences that are expected to reverse between 2008-2010, and for which there was no future
tax liability recorded in 2007. The future tax recovery for 2008 was $1,607 compared with a future tax expense of
$7,164 in 2007.
(VIII) LOSS
The loss for the year was $(7,819) compared to a loss of $(5,022) in 2007.
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CORPORATE
The Corporate segment includes head office administrative and legal costs, as well as interest costs.
Summary Financial Table ($000s)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
2009

Selling, general and administrative expenses

$ (12,803)

Depreciation expense
Interest expense
Write-down of goodwill
Loss on dilution of ownership interest
Income tax expense-current
Income tax (expense) recovery-future
Loss for the year

2008

$

(6,808)

2007

$

(6,009)

(119)

(127)

-

(30,768)

(30,021)

(23,437)

(3,567)

(85,940)

-

-

(845)

(6,958)

(18)

-

(4)

2,676

628

(49)

$ (44,599)

$ (123,113)

$ (36,457)

Add:
Depreciation expense
Interest expense
Income tax expense – current
Income tax expense (recovery)-future
EBITDA
Loss on dilution of ownership interest
Write-down of goodwill
Adjusted EBITDA

119

127

-

30,768

30,021

23,437

18

-

4

(2,676)

(628)

49

$ (16,370)

$ (93,593)

-

845

3,567

85,940

$ (12,803)

$

(6,808)

$ (12,967)
6,958
$

(6,009)

2009 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2008
(I) SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses were $12,803 for the year ended December 31, 2009, compared to
$6,808 for 2008. The increase over the prior year can be broken into five components. The cost of securing the
Forbearance Agreement was approximately $1,000 and includes legal and accounting costs of the Fund and the
Senior Lenders. Approximately $1,000 related to severance and associated costs of ex-employees. Additional legal
costs were incurred relating to review of conversion to a corporation, other corporate initiatives, lawsuits and
general corporate matters, and account for approximately $1,000 of the increase. Additional corporate advisory
services accounted for $900 of the increase, and, finally, an approximate $2,100 of the increase relates to additional
salary and travel costs associated with the new, expanded senior management team. This team has been in place
for most of 2009, and increased travel costs reflect the commitment to a greater operational focus with our
investments.
(II) INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest expense was $30,768 for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $30,021 for 2008. Interest
expense relates to the Senior Credit Agreement, the revolving line of credit and the Debentures. The Fund has
accrued interest expense of $11,938 on the Debentures but is contractually prohibited from paying it under the
Forbearance Agreement with its senior lender. While debt levels have been reduced by repayments of $100 million
in the last quarter of the year, interest expense is at a similar level to 2008 as the current year includes $3,501 of
default interest and $1,850 of forbearance fees.
(III) INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The future tax recovery relating to assets of the Corporate segment was $2,676 for the year ended December 31,
2009, compared to $628 in 2008. Current tax expense for the year was $18 compared to $nil in 2008.
Please see a discussion on income taxes in the section on Income Taxes.
(IV) LOSS
The loss for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $(44,599), compared to $(123,113) for 2008. The decreased loss
reflects higher intangible and goodwill write-downs in 2008.
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(V) OUTLOOK
Selling, general and administrative expenses are expected to remain at levels similar to those of 2009 as higher
operational and restructuring costs continue to be incurred. The Fund’s level of interest expense will be dependent
upon the outcome of its efforts to restructure its balance sheet.
2008 RESULTS COMPARED TO 2007
(I) SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Selling, general and administrative expenses were $6,808 for the year ended December 31, 2008. This compares to
$6,009 for 2007. Expenses in 2008 were higher than 2007 as expenses include legal and other costs associated with
transactions that did not close in 2008.
(II) INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest expense of $30,021 for the year ended December 31, 2008, relates to the credit facility and the convertible
debentures. This compares to $23,437 in 2007, and the increased interest expense reflects higher average balances
outstanding during 2008, and the write-off of deferred financing charges related to the credit facility, now shown
as a current liability. Non-cash amounts included in interest expense were $8,345 (2007 - $2,797).
(III) ADJUSTED EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA was a loss of $6,808 for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to a loss of $6,009 in 2007.
(IV) INCOME TAX
As discussed in the section on Future Income Taxes, the enactment in June 2007 of Bill C-52 resulted in a
requirement to record a future tax expense in June 2007 related to temporary differences, which will reverse after
2010, between the accounting and tax basis of the Fund’s net assets.
In 2008, the Fund recorded the write-down in its carrying value of goodwill, which did not result in a tax recovery.
This resulted in future income taxes. Also, due to the Fund suspending distributions in late 2008, it is expected that
in future periods the Fund will be subject to income tax on its taxable income. The Fund is, therefore, required to
record a future tax liability related to timing differences that are expected to reverse between 2008-2010, and for
which there was no future tax liability recorded in 2007. The future tax recovery for 2008 was $628 and a future
tax expense of $49 for 2007.
(V) LOSS
The loss for the year was ($123,113) compared to ($36,457) in 2007.
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On October 1, 2009, the Fund sold 100% of its investment in Elliot Special Risks LP (“ESR”) for net proceeds of
$74,614, resulting in an accounting gain of approximately $31,000, which is included in income (loss) from
discontinued operations.
On September 30, 2008, the Fund sold 100% of the assets of its investment in ATM LP (“Ezee”). The investment
was sold for net proceeds of $30,710 resulting in a loss of $6,848, which is included in income (loss) from
discontinued operations.
The following table shows the revenue and net income/(loss) from discontinued operations of ESR and Ezee for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.
Condensed Income Statement Information ($000s)
Year ended December 31

Revenues
Net income (loss)

ESR

Ezee

2009
Total

$ 14,502
$ 32,528

-

$ 14,502
$ 32,528

ESR

$ 17,011
$ (20,202)

2008
Total

Ezee

$ 29,975
$ (5,109)

$ 46,986
$ (25,311)

The balance sheet of ESR at December 31, 2008 has been categorized as assets and liabilities of discontinued
operations. The components of these items are as follows:
Balance Sheet Information ($000s)
DECEMBER 31, 2008

Current assets of discontinued operations
Long-term assets of discontinued operations
Current liabilities of discontinued operations
Long-term liabilities of discontinued operations
Net assets of discontinued operations
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FOURTH QUARTER 2009 PERFORMANCE
Summary Financial Table – (segmented) ($000s except per unit amounts)
THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
FINANCIAL
SERVICES

INDUSTRIAL
SERVICES

OTHER

$ 21,458
$ 8,160

$ 98,931
$ 22,665

$ 17,199
$ 4,987

CORPORATE1

$
$

TOTAL

Revenue
Gross profit
Loss from continuing operations before
non-controlling interest
EBITDA
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets

$
$
$

(3,681)

$

(464)

$ (13,020)

$

(1,392)

$ (12,681)

$ (31,238)

$

(5,980)
7,038

$

2,289
1,273

$

(9,210)
18,640

$

2,339
347

$

(3,826)
8

$ (14,388)
27,306

Adjusted EBITDA
2
Interest income (expense)
Non-cash interest expense
Income tax (expense) recovery-current
Maintenance capital expenditures and reserves
Capital lease payments
4
Priority income per partnership agreement

$

1,058
35
(4)
(323)
-

$

3,562
(69)
(188)
(140)
-

$

9,430
(724)
1,062
(1,955)
-

$

2,686
(220)
(55)
(52)
79

$

(3,818)
(7,778)
893
16
-

$ 12,918
(8,756)
893
12
496
(2,147)
79

Distributable cash from continuing operations
Cash from discontinued operations

$

766

$

3,165

$

7,813

$

2,438

$ (10,687)

Distributable cash retained by the Fund

7,139
4,483

MARKETING

-

$ 144,727
$ 40,295

5

Summary Financial Table – (segmented)

$

3,495
-

$

3,495

($000s except per unit amounts)

THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
FINANCIAL
SERVICES

Revenue
Gross profit
Loss from continuing operations before noncontrolling interest
EBITDA
Loss on dilution of ownership interest
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets

$
$

8,148
5,236

MARKETING

INDUSTRIAL
SERVICES

OTHER

$ 26,777
$ 9,823

$ 111,066
$ 18,203

$ 23,560
$ 6,524

CORPORATE1

$
$

-

TOTAL

$
$

169,551
39,786

$ (75,431)

$

(1,482)

$ (44,473)

$

(6,532)

$

(98,991)

$ (226,909)

$ (81,797)
77,516

$

(1,306)
6,128

$ (35,923)
39,994

$

(4,788)
8,735

$

(88,840)
845
85,940

$ (212,654)
845
218,313

Impairment of long-term investment

7,000

-

-

-

-

7,000

Adjusted EBITDA
2
Interest income (expense)
Non-cash interest expense
Income tax (expense) recovery-current
Maintenance capital expenditures and reserves
Capital lease payments
3
Distribution expensed
4
Priority income per partnership agreement

$

2,719
61
(9)
(263)
(2)
68

$

4,822
(69)
(19)
(372)
(34)
(400)
29

$

4,071
(481)
(2,138)
(904)
(1,586)

$

3,947
(300)
(150)
(66)
(137)

$

(2,055)
(12,617)
5,176
17
4
-

$

13,504
(13,406)
5,176
(11)
(2,919)
(1,006)
(400)
(1,626)

Distributable cash from continuing operations
Cash from discontinued operations

$

2,574

$

3,957

$ (1,038)

$

3,294

$

(9,475)

$

(688)
3,167

$

2,479

Distributable cash retained by the Fund

5

1 The results of the Corporate segment include corporate costs and corporate interest expense.
2 NPF advanced approximately $60,000 to NPC to allow it to complete its investment in Golosky on July 31, 2007. This long-term facility can be converted into equity, if certain future
performance criteria are met, and in anticipation of the triggering targets being met, and also in order to remove the financing component from the operating results of NPC, interest
expense of NPC, and the Industrial Services segment in this Summary Financial table has been reduced by $1,519 and such amount has been added to the interest expense of the
Corporate segment (2008 - $1,577).
3 Management of Gemma has the option to receive its distributions as bonuses. Where this option is chosen, an adjustment is required to calculate the distributable cash to the Fund.
4 To the extent that in any reporting period, calculated on a cumulative basis, the Fund’s proportionate share of distributable cash is more or less than its priority amount, an adjustment to
distributable cash is made to reflect the actual cash distributions payable to the Fund by the Operating Partnership.
5 As there were no distributions made during the current or prior year quarter, distributable cash per unit information has not been provided.
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Summary Results from Continuing Operations ($000s)
QUARTER ENDED DECEMBER 31
2009

Revenues

$

Cost of revenues

144,727

2008

$

(104,432)

Gross profit

$

Selling, general and administrative expenses

40,295

169,551
(129,766)

$

39,786

(27,928)

(26,893)

Amortization expense

(6,914)

(8,773)

Depreciation expense

(4,295)

(3,225)

245

104

(8,758)

(13,406)

Income from equity investments
Interest expense
Loss on dilution of interest in operating partnership
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment of long- term investment
Income tax expense (recovery)-current
Income tax recovery-future

-

(845)

(27,306)

(218,313)

-

(7,000)

12

(11)

3,411

11,667

Loss from continuing operations

$

(31,238)

$

(226,909)

Loss for the period

$

(31,238)

$

(226,909)

Add:
Amortization

6,914

1

4,315

Depreciation

Amortization of Brompton intangible assets
Interest expense
Income tax expense/(recovery)-current
Income tax recovery-future

8,773
3,248

286

484

8,758

13,406

(12)

11

(3,411)

EBITDA

$

Loss on dilution of ownership interest
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment of long-term investment

(14,388)

(11,667)
$

-

845

27,306

218,313

-

Adjusted EBITDA

$

(212,654)

12,918

7,000
$

13,504

1 Depreciation of $20 relating to production equipment has been included in cost of revenues (2008 - $23).

FOURTH QUARTER RESULTS COMMENTARY
The Fund’s continuing operations from its portfolio investments are reported in its four operating segments:
Financial Services, Marketing, Industrial Services and Other. Revenues for the three months ended December 31,
2009 were $144,727 compared to $169,551 in the corresponding 2008 period, a decrease of 14.6%.
Gross profit for the three months ended December 31, 2009 was $40,295 compared to $39,786 in 2008, an increase
of 1.3%. Gross margins were 27.8% for the three months ended December 31, 2009 compared to 23.5% in the
2008 period. The main contributor to the improved gross margin percentage was NPC.
For the three months ended December 31, 2009, these four operating segments produced $16,736 of adjusted
EBITDA for the Fund compared to $15,559 in 2008.
The five largest contributors to adjusted EBITDA in the portfolio for the three months ended December 31, 2009
were NPC, Capital C, Quantum Murray, Peerless, and Morrison Williams.
NPC’s financial results were strong for the final quarter. Oil sands maintenance and labour supply services saw some
strengthening in the quarter and specialty wear technology services of the oil sands operations produced excellent
results.
Capital C had a very strong quarter with revenues reflecting a strong pick up from clients who had delayed or
deferred marketing expenditures earlier in the year. In addition, the Kenna division reported strong results from its
core digital and CRM services.
Quantum Murray’s results for the quarter were mixed. The environmental division performed well as it completed
a large remediation project but the demolition and metals divisions continue to be impacted by the lack of larger
industrial demolition projects.
Newport Partners Income Fund

41

Annual Report 2009

Peerless produced its best quarter of the year through a combination of full production on two large federal
contracts and production efficiencies.
Morrison Williams’ results were as expected for the quarter. The strengthening of the equity markets in the quarter
increased asset values, which were offset by mutual fund redemptions and client rebalancing of portfolios.
Financial performances were mixed at the remaining marketing investments. IC Group benefited from good
revenues from online loyalty programs but is incurring more costs to support its clients. Both Gemma and
Armstrong experienced client reductions, although S&E had strong consulting revenues.
The Fund’s fourth quarter results from Brompton and NP LP were as expected although the latter was impacted by
restructuring costs. 2009 has been a tough year for our insurance investments and the fourth quarter was no
exception. Both were impacted by continuing soft insurance markets, and in particular Hargraft has suffered from
client attrition. The back office operations of these investments have been combined which should provide for a
more cost effective platform going forward.
Results at both Titan and Gusgo were as expected with both investments suffering from local economic challenges.
See “Fourth Quarter 2009 Performance Summary – by Operating Partnership” for details of Fund EBITDA and
distributable cash by individual investment holding.
The Fund’s Corporate segment includes administrative costs to operate the Fund, and the interest costs on
borrowings to fund investments and working capital of its businesses. Corporate office costs were $3,818 for the
three months ended December 31, 2009 compared with $2,055 in 2008. Corporate costs reduced total Adjusted
EBITDA to $12,918 for the three months ended December 31, 2009 compared with $13,504 in 2008, a decrease of
4.3%.
The main items which reduce Adjusted EBITDA to arrive at Distributable Cash are interest expense and capital
expenditures. During the final quarter, cash interest costs were $7,863, compared with $8,230 in 2008. During the
three months ended December 31, 2009, the operating segments had capital expenditures and capital lease
payments of $1,651, as compared to $3,925 in the same period in 2008. The majority of these expenditures were
incurred in the Industrial Services segments.
Distributable cash from continuing operations for the three months ended December 31, 2009 was $3,495,
compared with $2,479 in 2008.
Non-cash items that impacted the results were depreciation and amortization, and future income taxes.
Depreciation and amortization was $11,229 for the three months ended December 31, 2009, against $11,998 for
2008. The largest component of this expense is the amortization of intangible assets, which were recorded as
investments were made.
During the fourth quarter of 2009, the Fund reviewed the carrying value of all of its investments. As the Fund
reviewed its investments, it re-calculated the fair value of tangible assets, intangible assets and goodwill based on
current or expected earnings of the businesses. This review resulted in write-downs of goodwill and intangible
assets of several investments of $27,306 (2008 - $218,313). In 2008 long-term investments were also written down in
the amount of $7,000.
Since 2007 the Fund has been required to record future income tax related to temporary differences at the Fund
level. These differences are between the accounting and tax basis of the Fund’s net assets, and the majority of the
differences relate to intangible assets. As a result of the write-downs of intangible assets in 2009 and 2008, the
Fund has recorded future income tax recoveries in the fourth quarter of $3,411, and $11,667, respectively. The
future income tax recoveries recorded in 2009 and in 2008 are non-cash items that have no current impact on the
Fund’s cash from operating activities.
Net loss for the three months ended December 31, 2009 from continuing operations before non-controlling
interest was $(31,238) compared to a loss of $(226,909) in 2008.
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FOURTH QUARTER 2009 PERFORMANCE SUMMARY – BY OPERATING
PARTNERSHIP
OPERATING
PARTNERSHIP

ADJUSTED
EBITDA
($000s)

DISTRIBUTABLE
CASH ($000s)

Q4 YIELD
(%) (2)

COMMENTARY

FINANCIAL SERVICES
Brompton

Morrison Williams

NP LP

Hargraft

BMI

370

-

1,091

1,091

10.4%

79

81

1.5%

The fourth quarter was NP LP’s strongest revenue quarter of the year. With
improved market conditions and additional contributions from new and existing
clients, AUM increased 18% compared to the prior year quarter. The insurance
services revenues remained strong and were comparable to prior year.
Consulting fees were below prior year levels which reflects the reduced levels of
corporate advisory assignments. The quarter’s results were impacted by one
time non-recurring restructuring costs.

1

(652)

(14.3%)

Hargraft had another challenging quarter as its client base has been targeted by
competition. Hargraft’s transportation clients continued with the trend of
reducing fleet sizes and applying pressure on premiums. The negative EBITDA
for the quarter reflects non-recurring restructuring charges mostly relating to
employee severance costs.

225

1

246

5.4%

The fourth quarter results reflect the continued competitive commercial
insurance market. The competitive pressure on rates as well as the economic
contraction continues to impact BMI’s commission income. There has been
some progress made in growing other business segments with some promise
for future quarters.

1,058

766

(707)

-

During the fourth quarter, net AUM increased by approximately $245 million
largely as a result of Brompton’s appointment as manager of two new funds.
Market appreciation of the value of assets held by the Brompton funds was
offset by regular annual redemptions in certain funds. Brompton continues to
search for and structure new investment products which can be brought to
market.
The fourth quarter results for Morrison Williams were as expected. The
strengthening of the equity markets in the quarter increased asset values,
which were offset by mutual fund redemptions and client rebalancing of
portfolios. AUM remained flat from the third to fourth quarter. Management
continues to focus on client retention to maintain a stable client base.

MARKETING
S&E

(71)

1

(80)

(5.6%)

S&E had a satisfactory quarter with solid revenue and gross margin levels from
consulting assignments, which bodes well for 2010. The results for the quarter
were impacted by legal fees and performance bonuses.

Gemma

805

636

9.1%

Gemma had a mixed fourth quarter with revenues below expectations due to a
significant client reducing its telesales budget. Typically the fourth quarter sees
a year end push for telesales as clients ramp up for year end sales objectives.
Offsetting some of the telesales decline was an unpredicted increase in inbound
volumes which are typically lower during the holiday season.

Capital C

2,114

1,914

31.9%

The fourth quarter was Capital C’s strongest of the year. During the first half of
the year Capital C found its clients deferring marketing spending in light of the
weak economy. There was a surge in business in the last quarter due to the
pent up demand for marketing services and clients growing confidence in the
economy. Client development efforts also contributed to the successful results
as new multi-national clients came on board.

IC Group

552

521

19.3%

The fourth quarter results were mixed as revenues were strong however low
margin prizing revenue and a cost overrun on one program resulted in lower
margins than previous quarters in the year and the prior year quarter. In
addition, the strong Canadian dollar negatively impacted gross margins.
Insurance revenues significantly dropped in the fourth quarter. The insurance
division has added resources and renewed marketing efforts in order to reestablish successful revenue growth.

Armstrong

162

174

3.5%

Armstrong had a mixed quarter impacted by some clients’ reduced annual
marketing budgets while new client business offset some of the spending
reductions. Clients continue to be cautious with their marketing spending and
are applying pricing pressure. Armstrong has been successful in diversifying its
product offering from traditional in-store promotional services to providing
digital and social media marketing. Armstrong is investing in strategic growth
where it believes sustainable competitive advantages exist.

3,562

3,165
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OPERATING
PARTNERSHIP

ADJUSTED
EBITDA
($000s)

DISTRIBUTABLE
CASH ($000s)

Q4 YIELD
(%) (2)

COMMENTARY

INDUSTRIAL SERVICES
1

6,803

30.6%

2,762

1

1,010

6.2%

The fourth quarter results were mixed as the environmental division had a strong
performance while the demolition and metals divisions continued to struggle. The
environmental division benefited from the completion of the Ontario Ministry of the
Environment project which was increased in scope during the fourth quarter. Low
levels of industrial demolition activity continued to impact the demolition division’s
results. The smaller demolition projects that were completed in the quarter carried
low margins. The metals division continued to be challenged by low levels of
industrial activity and heavy competition for scrap buying.

9,430

7,813

1,728

1,667

18.5%

Peerless had a strong quarter as it continued to produce garments for the two large
Ministry of Defence contracts that were awarded in late 2008/early 2009.
Production efficiencies in material consumption contributed to healthy margins.
With pre-production and subcontractor issues resolved, the outlook is strong for
Peerless as it executes on these two government contracts.

1

173

2.9%

NPC

6,668

Quantum Murray

The fourth quarter results reflected strong revenue and gross margins in some
sectors. The wear technology group continued to provide solid margins and
significantly increased volumes and the maintenance and labour services volumes
were improved over the start of the year. Conversely, the conventional oil and gas
services division had lower volumes due to slowdown in most of Alberta’s
conventional gas exploration and development regions. The fabrication business
remained quite slow in the fourth quarter with the year long slowdown in oil sand
construction activity. The fourth quarter results reflect one time restructuring
charges relating to senior management changes.

OTHER
Peerless

Titan

410

The fourth quarter was another challenging quarter for Titan as volumes have
continued to be significantly below prior years levels. Oil and gas drilling activity in
Alberta remains depressed and while the fourth quarter saw slight increases to oil
prices that would stimulate the industry, there must be sustained recovery in the
Alberta economy before Titan will see full benefits.

Gusgo

343

1

393

12.6%

The fourth quarter continued to show signs of a slow economic recovery in the
transportation industry. Despite Gusgo’s ability to retain its clientele, revenues
remain below prior year levels due to decreased volumes in container transportation.

Rlogistics

205

205

8.2%

Rlogistics continued to face a very competitive retail environment in the fourth
quarter of 2009. Rlogistics has experienced downward pressure on same store sales
and has seen an increase in inventory shrinkage in its retail stores.

2,686

2,438

1 Excludes a write-down of goodwill and intangibles. Refer to the Goodwill and Intangible section for further details.
2 Distributable cash as a percentage (annualized) of weighted, invested capital.

EIGHT QUARTER SUMMARY

– ($000 S

EXCEPT UNIT AMOUNTS)

2009

2009

2009

Q4

Q3

Q2

2009
Q1

2008
Q4

2008
Q3

2008
Q2

2008
Q1

Revenues

$

144,727

$ 158,213

$ 126,077

$ 155,856

$ 169,551

$ 162,924

$ 170,283

$ 149,960

Gross profit
Income (loss) from continuing operations
after non-controlling interest
Net income (loss)
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing
operations
Income (loss) per unit from
continuing operations
Income (loss) per unit

$

40,295

$

39,673

$ 32,138

$

34,282

$

$

39,223

$

48,773

$

41,764

$

(31,483)

$ (11,489)

$ (12,759)

$

(8,855)

$ (234,200)

$ (24,497)

$

614

$

(3,113)

$

(175)

$ (11,986)

$ (10,538)

$

(9,479)

$ (194,959)

$ (28,250)

$

1,560

$

(2,760)

$

12,919

$

15,909

$

7,011

$

7,865

$

13,504

$

14,499

$

22,085

$

15,922

$

(0.44)

$

(0.16)

$

(0.19)

$

(0.18)

$

(4.71)

$

(0.56)

$

0.00

$

(0.07)

$

0.00

$

(0.17)

$

(0.16)

$

(0.19)

$

(4.51)

$

(0.64)

$

0.02

$

(0.07)
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
C O N T R A C T U A L O B L I G A T I O N S ($000s)
2010

Interest expense

$ 36,211

2011

$

5,598

2012

$

5,598

2013

$

-

2014

$

-

THEREAFTER

$

-

TOTAL

$ 47,406

Long-term debt

150,499

-

-

-

-

-

150,499

Convertible debenture*

164,466

-

-

-

-

-

164,466

Capital lease obligations
Operating leases
Total contractual obligations

5,184

3,720

1,673

523

616

-

11,716

11,408

9,672

7,441

5,156

2,580

3,457

39,714

$ 367,768

$ 18,990

$ 14,712

3,457

$ 423,890

$

5,679

$

3,196

$

*Represents face value of principal amounts, which are classified as a current obligation as in they are currently in default

CONTINGENCIES
LAWSUITS
A Statement of Claim has been filed alleging breach of contract and negligence. NPH signed a letter of intent with
a third party to acquire several businesses. The transaction was not completed. The claim is for $630 relating to
third party costs relating to the transaction and $38,600 in damages. A statement of defense has been filed.
Management is of the opinion that this claim is without merit.
A statement of claim has been filed by the controlling shareholder of the minority unitholder of a subsidiary
business and their related companies for an amount of $4,000 plus interest and costs relating to the acquisition of a
company. In addition, damages of a further $900 are being claimed by the plaintiff who alleges that the subsidiary
business is the rightful owner of this company. Management is assessing this claim but its current view is that the
claim is without merit.
A statement of claim has been filed by a minority unitholder of a subsidiary business for damages of $10,000
alleging that the subsidiary business has breached its fiduciary obligations to the unitholder group. Management
feels that the claim is without merit, and intends to vigorously defend itself.
A statement of claim has been filed by a former senior employee of a subsidiary business alleging wrongful
dismissal. The claim is for an amount of $700 along with such damages as may be proven at trial. Management
feels that the claim is without merit and has filed a counter claim of $2,300 including damages.
A statement of claim has been filed by a former employee of the Fund alleging breach of contract, wrongful
dismissal, defamation, and intentional interference with economic relations. The claim is for an amount of $6,500.
Management feels the claim is without merit, and will vigorously defend itself.

TRANSACTIONS

WITH

RELATED PARTIES

OWNERSHIP
As of December 31, 2009, directors, officers and employees and entities related to the Fund beneficially hold an
aggregate of 16,359,238 units or 22.7% on a fully diluted basis.
TRANSACTIONS
NPY provides funding to the Operating Partnerships to fund working capital requirements. Advances bear interest
at the rate of prime plus one percent, are unsecured and are due on demand.
Included in Other Assets are advances of $24.0 million (2008 – $29.1 million) made to the Operating Partnerships.
Selling, general and administrative expenses include $2,803 of rent expense paid to related parties of Quantum
Murray, Gusgo and NPC.
NPH has also arranged for a $20 million subordinated facility from an affiliated entity. $10.1 million has been
advanced to date in accordance with the Amended Forbearance Agreement.
Employee loans, net of provisions, made to employees of the Fund and its subsidiary NP LP, were outstanding in
the amount of $3.5 million (2008 – $4.1 million). In accordance with the terms and conditions of the loans, the
loans are interest bearing and used to fund the purchase of units of the Fund or to refinance such purchases and
are secured by a pledge of the units.
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Mr. Svetkoff, indirectly through Bedford Holdco Inc., a company owned by Mr. Svetkoff, was provided with a loan
in December 2008 in the amount of $643 to refinance his third party loan obtained to purchase Fund Units. The
loan bears interest at prime, is payable quarterly in arrears, and is secured by a pledge of Fund Units, a general
security agreement and a personal guarantee of Mr. Svetkoff and his spouse. Mr. Svetkoff exercises control and
direction over the Fund Units owned by Bedford Holdco Inc. Mr. Svetkoff ceased to be an employee of the Newport
Group effective August 24, 2009. Mr. Svetkoff's loan became due and payable on August 24, 2009 when he left the
employ of Newport Group; the loan is also in default for non-payment of interest. The Fund is currently pursuing
recovery of principal and interest
Mr. Holmberg, indirectly through AMI Canada Corporation, a company owned by Mr. Holmberg, was provided
with a loan in the amount of $250 to purchase Fund Units in June 2006. The loan bears interest at prime, is payable
quarterly, and is secured by a pledge of the Fund Units purchased and a general security agreement. Mr. Holmberg
exercises control and direction over the Fund Units owned by AMI Canada Corporation. Mr. Holmberg ceased to be
an employee of the Fund effective March 6, 2009. Mr. Holmberg's loan became due and payable on March 6, 2009
when he left the employ of Newport Group; the loan is also in default for non-payment of interest. The Fund is
currently pursuing recovery of principal and interest.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On August 4, 2009, the minority limited partner Gemma delivered to NPH an offer letter pursuant to the Shotgun
Buy-Sell provision of the limited partnership agreement governing Gemma. NPH elected to accept the minority
limited partner’s offer to sell its 20% interest in Gemma. The transaction closed on January 4, 2010, at which time,
the Fund paid $4,316 and its interest in Gemma increased to 100%. This transaction will be accounted for using the
purchase method.
The unitholders of the Fund approved an Incentive Option Plan (the "Plan") on November 30, 2009. Pursuant to
the Plan 7,100,590 units of the Fund have been listed and reserved for issuance upon the exercise of the stock
options granted. On January 13, 2010, 7,000,000 options were granted to employees and directors at an exercise
price of $0.403 per unit with options vesting in 2010 through to 2013.
On February 19, 2010, the Fund announced a second amendment to the Forbearance Agreement had been entered
into with the Lenders (the “Second Amendment”). Under the terms of the Second Amendment, the requirement
to repay $35 million by February 28, 2010 has been amended to a requirement to pay $18.5 million. On February
18, 2010 the Fund paid $20 million from cash on hand, which included a $1.5 million rescheduling fee.

2010 OUTLOOK
The main focus for 2010 will be to stabilize the Fund’s balance sheet and exit the Forbearance Period with reduced
and restructured debt. With a new corporate management team in place there is increased focus on operational
efficiencies and strategic growth in certain businesses within the portfolio.
The Financial Services Segment has a mixed outlook. Conditions in the commercial insurance market are expected
to remain challenging into 2010. With insurance capacity in ample supply and client closures and consolidations,
the competitive landscape is expected to continue. For our financial management companies, improvement will be
based on stable or improved financial markets. Morrison Williams believes it will see improvement in AUM, but
new business will take longer to develop. NP LP is focusing on client development to organically grow AUM and to
attract advisory and insurance services business
For the Marketing Segment the outlook is one of cautious optimism. Armstrong has seen increased spending in its
customer base in the last half of the current year and anticipates this trend to continue. IC Group’s interactive and
loyalty programs are being well received in the market and the outlook for this niche is positive although there
may be some margin pressure. Gemma’s outlook is optimistic as the increase in inbound customer care programs
provides an opportunity to balance the revenue streams and attract new clients. Capital C is expecting a solid year
as clients continue to have confidence in the economy and client development efforts show traction. S&E’s outlook
is mixed. New business is being sought and significant efforts are being made in client development areas.
NPC’s expects the strong demand for its specialty wear technology services to continue. The operating divisions
focusing on conventional gas and construction and fabrication divisions will be slow to return to prior year levels
while oil and gas prices remain low. There is some optimism that with the announcement of four large oil sands
projects, there will be increased demand for fabrication work. Quantum Murray’s outlook is mixed. The industrial
demolition division should see increased activity, but it is unlikely the remediation division will secure another
project the magnitude of the 2009 one from the Ontario Ministry of the Environment
In the Other Segment there is a mixed outlook. Peerless will continue to benefit from the two Ministry of Defense
contracts well into 2010. Both Titan and Gusgo have suffered from local economic conditions and will not see a
return to historic business levels until those conditions improve.
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RISK FACTORS
An investment in units of the Fund involves a number of risks. In addition to the other information contained in
this MD&A and the Fund’s other publicly filed disclosure documents, investors should give careful consideration to
the following factors, which are qualified in their entirety by reference to, and must be read in conjunction with,
the detailed information appearing elsewhere in this MD&A. Any of the matters highlighted in these risk factors
could have a material adverse effect on the Fund’s results of operations, business prospects or financial condition.
The Fund was in default of covenants on its Senior Credit Agreement and has entered into a Forbearance
Agreement with its’ Lenders. The agreement requires that the Fund repays all of the indebtedness under the
Senior Credit Agreement by July 21, 2010. There can be no guarantee that the Fund will be successful in achieving
this, and that the Lenders would not enforce their default-related rights and remedies.
The Fund is in default of its obligations under the Trust Indenture governing the Debentures. As a result of the
default all obligations are due. The Fund is in discussion with principal holders of the unsecured subordinated
convertible debentures with a view to restructuring these obligations. There can be no guarantee that the Fund
will be successful in these restructuring efforts, and that the debenture holders would not pursue remedies
available to them.
Our financial results are impacted by the performance of each of our Operating Partnerships and various external
factors influencing their operating environments. While stronger performance by one of the Operating
Partnerships may compensate for weaker performance by another of the Operating Partnerships, any negative
effects on the financial condition or results of operations of an Operating Partnership have a negative effect on the
financial condition or results of operations of the Fund.
The Fund’s performance will be impacted by its ability to comply with the terms of the Forbearance Agreement.
Please refer to the AIF dated March 8, 2010 for a discussion of Risk Factors particular to the Operating Partnerships
and the Fund.

FAILURE

TO

REALIZE ANTICIPATED BENEFITS

OF INVESTMENTS

MADE

The Fund and a number of its Operating Partnerships may partner with additional entrepreneurs in the future. The
ability to identify new partnership opportunities and to acquire an ownership interest in new partnerships at
attractive prices is not guaranteed. Achieving the benefits of future acquisitions will depend in part on successfully
consolidating functions and integrating operations, procedures and personnel of all of the partnerships in a timely
and efficient manner. The integration of these future acquisitions will require the dedication of management
effort, time and resources, which may divert management’s focus and resources from other strategic opportunities
and from operational matters during this process. The integration process may result in the disruption of ongoing
business and customer and employee relationships that may adversely affect the Fund or an Operating
Partnership’s ability to achieve the anticipated benefits of future acquisitions.

BUSINESS VALUATIONS
Historically, we have been able to invest in excellent private businesses. There is no certainty that we will continue
to do so. Market conditions, competitive factors, and the availability of suitable investments will have some impact
on the prices at which we are able to acquire additional cash flows. The Fund’s ability to exit the Forbearance
Period and to access capital will be a significant factor in the Fund’s ability to make further investments.

CONDITION

OF

CAPITAL MARKETS

The condition of the capital markets represents two risks to the Fund. If the Fund is successful in exiting its
Forbearance Period and restructuring its balance sheet, the Fund may resume its investment program that will
require capital. There can be no assurance that this financing will be available when required or available on terms
that are favourable to the Fund. This has the potential to hamper our growth.
Second, the condition of the capital markets also impacts the revenues and profits of our asset management
businesses. We believe we have strong management teams operating these businesses, each with decades of
experience in capital markets.

DEPENDENCE

ON

KEY PERSONNEL

The success of the Fund and of each of its Operating Partnerships depends on their respective senior management
teams and other key employees, including their ability to retain and attract skilled management and employees.
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The loss of the services of key personnel could have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition,
results of operations or future prospects of the Fund and its Operating Partnerships. In addition, the growth plans
described in this AIF may require additional employees, increase the demand on management and produce risks in
both productivity and retention levels. The Fund and its Operating Partnerships may not be able to attract and
retain additional qualified management and employees as needed in the future. There can be no assurance that
the Fund will be able to effectively manage its future growth, and any failure to do so could have a material
adverse effect on the Fund’s business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects.

GENERAL ECONOMIC FACTORS
The Fund’s business and the business of each of our Operating Partnerships is subject to changes in general
economic conditions including but not limited to, recessionary or inflationary trends, equity market levels,
consumer credit availability, interest rates, consumers’ disposable income and spending levels, job security and
unemployment, and overall consumer confidence. We believe the risk from general economic factors is reduced by
having a diverse source of cash flows from businesses that perform differently at different points in the cycle.

LIMITED CUSTOMER BASES
Some of the Operating Partnerships derive a significant portion of their revenues from a limited customer base. If
one or more of the significant customers of an Operating Partnership were to cease doing business with the
Operating Partnership, or significantly reduced or delayed its purchase of services, the financial condition and
results of operations of such Operating Partnership could be materially adversely affected.

ENVIRONMENTAL LEGISLATION
Environmental matters are subject to regulation under a variety of federal, provincial, territorial, state and
municipal laws relating to health and safety and the environment. Management believes that the Operating
Partnerships are in material compliance with applicable environmental legislation, however regulation is subject to
change and, accordingly, it is impossible to predict the cost of compliance with new laws or the effects that such
changes would have on the Operating Partnerships or their future operations.
Management believes that the risk of non-compliance with environmental regulation is greatest for the Operating
Partnerships in the Industrial and Other Segments.

DEPENDENCE

ON THE

OPERATING PARTNERSHIPS

The Fund is a limited purpose trust that is entirely dependent on the operations and assets of the Operating
Partnerships. Accordingly, cash distributions to Unitholders are not guaranteed, and are dependent on the ability
of the Operating Partnerships to pay distributions indirectly to the Fund. The ability of the Fund to pay
distributions or make other payments or advances is subject to applicable laws and contractual restrictions
contained in the instruments governing any indebtedness (including the Credit Facility). The Fund has entered a
Forbearance Agreement with its senior lenders and is disallowed from making distributions to unitholders until the
expiry of the Forbearance Period.

LEVERAGE

AND

RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

The degree to which the Fund is leveraged could have important consequences to Unitholders, including the
following: (i) the ability of NPY to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures or
acquisitions in the future may be limited; (ii) a material portion of NPY’s cash flow from operations may need to be
dedicated to payment of the principal of and interest on indebtedness, thereby reducing funds available for future
operations and to pay distributions; (iii) certain of the borrowings under the Credit Facility may be at variable rates
of interest, which exposes NPY to the risk of increased interest rates; and (iv) the Fund may be more vulnerable to
economic downturns and be limited in its ability to withstand competitive pressures. NPY’s ability to make
scheduled payments of principal and interest on, or to refinance, its indebtedness will depend on its future
operating performance and cash flows, which are subject to prevailing economic conditions, prevailing interest rate
levels, and financial, competitive, business and other factors, many of which are beyond its control.
The ability of the Fund to make distributions or make other payments or advances is subject to applicable laws and
contractual restrictions contained in the instruments governing any indebtedness of the Fund and NPY (including
the Debentures and the Credit Facility). The Credit Facility contains restrictive covenants customary for credit
facilities of this nature, including covenants that limit the discretion of management with respect to certain
business matters. These covenants place restrictions on, among other things, the ability of NPY to incur additional
indebtedness, to pay distributions or make certain other payments, to sell or otherwise dispose of material assets
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and to make additional acquisitions. In addition, the Credit Facility contains a number of financial covenants that
require NPY to meet certain financial ratios and financial tests. A failure to comply with the obligations in the
Credit Facility could result in an event of default that, if not cured or waived, could permit acceleration of the
relevant indebtedness. If the indebtedness under the Credit Facility were to be accelerated, there can be no
assurance that the assets of NPY would be sufficient to repay in full that indebtedness. The Fund was in breach of
certain covenants of its credit facility and entered into a Forbearance Agreement with its senior lenders. During
the Forbearance Period the Fund is disallowed from making distributions to its unitholders.

POTENTIAL SALES

OF

ADDITIONAL UNITS

The Fund may issue additional Units or securities exchangeable for or convertible into Units in the future. The Fund
may issue additional Units in order to, among other things, finance the acquisitions of additional CT Notes or CT
Units in order to indirectly fund NPY’s capital expenditure and other cash requirements. Such additional Units may
be issued without the approval of Unitholders. The Unitholders will have no pre-emptive rights in connection with
such additional issues. Additional issuance of Units will result in the dilution of the interests of Unitholders.

DISTRIBUTION

OF

SECURITIES

ON

REDEMPTION

OR

TERMINATION

OF THE

FUND

Upon redemption of Units or termination of the Fund, the Trustees may distribute CT Notes and/or CT Units directly
to the Unitholders, subject to obtaining all required regulatory approvals. There is currently no market for such
securities, and none is expected to develop in the future. In addition, the CT Notes will not be freely tradeable and
will not be currently listed on any stock exchange. Securities so distributed may not be qualified investments for
trusts governed by deferred income plans, depending upon the circumstances at the time.

UNITHOLDER LIABILITY
The Declaration of Trust provides that no Unitholder will be subject to any liability in connection with the Fund or
its assets or obligations and that, in the event that a court determines that Unitholders are subject to any such
liabilities, the liabilities will be enforceable only against, and will be satisfied only out of, the Unitholder’s share of
the Fund’s assets.
The Declaration of Trust further provides that the Trustees shall make all reasonable efforts to include as a specific
term of any obligations or liabilities being incurred by the Fund, or the Trustees on behalf of the Fund, a
contractual provision to the effect that neither the Unitholders, nor the Trustees have any personal liability or
obligations in respect thereof. There remains a risk that a Unitholder may be personally liable despite such a
provision in the Declaration of Trust or other agreements made by the Fund.
On December 16, 2004, the Trust Beneficiaries’ Liability Act, 2004 (Ontario) came into force. This statute provides
that holders of units of a trust are not, as beneficiaries, liable for any act, default, obligation or liability of the trust
if, when the act or default occurs or the liability arises, (i) the trust is a reporting issuer under the Securities Act
(Ontario), and (ii) the trust is governed by the laws of Ontario. The Fund has been a reporting issuer under the
Securities Act (Ontario) since July 28, 2005 and it is governed by the laws of Ontario by virtue of the provisions of
the Declaration of Trust.

UNDIVERSIFIED

AND ILLIQUID

HOLDINGS

IN THE

TRUST

The Fund’s holding of CT Units and CT Notes is undiversified, and such securities are illiquid, as they are not
expected to be listed or quoted on any stock exchange or other market.

INCOME TAX MATTERS
Although the Fund, the Commercial Trust, NPY, NPH, the Operating Partnerships and their subsidiaries are of the
view that all expenses to be claimed by them in the determination of their respective incomes under the Tax Act is
reasonable and deductible in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Tax Act, and that the allocation of
partnership income for purposes of the Tax Act between the holders of LP Units and the Commercial Trust is
reasonable, there can be no assurance that the Tax Act or the interpretation of the Tax Act will not change, or that
CRA will agree with the expenses claimed or such allocation of partnership income. If CRA successfully challenges
the deductibility of such expenses or the allocation of such income, NPY’s allocation of taxable income to the
Commercial Trust, and indirectly the taxable income of the Fund and the Unitholders of the Fund, and taxable
income of the Operating Partnerships and their subsidiaries, may change.
Elections have been made under the Tax Act such that the transactions under which NPH acquires its interest in the
Operating Partnerships may be effected on a tax-deferred basis. The adjusted cost base of any property transferred
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to an Operating Partnership pursuant to such agreements may be less than its fair market value, such that a gain
may be realized on the future sale of the property.
Further, interest on the CT Notes held by the Fund accrues at the Fund level for income tax purposes whether or
not actually paid. The interest rate on CT Notes was reset to 0% effective Mar 1, 2009. The Declaration of Trust
provides that an amount equal to the taxable income of the Fund will be distributed each year to Unitholders in
order to reduce the Fund’s taxable income to zero. [If sufficient cash is not available, such distributions will be in
the form of Units]. Unitholders will generally be required to include an amount equal to the fair market value of
those Units into their taxable income, in circumstances where they do not receive a cash distribution.
The acquisitions of Operating Partnerships involved various structuring events to complete the transactions in a tax
effective manner. These transactions involved interpretations of the Tax Act which could, if interpreted differently,
result in additional tax liabilities.

RETURN

OF

CAPITAL

Cash distributions do not represent a “yield” in the traditional sense as they may represent both return of capital
and return on investment. The Fund has historically had significant returns of capital prior to October 2008 when it
ceased distributions.

S H O T -G U N B U Y -S E L L R I G H T S
Certain of the limited partnership agreements of the Operating Partnerships contain shot-gun buy-sell provisions.
The purpose of the shot-gun buy-sell provisions is to provide the parties with a recognized mechanism for solving
any fundamental disputes which may develop. If one of the limited partners of the applicable Operating
Partnership, other than NPH, initiates a shot-gun buy-sell, the general partner of NPH will have to decide whether
to buy at the offered price, in which case monies may have to be raised, either by drawing on the Credit Facility in
the short term or issuing more Units, or to sell at the offered price, in which case NPH will receive the proceeds of
sale, and will apply the proceeds in such manner as the general partner of NPH determines at the time, subject to
any required approvals from lenders or others. There is no assurance that NPH will decide to buy at the offered
price or that NPH will have sufficient funds to buy at the offered price. Any decision of NPH not to buy at the
offered price or its inability to buy at the offered price may have a negative impact on the Fund. Any purchase or
sale by NPH pursuant to such shot-gun buy-sell provisions will require consent of the lenders under the Credit
Facility. No assurance can be given that such consent will be obtained on acceptable terms or at all should NPH
decide that it wishes to sell under such shot-gun buy-sell provisions.

UNPREDICTABILITY

AND

VOLATILITY

OF

UNIT PRICE

A publicly traded income trust will not necessarily trade at values determined by reference to the underlying value
of its business. The prices at which the Units will trade cannot be predicted. The market price of the Units could be
subject to significant fluctuations in response to variations in quarterly operating results, distributions and other
factors. The annual yield on the Units as compared to the annual yield on other financial instruments may also
influence the price of the Units in the public trading markets. In addition, the securities markets have experienced
significant price and volume fluctuations from time to time in recent years that often have been unrelated or
disproportionate to the operating performance of particular issuers. These broad fluctuations may adversely affect
the market price of the Units.

NATURE

OF

UNITS

The Units are not “deposits” within the meaning of the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation Act and are not
insured under the provisions of that act of any other legislation. Furthermore, the Fund is not a trust company and,
accordingly, is not registered under any trust and loan company legislation as it does note carry on or intend to
carry on the business of a trust company. In addition, although the Fund qualifies as a “mutual fund trust” as
defined in the Tax Act (as of the date hereof), the Fund is not a “mutual fund” as defined by the securities
legislation.
Securities like the Units are hybrids in that they share certain attributes common to both equity securities and debt
instruments. The Units do not represent debt instruments and there is no principal amount owing to Unitholders
under the Units. As holders of Units, Unitholders do not have the statutory rights normally associated with
ownership of shares of a corporation including, for example, the right to bring “oppression” or “derivative”
actions. Each Unit represents an equal, undivided, beneficial interest in the Fund. The Fund’s principal assets are CT
Units and CT Notes. The price per Unit is a function of the Fund’s anticipated distributable cash at any time, which
is, in turn dependent on the distributable cash distributed upstream by the Operating Partnerships.

Newport Partners Income Fund

50

Annual Report 2009

RESTRICTIONS

ON POTENTIAL GROWTH

The payout by the Operating Partnerships of a high proportion of their operating cash flow will make additional
capital and operating expenditures somewhat dependent on increased cash flow or additional financing in the
future. Lack of those funds could limit the future growth of the Operating Partnerships and their cash flow.

LIMITATION

ON

N O N -R E S I D E N T O W N E R S H I P

The Declaration of Trust imposes various restrictions on Unitholders. Non-resident (as defined in the Declaration of
Trust) Unitholders are prohibited from beneficially owning more than 45% of the Units (on a non-diluted and fully
diluted basis). These restrictions may limit (or inhibit the exercise of) the rights of certain Persons (as defined in the
Declaration of Trust), including Non-residents, to acquire Units, to exercise their rights as Unitholders and to
initiate and complete take-over bids in respect of the Units. As a result, these restrictions may limit the demand for
the Units from certain Unitholders and thereby adversely affect the liquidity and market value of the Units held by
the public.

INVESTMENT ELIGIBILITY
There can be no assurance that the Units will continue to be qualified investments for registered retirement savings
plans, deferred profit sharing plans, registered retirement income funds and registered education savings plans
under the Tax Act. The Tax Act imposes penalties for the acquisition or holding of non-qualified investments.

INCOME TAX MATTERS
There can be no assurance that Canadian federal income tax laws and administrative policies respecting the
treatment of mutual fund trusts will not be changed in a manner, which adversely affects Fund Unitholders.
Currently, a trust will not be considered to be a mutual fund trust if it is established or maintained primarily for the
benefit of non-residents unless all or substantially all of its property is taxable Canadian property as defined in the
Tax Act. On September 16, 2004, the Minister of Finance released draft amendments to the Tax Act. Under the
draft amendments, a trust would lose its status as a mutual fund trust if the aggregate fair market value of all units
issued by the trust held by one or more non-resident persons or partnerships that are not Canadian partnerships is
more than 50% of the aggregate fair market value of all the units issued by the trust where more than 10% (based
on fair market value) of the trust’s property is taxable Canadian property or certain other types of property. If the
draft amendments are enacted as proposed, and if, at any time more than 50% of the aggregate fair market value
of the Units were held by non-residents and partnerships other than Canadian partnerships, the Fund may lose its
mutual fund trust status. On December 6, 2004, the Department of Finance tabled a Notice of Ways and Means
Motion, which did not include these proposed changes. The Department of Finance indicated that the
implementation of the proposed changes would be suspended pending further consultation with interested
parties.

PRIOR RANKING INDEBTEDNESS
The Debentures will be subordinate to all senior indebtedness. The payment of the principal premium (if any) and
interest on the Debentures will be subordinated to senior indebtedness of the Fund. The Debentures will also be
effectively subordinate to claims of creditors of the Fund’s subsidiaries except to the extent the Fund is a creditor of
such subsidiaries ranking at least pari passu with such other creditors.

INABILITY

TO

FUND PURCHASE

OF

DEBENTURES

The Fund may be required to offer to purchase all outstanding Debentures upon the occurrence of a change of
control. However, it is possible that following a change of control, the Fund will not have sufficient funds at that
time to make the required purchase of outstanding Debentures or that restrictions contained in other indebtedness
will restrict those purchases.

ABSENCE

OF

COVENANT PROTECTION

The Trust Indenture does not, and the First Supplemental Indenture will not, restrict the Fund or any of its
subsidiaries from incurring additional indebtedness or from mortgaging, pledging or charging its assets to secure
any indebtedness. Neither the Trust Indenture nor the First Supplemental Indenture contains any provisions
specifically intended to protect holders of the Debentures in the event of a future leveraged transaction involving
the Fund or any of its subsidiaries.
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REDEMPTION PRIOR

TO

MATURITY

The Debentures may be redeemed, at the option of the Fund, after December 2008 (Series 2005 Debentures) and
December 2010 (Series 2007 Debentures) and prior to the maturity date at any time and from time to time, at the
redemption prices set forth in the Indenture and the First Supplemental Indenture, together with any accrued and
unpaid interest. Holders of Debentures should assume that this redemption option will be exercised if the Fund is
able to refinance at a lower interest rate or it is otherwise in the interest of the Fund to redeem the Debentures.

CONVERSION FOLLOWING CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS
In the case of certain transactions, each Debenture will become convertible into securities, cash or property
receivable by a holder of Units in the kind and amount of securities, cash or property into which the Debenture was
convertible immediately prior to the transaction. This change could substantially lessen or eliminate the value of
the conversion privilege associated with the Debentures in the future.

MARKET VALUE FLUCTUATION
Prevailing interest rates will affect the market value of the Debentures, as they carry a fixed interest rate. Assuming
all other factors remain unchanged, the market value of the Debentures, which carry a fixed interest rate, will
decline as prevailing interest rates for comparable debt instruments rise, and increase as prevailing interest rates
for comparable debt instruments decline.

DILUTIVE EFFECTS

ON

HOLDERS

OF

UNITS

The Fund may issue Units on the conversion, redemption or repayment of the Debentures. Accordingly, holders of
Units may suffer dilution.

LABOUR
The success of the Fund depends on the ability of the Operating Partnerships to maintain their respective
productivity and profitability. The productivity and profitability of the Operating Partnerships may be limited by
their ability to employ, train and retain the skilled personnel necessary to meet their respective requirements. None
of the Operating Partnerships can be certain that they will be able to maintain the adequate skilled labour force
necessary to operate efficiently and to support their growth strategies. As well, none of the Operating Partnerships
can be certain that their labour expenses will not increase as a result of shortage in the supply of these skilled
personnel. Labour shortages or increased labour costs could impair the ability of an Operating Partnership to
maintain or grow its respective Operating Partnership.

INTEREST RATE RISK
A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Fund entered into a secured credit agreement with an affiliate of Fortress Credit
Corp. on December 7, 2006 (“Credit Facility”). This Credit Facility is referenced to the BA and LIBOR rates. Increases
in rates could negatively impact our operating results. The Fund was in default of its covenants under this credit
facility and is looking to repay all indebtedness by July, 2010.

PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE INCOME
AND PARTNERSHIPS

TAX RULES APPLICABLE

TO

PUBLICLY TRADED TRUSTS

On June 22, 2007, amendments to the Tax Act were enacted (the “SIFT Rules”), which modify the federal income
tax treatment of certain publicly traded trusts and partnerships that are specified investment flow-through trusts or
partnerships (“SIFTs”). Under the SIFT Rules, a SIFT will generally be taxed in a manner similar to corporations on
income from a business carried on in Canada by the SIFT and income (other than taxable dividends) or capital gains
from non-portfolio properties (as defined in the Tax Act) at a rate similar to the combined federal/provincial tax
rate of a corporation. Allocations or distributions of income and capital gains that are subject to the SIFT Rules will
be taxed as an eligible dividend from a taxable Canadian corporation in the hands of the beneficiaries or partners
of the SIFT. The SIFT Rules are applicable to SIFTs beginning with the 2007 taxation year. However, subject to the
normal growth guidelines issued in a press release by the Department of Finance (Canada) on December 15, 2006
and as amended by the explanatory notes to the November 28, 2008 Notice of Ways and Mean Motion released on
December 4, 2008 (the “Normal Growth Guidelines”), the SIFT Rules will not apply until the 2011 taxation year to
SIFTs that were publicly traded prior to November 1, 2006, such as the Fund, provided that there is no "undue
expansion" of the Fund in the intervening period.
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As a result of amendments to the Tax Act that were enacted on March 12, 2009 (the "SIFT Amendments"), effective
October 31, 2006, excluded from the definition of a SIFT is a trust or partnership that is not publicly-traded and the
equity (and equity-like debt) of which is wholly-owned by any combination of a SIFT, a real estate investment trust,
a taxable Canadian corporation (as each of those terms is defined in the Tax Act), or another trust or partnership
that is not publicly-traded and wholly-owned as described above.
The SIFT Rules may adversely affect the marketability of the Fund's units and the ability of the Fund to undertake
financings and acquisitions, and, at such time as the SIFT Rules apply to the Fund, the distributable cash of the Fund
may be materially reduced.
As a result of the Fund suspending distributions in late 2008, the Fund will be subject to income tax on its
undistributed taxable income. Consequently, the exemption under EIC 107 for income trusts that the Fund
previously relied on, no longer applies. Prior to the decision to suspend distributions, no future taxes were
recorded on those differences expected to reverse before 2011.
The SIFT Amendments also introduced a series of rules intended to accommodate the conversion of a SIFT into a
taxable Canadian corporation without negative tax consequences to Unitholders.
The Fund has evaluated its alternatives as to the best structure for its unit holders, and has determined that the
most appropriate action is conversion to a corporate structure, as this will allow us to address the limits placed on
our growth by the federal government with the expansion cap included in the Sift Rules.

REGULATION
The Fund and its Operating Partnerships are subject to a variety of federal, provincial and local laws, regulations,
and guidelines and may become subject to additional laws, regulations and guidelines in the future, particularly as
a result of acquisitions. The financial and managerial resources necessary to ensure such compliance could escalate
significantly in the future which could have a material adverse effect on the Fund’s and its Operating Partnerships’
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Although such expenditures historically have not
been material, such laws and regulations are subject to change. Accordingly, it is impossible for the Fund or the
Operating Partnerships to predict the cost or impact of such laws and regulations on their respective future
operations.

COMPETITION
The businesses in which the Operating Partnerships operate are highly competitive. The Operating Partnerships
often compete with companies that are much larger and have greater resources than the Operating Partnerships.
There can be no assurance that the Fund and the Operating Partnerships will be able to successfully compete
against their respective competitors or that such competition will not have a material adverse effect on their
businesses, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows and therefore the Fund’s distributions to
Unitholders.

POTENTIAL UNKNOWN LIABILITIES
In connection with the prior formation of Operating Partnerships completed by NPY, there may be unknown
liabilities assumed by NPY through its interests in the Operating Partnerships for which NPY may not be
indemnified by the prior owner. The discovery of any material liabilities could have a material adverse effect on the
business, financial condition, results of operations and future prospects of the Fund.

AVAILABILITY

OF

FUTURE FINANCING

The Fund’s principal source of funds is cash generated from its Operating Partnerships. The Fund however may
require additional equity or debt financing to meet its financing requirements. There can be no assurance that this
financing will be available when required or available on commercially favourable terms or on terms that are
otherwise satisfactory to the Fund, in which event the financial condition of the Fund may be materially adversely
affected.

POTENTIAL FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Management of the Fund, in the ordinary course of business, regularly explores potential strategic opportunities
and transactions. The public announcement of any of these or similar strategic opportunities or transactions might
have a significant effect on the price of the Fund’s securities. The Fund’s policy is not to publicly disclose the
pursuit of a potential strategic opportunity or transaction unless and until a definitive binding agreement is
reached. There can be no assurance that investors who buy or sell securities of the Fund are doing so at a time
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when the Fund is not pursuing a particular strategic opportunity or transaction, that when announced, would have
a significant effect on the price of the Fund’s securities.

DISCLOSURE CONTROLS & PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
DISCLOSURE

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Multilateral Instrument 52-109, “Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings”, issued by the
CSA requires CEOs and CFOs to certify that they are responsible for establishing and maintaining the disclosure
controls and procedures for the issuer, that disclosure controls and procedures have been designed to provide
reasonable assurance that material information relating to the issuer is made known to them, that they have
evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer’s disclosure controls and procedures, and that their conclusions about
effectiveness of those disclosure controls and procedures at the end of the period covered by the relevant annual
filings have been disclosed by the issuer.
The Fund’s management, including its CEO and CFO, have evaluated the effectiveness of the Fund’s disclosure
controls and procedures as at December 31, 2009 and have concluded that those disclosure controls and procedures
were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Fund in its corporate filings is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the required time period for the year then ended.

INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

National Instrument 52-109 also requires CEOs and CFOs to certify that they are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal controls over financial reporting for the issuer, that those internal controls have been
designed and are effective in providing reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and
that the issuer has disclosed any changes in its internal controls during its most recent interim period that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting.
Under the supervision of and with the participation of management, including the CEO and CFO, we have
evaluated the internal controls over financial reporting as at December 31, 2009 and have concluded that those
internal controls were effective in providing reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.
Due to the inherent limitations common to all control systems, management acknowledges that disclosure controls
and procedures and internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all misstatements.
Accordingly, management’s evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial
reporting provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that misstatements resulting from fraud or error will be
detected.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Additional information relating to the Fund including the Fund’s AIF is on SEDAR at www.sedar.com or on our
website www.income.newportpartners.ca.
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DEFINITIONS
“Agent” – means DB Newport LLC, as agent on behalf of the Lenders under the Senior Credit Agreement;
“AIF” – means Annual Information Form;
“Amended Forbearance Agreement” – means the amendments dated November 25, 2009 and February 18, 2009 to
the original agreement dated July 21, 2009, between Newport Finance Corp. and the Lenders and Agent
thereto;
“Armstrong” – means Armstrong Partnership LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“AUM” – means Assets Under Management;
“Bill C-52”– means Bill C-52 Budget Implementation Act, 2007;
“BMI” – means Baird MacGregor Insurance Brokers LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“Brompton” – means Brompton Corp., a corporation incorporated under the laws of Ontario;
“Capital C” – means Capital C Communications LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“CEO” – means Chief Executive Officer;
“CICA” – means Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants;
“Convertible Debentures” or “Debentures” – means collectively the two series of unsecured, subordinated,
convertible debentures of the Fund, due December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2012, respectively;
“CT” – means Commercial Trust;
“ESR” – means Elliott Special Risks LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“Exchange Agreement” – means the agreement dated August 8, 2005 between CT and NPY which provides for the
exchange of limited partnership units of NPY into units of the Fund;
“Fund” – means Newport Partners Income Fund;
“GAAP” – means, at any time, Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, including those set out in the
Handbook of the CICA, applied on a consistent basis;
“Gemma” – means Gemma Communications LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“Gusgo” – means Gusgo Transport LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“Hargraft” – means Hargraft Schofield LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“IC Group” – means IC Group LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“IFRS” – means International Financial Reporting Standards;
“LTM” – means Last Twelve Months;
“Lenders” – means the various persons from time to time acting as lenders under the Senior Credit Agreement;
“MD&A” – means Management’s Discussion and Analysis;
“Morrison Williams” – means Morrison Williams Investment Management LP, a limited partnership formed under
the laws of Ontario;
“NCIB” – means Normal Course Issuer Bid;
“Newport Partners” or “NP LP” – means Newport Partners LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of
Ontario;
“NPC” – means NPC Integrity Energy Services Limited Partnership, a limited partnership formed under the laws of
Alberta;
”NPH” – means Newport Partners Holdings LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“NPY” – means Newport Private Yield LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“NPY LP Units” – means units of NPY;
“Operating Partnerships” – means businesses in which the Fund holds an ownership interest;
“Peerless” – means Peerless Garments LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
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“Priority Income” – means the annual distribution to which NPF is entitled before its Operating Partners share in
the income of the business;
“Quantum Murray” – means Quantum Murray LP (formerly Murray Demolition LP) a limited partnership formed
under the laws of Ontario;
“Rlogistics” – means Rlogistics LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Ontario;
“S&E” – means Sports and Entertainment Limited Partnership, a limited partnership formed under the laws of
Ontario;
“Senior Credit Agreement” – means the Secured Credit Agreement entered into on December 7, 2006, with a
syndicate of Lenders;
“Titan” – means Titan Supply LP, a limited partnership formed under the laws of Alberta;
“TSX” – means Toronto Stock Exchange; and
“Units” – means trust units of the Fund.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements of Newport Partners Income Fund (the “Fund”) and all of the information in the annual report are the
responsibility of Management, including responsibility for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures and
internal controls over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance that the information used internally by management
and disclosed externally is complete and reliable in all material respects. Management has evaluated the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures and has concluded that they are effective.
The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by management in accordance with GAAP and include certain
estimates that are based on management’s best judgments. Actual results may differ from these estimates and judgments.
Management has ensured that the Consolidated Financial Statements are presented fairly in all material respects.
Management has developed and maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that the Fund’s assets
are safeguarded, transactions are accurately recorded, and the financial statements report the Fund’s operating and financial
results in a timely manner. Financial information presented elsewhere in the annual report has been prepared on a consistent
basis with that in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The Board of Trustees of the Fund annually appoints an Audit Committee (the “Committee”) comprised of Independent Trustees
(members who are not employees of the Fund). This Committee meets regularly with management and the auditors to review
significant accounting, reporting and internal control matters. The auditors have unrestricted access to the Committee. The
Committee reviews the financial statements, Management’s Discussion & Analysis, the external auditors’ report and the annual
report. The Committee reports its findings to the Board of Trustees for the Trustee’s consideration in approving the financial
statements for issuance to the Unitholders. The Committee also considers, for review by the Board of Trustees and approval by
the Unitholders, the engagement or re-appointment of the external auditors.
Ernst & Young LLP, an independent firm of chartered accountants, was appointed to audit the Fund’s Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. They have provided an independent professional
opinion. Ernst & Young LLP has full and free access to the Committee.

Dean T. MacDonald
President & CEO

Keith Halbert
Chief Financial Officer

Toronto, Canada
March 8, 2010
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Auditors' Report

To the Trustees of
Newport Partners Income Fund
We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Newport Partners Income Fund (the
"Fund") as at December 31, 2009 and the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive
loss, unitholders' equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.
In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Fund as at December 31, 2009 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles.
The financial statements for the preceding year were audited by other auditors.

Toronto, Canada,
March 8, 2010.

NEWPORT PARTNERS INCOME FUND
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31
(In thousands of dollars)

2009

2008

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term investments held in trust (note 2)
Accounts receivable (note 2)
Inventories (note 3)
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets (notes 4 and 17)
Future tax asset (note 12)
Current assets of discontinued operations (note 5)

$

Property, plant and equipment (note 6)
Long-term investments (note 7)
Goodwill (note 8)
Intangible assets (note 8)
Other assets (notes 4 and 17)
Long-lived assets of discontinued operations (note 5)
$

43,882
20,142
119,363
34,034
2,951
14,249
234,621
44,012
16,047
68,914
101,979
13,751
479,324

$

$

23,559
14,154
140,132
33,112
2,942
22,830
1,393
20,554
258,676
44,060
15,998
70,640
168,953
15,706
45,009
619,042

Liabilities and Unitholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Revolving credit facilities (note 10)
Current portion of long-term debt (note 10)
Convertible debentures (note 13)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Current portion of obligations under capital leases (note 11)
Future tax liability (note 12)
Current liabilities of discontinued operations (note 5)

$

Obligations under capital leases (note 11)
Future tax liability (note 12)
Long-term liabilities of discontinued operations (note 5)
Convertible debentures (note 13)
Non-controlling interest
Unitholders' equity (note 14)
$

10,089
150,499
156,136
115,117
10,403
4,588
105
446,937
5,915
5,453
21,019
479,324

$

$

27,400
210,000
102,306
10,742
5,695
20,797
376,940
7,741
20,989
5,087
152,683
15,649
39,953
619,042

Going concern (note 1 (a))
Commitments and other contingencies (note 21)
Subsequent events (note 26)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
On behalf of the Trustees of the Fund

_____________________________

__________________________

John K. Bell, Trustee

K. Michael Edwards, Trustee
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NEWPORT PARTNERS INCOME FUND
Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
Years Ended December 31
(In thousands of dollars, except per unit amounts)

Revenues
Cost of revenues

$

Expenses
Selling, general and administrative
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation

2009
584,873
438,485
146,388

$

2008
652,719
483,172
169,547

Income (loss) before the undernoted
Income from equity investments
Other income
Interest expense, net (note 2)
Loss on dilution of ownership interest
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets (note 8)
Impairment in value of long-term investments (note 8)
Loss before income taxes
Income tax expense – current (note 12)
Income tax recovery – future (note 12)

105,022
30,368
13,329
148,719
(2,331)
1,106
40,461
42,973
(84,659)
43
(14,032)

107,839
35,180
11,450
154,469
15,078
1,824
330
40,966
845
231,299
29,000
(284,878)
44
(13,663)

Loss from continuing operations before non-controlling
interest
Non-controlling interest relating to continuing operations

(70,670)
6,084

(271,259)
63,196

(64,586)

(208,063)

32,528
(120)

(25,311)
8,965
(16,346)
$ (224,409)

Loss from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before noncontrolling interest (note 5)
Non-controlling interest relating to discontinued operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Net loss and comprehensive loss

$

32,408
(32,178)

Income (loss) per unit (note 16)
Basic and diluted:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net loss

$
$
$

(1.02)
0.51
(0.51)

$
$
$

(4.81)
(0.37)
(5.18)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NEWPORT PARTNERS INCOME FUND
Consolidated Statements of Unitholders’ Equity
(In thousands of dollars)

Number of
Units
Balance – January 1, 2008
Units of NPY exchanged (note 14)
Units purchased under normal
course issuer bid

41,366,957

Unitholders’
Capital

Equity
Component
of
Convertible
Debenture

$

$

5,411,273
(237,500)

380,800

9,850

Deficit
$ (128,582)

Contributed
Surplus
$

1,392

$ 263,460

22,024

-

-

-

22,024

(1,184)

-

-

968

(216)
(224,409)

Net loss for the year

-

-

-

(224,409)

-

Distributions

-

-

-

(20,906)

-

9,850

$ (373,897)

Balance – December 31, 2008
Units of NPY exchanged (note 14)
Net loss for the year
Balance – December 31, 2009

46,540,730

$

401,640

$

25,090,701

13,244

-

-

-

-

(32,178)

9,850

$ (406,075)

71,631,431

$

Total
Unitholders’
Equity

414,884

$

$

-

$

2,360

(20,906)
$

39,953

-

13,244

-

(32,178)

2,360

$

21,019

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31
(In thousands of dollars)

2009
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Net loss
Items not affecting cash:
(Income) loss from discontinued operations before
non-controlling interest
Amortization of intangible assets
Depreciation
Future income tax recovery
Income (loss) from equity investments, net of cash received
Non-cash interest expense
Loss on dilution of interest in operating partner
Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets
Impairment of long-term investment
Non-controlling interest
Changes in non-cash working capital (note 20)
Distributions from discontinued operations
Cash provided by discontinued operations

$

Investing activities:
Proceeds on disposal of business (note 5)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (note 9)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Increase in other assets
Cash used in discontinued operations
Financing activities:
Decrease in long-term debt
Increase in revolving credit facilities
Decrease in revolving credit facilities
Decrease (increase) in cash held in trust
Repayment of capital lease obligations
Distributions to non-controlling interest
Distributions to unitholders
Repurchase of units
Cash used in discontinued operations
Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year continuing operations
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year discontinued operations
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year discontinued operations

2008

(32,178)

$ (224,409)

(32,528)
30,368
13,411
(14,032)
(256)
3,453
42,973
(5,964)
41,498
5,579
6,536
58,860

25,311
35,180
11,662
(13,663)
2,087
8,345
845
231,299
29,000
(72,161)
(2,580)
9,260
15,038
55,214

75,859
(10,824)
(8,247)
(120)
56,668

30,177
(185)
(8,773)
(1,615)
(1,356)
18,248

(59,501)
16,150
(33,461)
(5,988)
(5,989)
(6,712)
(95,501)
20,027

(20,127)
9,539
(4,669)
(14,152)
(20,906)
(216)
(19,354)
(69,885)
3,577

23,559

14,311

296
43,882

5,967
23,559

-

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year – continuing operations
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid
Cash acquired upon acquisition
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financial and
investing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
through capital leases

296

$

43,882

$

23,855

$

20,214
-

$

32,481
370

3,821

3,823

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of dollars, except per unit amounts)
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

Newport Partners Income Fund (“the Fund”) is an unincorporated, open-ended, limited purpose trust established
under the laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant to a declaration of trust dated May 13, 2005 (the “Declaration
of Trust”).
The Fund has been created to hold, through the Fund’s investment in Newport Partners Commercial Trust
(“Commercial Trust”), interests in Newport Private Yield LP (“NPY”), and its general partner, NPY GP Trust. NPY
is a limited partnership formed to indirectly invest in securities of private businesses, either in limited
partnerships or in corporations (collectively the “Operating Partnerships”).

The operations of NPY are in the

following business segments:

x
x
x
x
x

financial services;
marketing;
industrial services;
other; and
corporate.

The Fund indirectly holds, through Commercial Trust, all of the A1 LP Units of NPY, representing 100% (2008 –
65%) of the outstanding LP units of NPY.
1.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of presentation – going concern
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. The going concern basis of presentation
assumes that the Fund will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and be able to realize its
assets and discharge its liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business.
On July 21, 2009, the Fund announced that a Forbearance Agreement (the "Forbearance Agreement")
had been entered into with a syndicate of lenders (the “Lenders”) (refer to note 10). Under the terms
of the Forbearance Agreement, the Lenders have agreed not to enforce their default related rights and
remedies under the Senior Credit Agreement for a period of up to 365 days (the “Forbearance
Period”). The agreement contemplates the full repayment of amounts outstanding under the Senior
Credit Agreement by the end of the Forbearance Period.
The Fund was contractually prohibited from paying interest due on June 30, 2009 on its unsecured
subordinated convertible debentures (the “Debentures”) due to the above-noted covenant breach
(refer to note 10). As of July 15, 2009 the failure to make the interest payment constituted an event
of default under the terms of the trust indenture of the Debentures. The Fund has begun discussions
with holders of the Debentures with a view to restructure this debt.
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Because of the nature and extent of the terms included in the Forbearance Agreement relating to the
repayment of amounts outstanding under the Senior Credit Agreement, and the requirements to
resolve the event of default of the Debentures, to raise additional indebtedness and re-establish the
profitability and cash flows of the Fund, there are material uncertainties resulting in significant doubt
about the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption.

The consolidated financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going
concern assumption was not appropriate. If the going concern basis was not appropriate for these
financial statements, adjustments would be necessary in the carrying value of assets and liabilities,
the reported revenues and expenses, and the consolidated balance sheet classifications used.

(b) Principles of consolidation

The Fund controls NPY through its 100% indirect ownership of the general partner of NPY, NPY GP
Trust, and also has the continuing right to appoint all of the Board of Directors of the general partner
of NPY, and therefore accounts for its interest as the controlling unitholder and uses the purchase
method of accounting.

The consolidated financial statements include 100% of NPY.

2009 there was no non-controlling interest (2008 – 35%) of NPY.

At the end of

The consolidated financial

statements of NPY include 100% of Newport Partners Holdings LP (“NPH”) which includes owned
subsidiaries and investments in jointly controlled operations on a proportionate consolidation basis.

The consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities and operating results of all
subsidiary companies from the dates of acquisition. All significant intercompany balances have been
eliminated on consolidation.
Under the proportionate consolidation method, NPY’s share of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
are included in each major financial statement caption from the date of purchase. All intercompany
balances and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

The Fund accounts for investments in which it has significant influence under the equity method.

The following table indicates the accounting method for each of the investments in Operating
Partnerships as at December 31, 2009 for continuing operations. NPY invested in all Operating
Partnerships indirectly together with their respective general partner.
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(In thousands of dollars, except per unit amounts)
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

Operating Partnership

Initial
Investment

Newport Partners LP (“NP LP”)

August 2005

Sports and Entertainment LP
(“S&E”)

August 2005

December
31, 2009
Ownership

Accounting
Method

Business Description

100

Consolidation

Provider of investment
management, corporate advisory
and insurance services

80

Proportionate
consolidation

Provider of sports related
marketing and advertising services

NPC Integrity Energy Services
LP (“NPC”)

August 2005

80

Proportionate
consolidation

Provider of oil and gas
maintenance, construction and
wear technology services to both
the conventional oil and gas
industry and the oilsands

Gemma Communications LP
(“Gemma”)

March 2005

801

Proportionate
consolidation

Integrated direct marketing
company

Morrison Williams Investment
Management LP (“Morrison
Williams”)

August 2005

80

Proportionate
consolidation

Institutional money manager

Capital C Communications LP
(“Capital C”)

August 2005

67

Proportionate
consolidation

Integrated marketing services
agency

Quantum Murray LP
(“Quantum Murray”)

March 2006

64

Proportionate
consolidation

National provider of demolition,
remediation and scrap metal
services

Hargraft Schofield LP
(“Hargraft”)

April 2006

1001

Consolidation

Speciality liability products
insurance brokers

Peerless Garments LP
(“Peerless”)

June 2006

90

Proportionate
consolidation

Supplier of garments to the
Canadian Military

80

Proportionate
consolidation

Provided of on-line promotional
and loyalty programs and select
insurance products

Proportionate
consolidation

Distributor of rigging and wear
products to the oil and gas,
transportation, pipeline,
construction, mining and forestry
industries

Proportionate
consolidation

Provider of in-store promotional
marketing services

IC Group LP (“IC Group”)

July 2006

Titan Supply LP (“Titan”)

September
2006

Armstrong Partnership LP
(“Armstrong”)

October
2006

Gusgo Transport LP (“Gusgo”)

October
2006

80

Proportionate
consolidation

Transportation and storage
services provider

April 2007

78

Proportionate
consolidation

Insurance broker specializing in
the transportation sector

Baird MacGregor Insurance
Brokers LP
(“BMI”)
1

92
80

refer to note 9
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(c) Financial instruments
(i)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
All financial instruments are classified into one of the following five categories; held-for-trading,
held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and other
financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments
were acquired and their characteristics. All financial instruments are included on the consolidated
balance sheets and are measured at fair value except for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and other financial liabilities which are measured at amortized cost. Held-for-trading
financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value and all gains and losses are
included in net income in the period in which they arise. Available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value with changes in fair values generally recognized in other comprehensive
income except for available-for-sale investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market which are measured at cost. The Fund has classified its cash and cash equivalents
as held-for-trading.

Long-term investments are accounted for under the equity method.

Accounts receivable, and long-term note receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
Revolving credit facilities, accounts payable, long-term debt, Convertible Debentures and capital
lease obligations have been classified as other financial liabilities, all of which are measured at
amortized cost.
The Fund expenses as incurred all transaction costs, including fees paid to advisors and other
related costs. Financing costs, including underwriting and arrangement fees paid to lenders are
deferred and netted against the carrying value of the related debt and amortized into interest
expense using the effective interest rate method.

(ii) Comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income (loss) is the change in unitholders’ equity, which results from transactions
and events from sources other than the Fund’s unitholders.

These transactions and events

include unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of certain financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale. During the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
there were no transactions recorded in comprehensive income (loss).
(iii) Investments
The Fund classifies its investments, other than investments accounted for by the equity method,
as either available-for-sale or held-to-maturity. Available-for-sale investments are measured at
fair value with unrealized gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive income until the
investment is either sold, or if an unrealized loss is considered other than temporary, the
unrealized loss is recorded in income. Available-for-sale investments where there is no quoted
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market price will continue to be recorded at amortized cost. There were no gains or losses
recorded in other comprehensive income during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

(iv) Effective interest method
Deferred financing charges are included in loan balances and are recognized in interest expense
over the life of the resulting loan. The Fund uses the effective interest method to recognize
deferred financing charges whereby the amount recognized varies over the life of the loan based
on principal outstanding.
(d) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

The cost of inventories

includes the costs to purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location. Costs such as storage costs and administrative overheads that do not directly contribute to
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition are specifically excluded from the cost
of inventories and are expensed in the period incurred. The cost of inventories of items that are not
ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for specific projects are
assigned by using specific identification of their individual costs.

The first-in, first-out or weighted

average cost formula are used for inventories other than those dealt with by specific identification of
costs formula.
(e) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Equipment under

capital lease is initially recorded at the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of
the lease.
Depreciation is calculated using the following methods and annual rates based on the estimated useful
life of the assets as follows:

Asset

Basis

Equipment under capital lease
Furniture and equipment
Computer hardware and software
Automotive and heavy equipment
Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Straight-line
Mainly declining balance
Mainly declining balance
Mainly declining balance
Declining balance
Straight-line

Automated Teller Machines (“ATMs”)

Declining balance
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(f) Long-term investments
Investments over which the Fund is able to exercise significant influence are accounted for under the
equity method. Under the equity method, the original cost of an investment is adjusted for the Fund’s
share of post-acquisition earnings or losses, less distributions in the case of investments in
partnerships and dividends in the case of investments in companies.
Investments are written down when there is evidence that a decline in value, that is other than
temporary, has occurred.

(g) Impairment of long-lived assets
Long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite useful
lives, are amortized over their estimated useful lives. Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not
be recoverable.

Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of
an asset to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is
recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the
asset.

Assets to be disposed of are separately presented in the consolidated balance sheets and

reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer
depreciated.

The assets and liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale have been

presented separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the consolidated balance sheets.
(h) Goodwill

Goodwill is the residual amount that results when the purchase price of an acquired business exceeds
the sum of the amounts allocated to the assets acquired, less liabilities assumed, based on their fair
values.
used.

When the Fund enters into a business combination, the purchase method of accounting is
Goodwill is assigned as of the date of the business combination to reporting units that are

expected to benefit from the business combination.
Goodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The impairment test is carried
out in two steps. In the first step, the carrying amount of the investment is compared with its fair
value.

When the fair value of an investment exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill relating to the

investment is considered not to be impaired and the second step of the impairment test is
unnecessary. The second step is carried out when the carrying amount of an investment exceeds its
fair value, in which case, the implied fair value of the investment's goodwill, determined in the same
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manner as the value of goodwill is determined in a business combination, is compared with its
carrying amount to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any.
(i)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired individually or as part of a group of other assets are recognized and
measured at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a transaction, including those acquired in business
combinations, are initially recorded at their fair value.

Intangible assets with determinable useful

lives, such as customer relationships/contracts, management contracts, distribution licences,
intellectual property and non-competition agreements are amortized over their useful lives and are
tested for impairment, as described in note 1(g). Intangible assets having an indefinite life, such as
brands, are not amortized but instead are tested for impairment on an annual or more frequent basis
by comparing their fair value with book value. An impairment loss on indefinite life intangible assets
is recognized when the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value.
Intangible assets with determinable lives are amortized on a straight-line basis annually over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Customer relationships/contracts
ATM location contracts
Management contracts
Non-competition agreements

(j)

2 - 10 years
4 - 5 years
5 years
term of contract

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recorded on a net or gross basis depending on whether the Fund acts as an agent or
principal in the respective transaction.
(i)

Financial services

Financial services revenue primarily includes management fee income generated from investment
management services, commission income from insurance policies, and corporate finance and
advisory fees.

Management fees are based on contracts, calculated as a percentage of the net asset value of the
assets being managed and are recognized when earned, in accordance with contract terms.
Commission income related to insurance policies is recognized when there is persuasive evidence
of an agreement, service delivery has occurred and collectability is considered probable. Revenue
from discontinued contingent profit commissions are recorded when receipt is probable and the
amount is reasonably estimable. Corporate finance and advisory fees relate to financial advisory
assignments and are recorded when the underlying transaction is substantially completed under
the terms of the agreement.
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Revenue from discontinued ATM operations includes surcharge fees charged to the cardholder
when cash is dispensed, and interchange fees, which are the fees charged to the financial
institution for the administrative service of agreeing to pay cash to the cardholder. These fees
are recognized pursuant to written contracts in the period that the cash dispensing transaction
occurs. Revenue from the sale of ATMs is recognized when the machines have been delivered
and title has passed to the customer and the customer assumes risk of loss, collection of the
relevant receivable is probable and the sales price is fixed or determinable.
(ii) Marketing

Marketing revenue includes revenue generated from marketing campaign projects, teleservice
programs and the sale of advertisements.

Revenues from marketing campaign projects are

recognized using the percentage of completion method where dependable estimates of progress
toward completion can be made. Revenue from teleservice programs are recognized as services
are performed, generally based on hours incurred. Advertisements are recognized at the time the
advertisement is displayed and when collection of the relevant receivable is probable and the sale
price is fixed or determinable.

Deposits received in excess of amounts billed for marketing

campaign projects and on sales of advertisements not yet displayed are recorded as deferred
revenue, and the related costs are included in work in progress or prepaid expenses.
(iii) Industrial services

Industrial services revenue includes revenue from contracts entered into to provide maintenance
and construction services to the energy industry and from contracts to provide demolition and
remediation services.

Revenue from such contracts is recorded using the percentage of

completion method and revenue is recognized as services are performed and related costs are
incurred. Provisions for estimated losses on all uncompleted contracts are made in the period in
which such losses are determined. Revenue for demolition services includes consideration in the
form of scrap materials which are recorded as non-monetary transactions measured at fair value
using active market prices.
(iv) Other

Other revenue includes revenue from a garment manufacturer, a container transportation service
provider, and a distributor and manufacturer of heavy industrial equipment.

Revenue contributed by the garment manufacturer is recognized on the percentage-of-completion
method for long-term contracts. The completed contract method is used on short-term contracts.

All other revenue is recognized when the service has been completed. Provisions for estimated
losses on all uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined.
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(k) Foreign currency translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Canadian dollars at
exchange rates in effect at the consolidated balance sheet dates and non-monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at rates of exchange in effect when the assets were acquired or obligations
incurred. Revenue and expenses other than depreciation and amortization are translated at rates in
effect at the time of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses are included in income.
(l)

Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current and future taxes. Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year and is recognized in the period to which it relates.

Amounts included

in current tax reflect the income tax expense or recovery relating to the undistributed taxable income
of the Fund and taxable corporations which are subsidiaries of the Operating Partnerships.

Future taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method of accounting. Under this method,
future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying values and their respective tax bases. Future tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates and laws expected
to apply when the asset is realized or the liability settled. The effect on future tax assets and liabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period the enactment or substantive enactment
occurs. The Fund’s future tax liability represents the difference between the carrying values of the
assets and liabilities on the consolidated financial statements and their respective tax bases.
(m) Leases

Leases entered into by the Fund as lessee that transfer substantially all the benefits and risks of
ownership to the lessee are recorded as capital lease obligations and included in property, plant and
equipment. All other leases are classified as operating leases under which leasing costs are recorded
as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. In instances where there are periods of lease
incentives, the benefit is allocated over the term of the lease.
(n) Income (loss) per unit
The income (loss) per unit of the Fund is computed by dividing the Fund’s income (loss) by the
weighted average units outstanding during the reporting period.

Diluted income (loss) per unit is

similar to basic income per unit, except that the denominator is increased to include the number of
additional units that would have been outstanding if the potentially dilutive units had been issued, and
the numerator excludes distributions.
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The diluted effect of Convertible Debentures is computed by the application of the “if converted”
method. The “if converted” method assumes conversion of Convertible Debentures at the beginning
of the reporting period or at time of issuance, if later.
(o) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with remaining maturities, at the date
of investment, of three months or less, and cash on deposit with financial institutions, which are
unrestricted as to their use.
(p) Non-controlling interest
Non-controlling interest represents the exchangeable units issued by NPY which were exchangeable
for units of the Fund. Non-controlling interest on the consolidated balance sheets is recognized based
on either the fair value (post initial public offering “IPO”) or the carrying value (pre IPO) of the
exchangeable shares on issuance together with a portion of the Fund’s accumulated earnings or loss
attributable to the non-controlling interest subsequent to their issuance.

Net income or loss is

reduced by the portion of earnings attributable to the non-controlling interest. As the exchangeable
units are converted to Fund units, the non-controlling interest on the consolidated balance sheets is
reduced on a pro-rata basis together with a corresponding increase in unitholders’ equity for units
which are recognized at fair value and for units which are recorded at carrying value the conversions
are accounted for using step acquisition accounting, as their conversion would represent the
acquisition of the non-controlling interest for fair value. At December 31, 2009, the non-controlling
interest was nil.
(q) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting periods. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, accrued liabilities, intangible assets and goodwill,
and valuation allowances for receivables and inventories.

Actual results could differ from those

estimates.
(r) Changes in accounting policies

The Fund adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (CICA) Handbook Section 3064
“Goodwill and Intangible Assets”, Handbook Section 3862 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” and
EIC 173, “Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”.
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(i)

Goodwill and intangible assets
In February 2008, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3064, “Goodwill and Intangible Assets”,
replacing Section 3062, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, and Section 3450, “Research
and Development Costs”. This section establishes standards for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of goodwill subsequent to its initial recognition and of intangible
assets by profit-oriented enterprises.

The new section, which was adopted by the Fund

effective January 1, 2009, did not have any material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
(ii) Financial instrument disclosures
In March 2009, the Accounting Standards Board amended CICA Handbook Section 3862,
“Financial Instruments – Disclosures”, to enhance the disclosure requirements regarding fair
value measurements including the relative reliability of the inputs used in those measurements
and the liquidity risk of financial instruments. The standard also requires disclosure of a threelevel hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the
valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The amendments are effective for
the Fund’s 2009 annual consolidated financial statements and the additional disclosures are
included in note 2.

(iii) Credit risk and the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
In January 2009, the CICA issued EIC 173, “Credit Risk and the Fair Value of Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities”, which clarifies that the credit risk should be taken into account in
determining the fair value of derivative instruments. EIC 173 is to be applied retrospectively
without restatement of prior periods to all financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
in interim and annual financial statements for periods ending on or after the date of issuance of
EIC 173.

The adoption by the Fund of EIC 173 effective January 1, 2009, did not have a

material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
(s) Future accounting standards
(i)

Business combinations
In January 2009, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1582, “Business Combinations”, which
replaces the existing standard.

This section establishes the standards in the accounting for

business combinations, and states that all assets and liabilities of an acquired business will be
recorded at fair value. Obligations for contingent consideration and contingencies will also be
recorded at fair value at the acquisition date. The standard also states that acquisition-related
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costs will be expensed as incurred and that restructuring charges will be expensed in the
periods after the acquisition date.

This standard is equivalent to the International Financial

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) on business combinations. This standard is applied prospectively
to business combinations with acquisition dates on or after January 1, 2011. Earlier adoption is
permitted. The Fund is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard on its
consolidated financial statements.
(ii)

Non-controlling interests
In January 2009, the CICA issued Handbook Section 1602, “Non-controlling Interests”, which
establishes standards in the accounting for non-controlling interests of a subsidiary in the
preparation of consolidated financial statements subsequent to a business combination.

This

standard is equivalent to the IFRS on consolidated and separate financial statements.

This

standard is effective for 2011. Earlier adoption is permitted. The Fund is currently evaluating
the impact of adopting this standard on its consolidated financial statements
(iii)

Consolidated financial statements
In

January

2009,

the

CICA

issued

Handbook

Section

1601,

“Consolidated

Financial

Statements”, which replaces the existing standards. This section establishes the standards for
preparing consolidated financial statements and is effective for 2011.

Earlier adoption is

permitted. The Fund is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this standard on its
consolidated financial statements.
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2.

Financial instruments
(a) The Fund has classified its financial instruments as follows:

December 31
Financial assets
Held-for-trading, measured at fair value:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments held in trust
Cash and cash equivalents held in trust

2009

$

Available-for-sale investments, measured at
amortized cost
Loans and receivables, measured at amortized cost:
Accounts receivable
Advances to Operating Partners
Other assets
Financial liabilities, measured at amortized cost:
Revolving credit facilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Convertible debentures
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Capital lease obligations

43,882
20,142
64,024

2008

$

23,559
8,593
5,561
37,713

992

987

119,363
24,016
3,984
147,363

140,132
29,071
9,465
178,668

10,089
150,499
156,136
115,117
10,503
$ 442,344

27,400
210,000
152,683
102,306
13,436
$ 505,825

The fair value of loans and receivables and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost do not differ
significantly from their carrying value, except in the case of Convertible Debentures, for which the fair
value is $68,231 at December 31, 2009. The fair value measurement of the Convertible Debentures
is categorized as level 1 as the inputs used reflect quoted prices in an active market.
These estimates are subjective in nature and include uncertainties and matters of significant
judgement and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision.

Changes in assumptions could

significantly affect the estimates.
The Fund had $nil held-to-maturity financial instruments during the year ended December 31, 2009
and 2008.
The Fund’s insurance operations maintain trust bank accounts for premiums collected but not yet
remitted to insurance companies.

Newport Partners Income Fund

75

Financial Statements 2009

NEWPORT PARTNERS INCOME FUND
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of dollars, except per unit amounts)
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

(b) Short-term investments
The Fund had $nil short-term investments held in trust at December 31, 2009.

Short-term

investments held in trust at December 31, 2008 were comprised of marketable securities.
(c) Net interest expense
The Fund has recorded net interest expense in relation to the following financial instruments:

December 31
Interest expense
Interest expense
Interest expense
Interest expense

on debt
on Convertible Debentures
on capital leases
- other

$

2009
26,008
15,388
1,087
454
42,937

$

(2,086)
(252)
(138)
40,461

$

Less:
Net interest income earned on advances to Operating Partners
Interest income earned on cash
Interest income earned on short-term investments held in trust

$

2008
28,058
15,087
940
691
44,776

$

(2,700)
(785)
(325)
40,966

$

Interest expense on convertible debentures shown above include non-cash accretion of the convertible
debentures back to par of $1,576 (2008 - $1,702).

(d) Accounts receivable
The Fund’s accounts receivable is comprised of the following:

December 31
Trade receivables
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Other

Newport Partners Income Fund

2009
96,674
(1,496)
24,185
$ 119,363
$

76

2008
$ 116,918
(1,876)
25,090
$ 140,132
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3.

Inventories
Inventories are comprised as follows:

December 31
Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods
Goods held for resale
Parts and supplies

$

$

2009
6,151
16,029
1,339
9,769
746
34,034

$

$

2008
6,201
13,323
2,440
10,887
261
33,112

Work in progress also includes contracts accounted for using the percentage of completion method of
$7,717 in 2009 (2008 - $9,226).
Goods held for re-sale reflects inventory held at Titan.
Peerless, Titan and Capital C recorded inventory write-downs of $2,067 for the year ended December 31,
2009 (2008 - $2,518).

Included in cost of revenues is the cost of inventories of $80,889 (2008 -

$124,501).
4.

Other assets

December 31
Advances to Operating Partners (note 17)
Other

$

Less current portion
$

5.

2009
24,016
3,984
28,000
14,429
13,751

$

$

2008
29,071
9,465
38,536
22,830
15,706

Discontinued operations
On October 1, 2009, the Fund sold 100% of its investment in Elliott Special Risks LP (“ESR”) for net
proceeds of $74,614, resulting in an accounting gain of $31,308 which is included in income from
discontinued operations. Goodwill related to ESR was $27,832.
On September 30, 2008, the Fund sold 100% of the assets of its investment in Ezee ATM LP (“Ezee”). The
investment was sold for net proceeds of $30,710 resulting in a loss of $6,848 which is included in loss
from discontinued operations.
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The following table shows the revenue and net income from discontinued operations of ESR and Ezee for
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

December 31
Revenues
Net income (loss)

2009
ESR
$ 14,502
32,528

Ezee
$

$
-

Total
14,502
32,408

2008
$

ESR
Ezee
Total
17,011 $ 29,975 $ 46,986
(20,202)
(5,109)
(25,311)

Included in ESR’s 2008 net income is a $5,460 write-down of goodwill, an $11,424 write-down of customer
relationships and a $378 write-down of brands.
The balance sheet of ESR at December 31, 2008 has been categorized as assets and liabilities of
discontinued operations. The components of these items are as follows:

December 31
Current assets of discontinued operations
Long-lived assets of discontinued operations
Current liabilities of discontinued operations
Long-term liabilities of discontinued operations
Net assets of discontinued operations
6.

$

2008
20,554
45,009
20,797
5,087
39,679

Property, plant and equipment

Accumulated
December 31, 2009
Equipment under capital lease
Furniture and equipment
Computer hardware and software
Automotive and heavy equipment
Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Cost
$ 19,258
13,655
8,721
23,570
5,538
7,097
$ 77,839

Depreciation
$
8,495
3,748
5,248
11,936
1,548
2,852
$ 33,827

Net Book
$

$

Accumulated
December 31, 2008
Equipment under capital lease
Furniture and equipment
Computer hardware and software
Automotive and heavy equipment
Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements
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Cost
$ 20,694
13,007
9,471
17,434
4,255
4,473
$ 69,334
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Depreciation
$
6,521
4,587
5,557
6,077
940
1,592
$ 25,274

Value
10,763
9,907
3,473
11,634
3,990
4,245
44,012

Net Book
$

$

Value
14,173
8,420
3,914
11,357
3,315
2,881
44,060
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7.

Long-term investments

December 31
Investments in:
Brompton
RLogistics
Other

2009
$

7,498
7,239
1,310
16,047

$

2008
$

7,423
7,238
1,337
15,998

$

The amortization of the intangible assets included as part of the cost of investment of Brompton Funds LP
(“Brompton”) was $1,150 (2008- $1,936).

The unamortized balance of such intangible assets at

December 31, 2009 was $4,599 (2008 - $5,749).
As part of management’s annual investment review for the year ended December 31, 2008, the Fund
wrote-off $29,000 against its investment in Brompton.

The write-off was in the amount of $20,783

against goodwill with the balance being applied to intangible assets.
On April 4, 2008, the Fund completed an acquisition agreement with Duntroon Energy Ltd. (“Duntroon”)
pursuant to which the Fund exchanged all of its 45% equity interest in Brompton to Duntroon for a 42%
equity interest in Duntroon.

Immediately following the transaction Duntroon changed it name to

Brompton Corp. The transaction has been accounted for as a non-monetary transaction and accordingly,
the shares in Brompton Corp. were recorded at the carrying value of the units of Brompton.
8.

Write-down of goodwill and intangible assets and impairment of long-term investments
Write-downs of goodwill, customer relationships and brands recorded by the Fund during the year ended
December 31, 2009 were as follows:

Customer
Investment
S&E
NPC
Quantum Murray
Hargraft
Titan
Gusgo
BMI
NPY

Newport Partners Income Fund

Goodwill
$
371
132
3,086
3,589
3,567
$ 7,156

Relationships
$
903
11,163
7,698
3,655
23,419
$ 23,419
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$

$

Brands
6,278
1,067
864
3,552
347
290
12,398
12,398

$

$

Total
1,274
17,573
1,067
11,648
7,207
347
290
39,406
3,567
42,973
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Write-downs of goodwill, customer relationships and brands recorded by the Fund during the year ended
December 31, 2008 was as follows:

Customer
Investment
NP LP
S&E
NPC
Morrison Williams
Quantum Murray
Hargraft
Titan
Armstrong
BMI

Goodwill
$ 37,338
12,376
14,461
4,158
7,203
6,375
81,911
85,940
$ 167,851

NPY

Relationships
$
6,700
1,051
5,065
7,836
10,360
2,440
1,533
5,077
4,859
44,921
$ 44,921

Brands
2,952
7,842
468
193
4,051
2,560
461
18,527
$ 18,527

$

Total
46,990
1,051
25,283
22,765
14,711
2,440
12,787
14,012
5,320
145,359
85,940
$ 231,299

$

Goodwill
The Fund reviews all of its investments for possible impairment on an annual basis, or more frequently if
there is an event, or series of events, which in the view of management would trigger an earlier review. In
view of significantly reduced customer demand and customer attrition, the Fund performed an impairment
test at September 30, 2009 with respect to its investments in Hargraft and Titan. There were no writedowns to goodwill as a result of this review. The Fund completed its annual impairment test in the fourth
quarter of 2009.

The Fund determined that the fair value of certain investments was lower than the

carrying value, and as a result the Fund recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $3,589. In assessing
whether there was an impairment, the Fund estimated the fair value of its investments using certain
assumptions and estimates of earnings. These assumptions may differ or change quickly depending on
economic conditions or other events.

Therefore, it is possible that future changes in assumptions may

negatively impact future valuations of its investments and goodwill which would result in further
impairment of goodwill. Future change in assumptions which would positively impact future valuation of
its investments and goodwill would not result in an increase in goodwill or the recording of any gain.
Additional goodwill in NPY of $3,567, arising from step acquisitions on unit exchanges was written-off.
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For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Fund recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $81,911
relating to its investments. Additional goodwill in NPY of $85,940, arising from step acquisitions on unit
exchanges was written-off.

December 31
January 1
Net increase (decrease) in investments
Increase relating to step acquisitions of NPY through unit exchanges
Write-downs
Goodwill

$

$

2009
70,640
1,863
3,567
(7,156)
68,914

2008
$ 242,411
(8,765)
4,845
(167,851)
$ 70,640

Intangibles
During the review of its carrying value of its investments, the Fund also performed an impairment test of
its intangible assets, whereby the carrying amount of intangible assets was compared to the discounted
future cash flows expected from their use. Impairment tests involve a significant degree of judgement, as
expectations concerning future cash flows and the selection of an appropriate discount rate are subject to
considerable risks and uncertainties. As a result of the September 30, 2009 impairment test, the Fund
reduced the carrying value of intangible assets by $8,155 with respect to customer relationships and
$3,952 with respect to brands. As a result of the fourth quarter impairment test, the Fund concluded that
additional impairment had occurred, and consequently the Fund reduced the carrying value of intangible
assets by $15,264 with respect to customer relationships and $8,446 with respect to brands. The total
intangible asset write-off for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $23,419 of customer relationships
and $12,398 of brands.
For the year ended December 31, 2008, the Fund reduced the carrying value of intangible assets by
$44,921 with respect to customer relationships and $18,527 with respect to brands.

December 31
January 1
Net increase (decrease) in investments
Amortization
Write-downs
Intangible Assets
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2009
$ 168,953
(789)
(30,368)
(35,817)
$ 101,979
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2008
$ 266,406
1,175
(35,180)
(63,448)
$ 168,953
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Intangible assets as at December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

December 31, 2009
Definite life intangible assets:
Customer relationships/contracts
Management contracts
Non-competition agreements
Indefinite life intangible assets:
Brands

December 31, 2008
Definite life intangible assets:
Customer relationships/contracts
Management contracts
Non-competition agreements

Accumulated

Net Book

Cost

Amortization

Value

$ 146,321
567
1,000
147,888

$ 65,135
567
1,000
66,702

$

20,793
$ 168,681

$ 66,702

20,793
$ 101,979

Accumulated

Net Book

Amortization

Value

Cost
$

Indefinite life intangible assets:
Brands
$

201,633
567
1,000
203,200
33,192
236,392

$

$

65,957
482
1,000
67,439
67,439

$

$

81,186
81,186

135,676
85
135,761
33,192
168,953

The above intangible assets reflect management’s best estimates of intangibles recorded through
acquisitions.
Long-term investments
Investments are written down when there is evidence that a decline in value that is other than temporary
has occurred.

The carrying amounts of the investments are compared to the discontinued cash flows

expected from their use. There was no write-down of investments in 2009. During the 2008 impairment
test, it was determined that the Fund’s investment in Brompton was impaired, and accordingly a writedown of $29,000 was recorded.
9.

Business combinations
(i)

The following investment made by the Fund during the year ended December 31, 2009 was accounted
for using the purchase method, and the results of the operations have been included in the Fund’s
consolidated financial statements since the date of investment.

The estimated fair values of the

assets acquired and liabilities assumed for the significant investments made by the Fund are as
follows:
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ESR
Assets acquired:
Current assets (includes cash of $113)
Property, plant and equipment
Long-term investments
Goodwill
Intangible assets

$

Liabilities assumed:
Current liabilities
Future tax liability

3,584
112
109
4,610
4,852
13,267
3,755
912
4,667

Net assets acquired:
Consideration
Cash
Transaction costs
$

8,500
100
8,600

On January 30, 2009, the minority limited partner of ESR delivered to NPH an offer letter pursuant to the
Shotgun Buy-Sell provision of the limited partnership agreement governing ESR. On February 27, 2009
NPH elected to accept the minority limited partner’s offer to sell its 20% interest in ESR. The transaction
closed on March 31, 2009, at which time, the Fund paid $8,500 and its interest in ESR increased to 100%.
This transaction has been accounted for using the purchase method. On October 1, 2009, the Fund sold
its 100% interest in ESR (refer to note 5).
(ii) Other investment transactions
On February 10, 2009, Hargraft sold the shares of its wholly owned subsidiary, Hargraft Schofield
Benefits Inc. for proceeds of $1,274 to the Fund, and recorded a nominal gain on the transaction. As
part of the transaction, goodwill and intangible assets written-off amounted to $240 and $994,
respectively.
On August 31, 2009, the Fund paid to the vendor of IC Group, the final payment of a three year earnout provision, pursuant to the original purchase and sale agreement dated July 2006. The payment
amount of $2,337 has been added to goodwill.
On December 4, 2009, the Fund paid $96 to acquire an additional 6% interest in Hargraft. The Fund
now owns 100% of Hargraft. The fair value of assets and liabilities acquired equalled the purchase
consideration and consequently no goodwill was recognized.
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For the year ended December 31, 2008
On January 1, 2008, Titan paid $1,235 ($1,074 net of cash acquired) to acquire and cancel 4% of its units.
As a consequence, the Fund’s ownership percentage of Titan increased to 92%, and goodwill relating to
this investment has increased by $785.
On May 28, 2008, the vendors of Peerless refunded $305 to the Fund as a result of an adjustment to the
opening inventory of Peerless. This amount was accounted for as a reduction in goodwill.
On August 1, 2008, as part of a three year earn-out arrangement relating to the Fund’s investment in IC
Group, a purchase price adjustment in the Fund’s favour of $2,852 was calculated, and has been recorded
as a reduction in the carrying value of goodwill.

$2,000 of this amount was received in cash from the

vendor, and the balance is included as a receivable in other assets.
On November 19, 2008, the Fund paid $1,725 ($1,416 net of cash acquired) to acquire an additional 14%
interest in Hargraft. As a consequence, the Fund’s ownership percentage of Hargraft increased to 94%.
Fair value of assets and liabilities acquired equalled the purchase consideration and consequently no
goodwill was recognized on the investment.
10.

Credit facilities and long-term debt
On December 7, 2006, the Fund entered into a Senior Credit Agreement with the Lenders to provide up to
$320,000 in funding. The Senior Credit Agreement is collateralized by general security agreements
covering assets of all of the operating partnerships of the Fund, other than Brompton and RGC LP.
Repayment was required on the maturity date in 2012.

Amounts owing under the Senior Credit

Agreement bear interest at Banker’s Acceptance (“BA”) rate plus 5.95%.
As at December 31, 2008, the Fund was not in compliance with certain covenants under its Senior Credit
Agreement.
On July 21, 2009, the Fund announced that a Forbearance Agreement had been entered into with the
Lenders. Under the terms of the Forbearance Agreement, the Lenders agreed not to enforce their default
related rights and remedies under the Senior Credit Agreement for a period of up to 365 days.
The Fund has agreed to repay the Lenders in full by the end of the Forbearance Period, by realizing
minimum net proceeds on disposals of assets and from the proceeds of re-financings of the investee
businesses of the Fund by certain agreed-upon dates. The minimum debt repayment targets and agreed
upon dates were $70,000 by November 10, 2009; $55,000 by January 10, 2010 with the balance to be
repaid by July 21, 2010.
From January 31, 2010, the Fund will be subject to a monthly minimum EBITDA covenant, and to a
maximum capital expenditures covenant.
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Assuming that the Fund is in compliance with the Forbearance Agreement, the Lenders have also agreed
that no default interest will accrue or be payable during the Forbearance Period and have agreed to waive
certain prepayment fees which would otherwise continue to apply. Default interest up until the beginning
of the Forbearance Period will be paid in part from the proceeds of asset sales with the balance payable at
the end of the Forbearance Period. Default interest accrued at December 31, 2009 was $2,969.
A forbearance fee is to be paid to the Lenders, in part from asset sales with the balance payable at the end
of the Forbearance Period (refer to note 1(a)). The fee is initially 75 basis points of the principal amount
outstanding under the Senior Credit Agreement, but may be reduced to 25 basis points upon certain
repayment targets being achieved. A fee of $1,850 has been accrued for the year ended December 31
2009, and $92 has been paid.
At the inception of the Senior Credit Facility, when the term facility was drawn and on subsequent draws
under the delayed draw term facility, the Lenders entered into currency swap arrangements to hedge
payments received by the Fund under the Senior Credit Facility. In connection with any prepayments
under the Senior Credit Facility, the Fund is required to pay the Lenders the amount of any breakage
costs, fees or penalties incurred by the Lenders under their currency swap arrangements. As a result of the
minimum debt repayment targets under the Forbearance Agreements, the Fund has paid the Lenders $963
during 2009 relating to prepayment penalties which are included in interest expense.
In conjunction with the signing of the Forbearance Agreement, NPH, a subsidiary of the Fund, has
arranged for a $20,000 subordinated financing facility from an affiliate in order to provide sufficient
working capital.

The facility bears interest at 10% per annum and repayments of principal and interest

can be made after the January 7, 2010 repayment to the senior lender has been completed.

As at

December 31, 2009, the Fund has drawn $10,089 on this facility. Interest expense accrued on this facility
at December 31, 2009 was $449.
On October 1, 2009, $70,100 was paid to the Lenders and was applied as follows: $32,110 to the
revolving credit facility, $30,023 to the term facility, $6,888 to collateralize existing and new letters of
credit with the balance of $1,079 to pay default interest and fees. The collateral balance for the letters of
credit is included in cash and cash equivalents in trust.
On November 25, 2009, the Fund announced an amendment to the Forbearance Agreement had been
entered into with the Lenders (the “First Amendment”).
Under the terms of the First Amendment, the requirement to repay $55,000 by January 7, 2010 by way of
proceeds from the asset sales has been amended. The Lenders have agreed to allow for repayments by
using cash on hand and proceeds from asset sales. $30,000 was repaid on November 25, 2009 and the
next repayment was scheduled for February 28, 2010 in the amount of $35,000, with the balance to be
repaid by July 21, 2010.
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On February 19, 2010, the Fund announced that a second amendment to the Forbearance Agreement had
been entered into with the Lenders (the “Second Amendment”).

Under the terms of the Second

Amendment, the requirement to repay $35,000 by February 28, 2010 has been amended to a requirement
to pay $18,500. On February 18, 2010 the Fund paid $20,000 from cash on hand which included a $1,500
rescheduling fee. The balance owing of $132,000 is to be repaid by July 21, 2010.
In addition, the Lenders consented to NPH acquiring all of the issued and outstanding equity interests of
Gemma, that it does not currently own (refer to note 26).
By reason of the continuing events of default under the Senior Credit Agreement, the Fund was prohibited
under its collateral covenant agreement with the Lenders from making the June 30, 2009 interest payment
of $5,968 on the Debentures. As of July 15, 2009, the failure to make the interest payment constitutes an
event of default under the terms of the trust indenture.

Under the terms of the trust indenture, the

debenture trustee could provide notice to the Fund to declare all principal and interest to become due and
payable as a result of this default. Accordingly, after July 15, 2009 the Debentures have been classified as
a current liability (refer to note 13).

The Forbearance Agreement does not permit the Fund to make

principal or interest payments on the Debentures during the Forbearance Period and as a result the
additional interest payment of $5,968 due December 31, 2009 was not made.

Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities include $11,936 of accrued interest on the Debentures.
11.

Obligations under capital leases
Capital lease obligations relate to vehicles and heavy equipment. The leases bear interest at rates from
0% to 11.9% (2008 – 4.1% to 16%) per annum and are secured by specific assets.

The Fund’s

proportionate interest in future minimum payments are as follows:

December 31
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Total minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest (at rates ranging
from 0% to 11.9%
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments
Less current portion of obligations under capital leases

$

$

2009
5,184
3,720
1,673
523
616
11,716
1,213
10,503
4,588
5,915

Interest of $1,087 for the year December, 31, 2009 (2008 - $940) relating to capital lease obligations has
been included in interest expense.
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12.

Income taxes
Under the provisions of Bill C-52, Budget Implementation Act, 2007, which received Royal Assent on June
22, 2007, the Fund, as a publicly traded income trust, is considered a specified investment flow-through
(“SIFT”) and will become subject to tax commencing January 1, 2011. Prior to 2011, the Fund continues
to qualify for special income tax treatment that permits a tax deduction by the Fund for distributions paid
to its unitholders.

For accounting purposes, the Fund has computed future income tax based on

temporary differences expected to reverse after December 31, 2010 at the substantively enacted tax rates
and laws expected to apply for such periods.

For periods prior to January 1, 2011, the Fund has also

recognized future income tax assets and liabilities on temporary differences expected to reverse prior to
2011 as the Fund has suspended distributions of its taxable income to its unitholders and does not intend
to make future distributions of taxable income. Accordingly, the Fund does not qualify for the exemption
under EIC-107, applicable to income funds, from having to account for future income taxes where the
Fund is committed to distributing all or virtually all of its taxable income to its unitholders.
Under the SIFT Rules, flow-through subsidiaries of the Fund may also themselves be within the definition
of a SIFT. Since the SIFT Rules have only recently been enacted, the Canada Revenue Agency’s
administrative policies regarding the interpretation of the SIFT Rules and their application to the trusts and
partnerships in which a publicly traded income fund holds a direct or indirect interest are still under
review. It is not entirely clear whether the legislation arrives at such result nor that this is the intent and
no judicial precedents as yet exist to assist in interpreting the legislation. Accordingly this gives rise to a
tax uncertainty which the Fund was required to assess and the Fund concluded that even if it is
determined that these flow-through subsidiaries meet the definition of a SIFT, there should be no material
impact on the income tax provision and future tax assets and liabilities of the Fund. On November 28,
2008, the Minister of Finance released draft legislation to amend the SIFT Rules under which certain flowthrough subsidiaries of a SIFT, which would include the majority of those of the Fund, will not themselves
be SIFTs.

This legislation was not substantively enacted as at the Fund’s year end and would not

materially impact the Fund’s provision for income taxes.
The following provision for income taxes reflects the impact of the SIFT legislation and the tax rate
changes and the impact of the suspension of distributions to unitholders.
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The reconciliation of statutory income tax rates to the Fund’s effective tax rate is as follows:

December 31
Income tax recovery at statutory rates
Permanent differences on goodwill and intangible assets
Future taxes as a result of units exchanged
Change in tax rates
Other

2009
(26,244)
5,358
4,869
239
1,789
(13,989)
43
(14,032)
(13,989)

$

Income tax expense- current
Income tax recovery - future
$

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to future income tax liabilities are as follows:

December 31
Future tax liability:
Intangible assets
Fixed assets
Other
Total future tax liability
Current future tax asset
Net future tax liability
Less current portion

2009
$

$
13.

10,474
1,790
(6,706)
5,558
5,558
105
5,453

2008
$

$

21,070
1,491
(1,572)
20,989
1,393
19,596
19,596

Convertible debentures
On June 30, 2009, the Fund was contractually prohibited from paying interest due on the Debentures. The
Fund will continue to be prohibited from paying interest on the Debentures during the Forbearance Period
(refer to note 1(a)). The failure to make the interest payment constitutes an event of default under the
terms of the trust indenture of the Debentures. The Fund is currently in discussions with the holders of
the Debentures to restructure the debt.
The Fund has completed two offerings of Debentures since inception. Each Debenture can be converted
into units of the Fund at the option of the holder at any time prior to maturity at a stated conversion price.
The Debentures are classified as debt, net of the fair value of the conversion feature and net of deferred
financing charges. The fair value of the conversion feature has been classified as unitholders’ equity.
Issue costs are amortized over the term of the Debentures, and the debt portion will accrete up to the
principal balance at maturity.
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Details of the Convertible Debentures are as follows:

Issue date
Principal amount
Interest rate
Net proceeds (after issue and related costs)
Conversion price
Maturity
Equity component
1

December 12, 2005
$
85,000
7.5%
81,298
9.50
December 31, 2010
669

July 12, 2007
$
79,9661
7.0%
75,994
6.90
December 31, 2012
9,186

Includes the over-allotment option exercised on August 8, 2007.

After December 31, 2008, the Debentures issued in 2005 may be redeemed in whole or in part by the
Fund, at the amount outstanding plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, except that for redemption on
or prior to December 31, 2009 the current market price of the units must not be less than 125% of the
conversion price.
After December 31, 2010, the Debentures issued in 2007 may be redeemed in whole or in part by the
Fund, at the amount outstanding plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, except that for redemption on
or prior to December 31, 2011 the current market price of the units must not be less than 125% of the
conversion price.

Balance December 31, 2007
Accretion
Deferred finance charges
Balance December 31, 2008
Accretion
Deferred finance charges
Balance December 31, 2009

December 12, 2005
Issue
$
81,730
134
740
$
82,604
144
806
$
83,554

July 12, 2007
Issue
$
67,800
1,569
710
$
70,079
1,732
771
$
72,582

Total
$

$

$

149,530
1,703
1,450
152,683
1,876
1,577
156,136

NPH has issued three series of units, Class A LP units, which are 100% owned by NPY, and the Class B and
Class C LP units which are 100% owned by Commercial Trust. In the case of conversion of the Debentures
of Newport into units of Newport, Commercial Trust will transfer the corresponding number of Class B and
Class C LP units of NPH to NPY for a corresponding number of NPY Class A1 LP units, and NPY will then
exchange its Class B and Class C LP units of NPH for a corresponding number of Class A LP units of NPH.
14.

Unitholders’ equity
Each trust unit represents an equal undivided beneficial interest in the Fund and any distributions from the
Fund.

Each unit is transferable, entitles the holder thereof to participate equally in distributions of the

Fund, is not subject to future calls or assessments, entitles the holder to rights of redemption and entitles
the holder to one vote at all meetings of unitholders.
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The beneficial interests of the Fund are divided into interests of two classes, described and designated as
“Units” and “Special Voting Units”, respectively.
Special Voting Units are only issued to the holders of A2 LP Units of NPY and, if determined by the trustees
of the Fund, other exchangeable securities, in each case, for the purpose of providing voting rights with
respect of the Fund to the holders of such securities.
Upon the exchange or conversion of an A2 LP Unit or other exchangeable security for Units, the Special
Voting Unit that relates to such A2 LP Unit of NPY or other exchangeable security will immediately be
cancelled without any further action and the former holder of such Special Voting Unit will cease to have
any rights with respect thereto. As at December 31, 2009, all units have been exchanged and there are
no remaining A2 LP units outstanding.
Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement between the Commercial Trust and NPY 25,090,701 (2008 –
5,411,273) A2 LP units were exchanged for A1 LP units. As 12,194,933 (2008 – 2,537,949) of the units
exchanged were outstanding prior to the IPO, the conversions of these trust units were calculated as step
acquisitions.
On January 20, 2009, the Fund received approval from the Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX”) for a Normal
Course Issuer Bid (“NCIB”) to purchase for cancellation through the facilities of the TSX, up to 2,327,194
units through to January 22, 2010, representing 5% of its then-issued and outstanding units. No units
have been purchased in 2009 for cancellation under the NCIB to date and, pursuant to the terms of the
Forbearance Agreement, the Fund is prohibited from purchasing any units.
On December 18, 2007, the Fund received approval from the TSX for a NCIB to purchase for cancellation,
up to 2,070,348 of its units, representing 5% of its then issued and outstanding units. For the year ended
December 31, 2008 the Fund purchased 237,500 for cancellation.
15.

Distributions and allocations to unitholders
On October 8, 2008, the Fund announced that it was suspending payments of its distribution. The total
distributions paid and payable during the year ended December 31, 2008 were $20,906.

The Fund’s

Forbearance Agreement with its Lenders prohibits the Fund from making distributions on its units during
the Forbearance Period.
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16.

Loss per unit
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted loss per unit:

Year ended December 31
Numerator:
Loss from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Net loss
Denominator:
Weighted average number of units outstanding
Basic and diluted
Income (loss) per unit (basic and diluted)
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net loss

2009

2008

$ (64,586)
32,408
(32,178)

$ (208,063)
(16,346)
(224,409)

63,359,738

43,282,729

$

$

$

(1.02)
0.51
(0.51)

$

(4.81)
(0.37)
(5.18)

The units issuable on the conversion of the Convertible Debentures are the only potentially dilutive units.
The computation of fully diluted loss per unit is anti-dilutive and is not shown here.
17.

Related party transactions
Employee loans, net of provisions, made to employees of the Fund and its subsidiary NP LP included in
other assets are outstanding in the amount of $3,470 (2008 – $4,055).

In accordance with the terms and

condition of the loans, the loans are interest bearing and were used to purchase units of the Fund and are
secured by units and in certain cases personal guarantees.
Included in Other Assets are advances of $24,016 (2008 – $29,071) made to the Operating Partnerships.
Advances classified as current bear interest at the Bank’s prime rate plus 1%, are unsecured and have no
fixed terms of repayment. A long term advance of $12,556 is due in 2017 unless certain future
performance criteria are achieved by the borrower at which time the advance would be converted to
equity. Interest income on the advances is $2,086 (2008 - $2,700).
Selling, General and Administrative expenses includes $2,803 of rent expense paid to related parties of
Quantum Murray, Gusgo and NPC.
These transactions occurred in the normal course of business and are recorded at the exchange amount,
which is the amount of consideration established and agreed to between the parties.
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18.

Financial risk management
(a) Overview
The Fund has exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Fund’s board of trustees has
overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Fund’s risk management framework.
(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Fund if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Fund’s accounts
receivable. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The Fund has adopted a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for
creditworthiness before the Fund’s standard payment terms and conditions are offered. The Fund’s
exposure to credit risk with its customers is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer.

When available, the Fund reviews credit bureau ratings, bank accounts and financial

information for each new customer. The majority of the Fund’s customers are located in Canada and
represent various industries. Revenues of NPC are heavily concentrated, with its top three customers
representing 22% of consolidated revenue for the Fund (2008 – 19%). NPC’s customers are primarily
multinational oil and gas and construction companies all of which have strong creditworthiness.
Revenues from the top three customers represents 64% of NPC’s total revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2009 and 82% of the accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2009 is due from
these customers (2008 – three customers comprised 42% of revenues and 27% of accounts
receivable).
Revenues from the top three customers represents 74% of Quantum Murray’s total revenues for the
year ended December 31, 2009 and 82% of the accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2009 is
due from these customers (2008 – three customers comprised 17% of revenues and 10% of accounts
receivable).
Revenues from the top three customers represents 96% of Peerless’ total revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2009 and 92% of the accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2009 is due from
these customers (2008 – three customers comprised 99% of revenues and 92% of accounts
receivable).
On a consolidated basis, the aforementioned customers of NPC, Quantum Murray and Peerless
represents 39% of the Fund’s revenues for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 41% of the Fund’s
accounts receivable balance at December 31, 2009 (2008 – 27% of revenues and 15% of accounts
receivable).
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The Fund establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts that represent its estimate of incurred losses
in respect of trade receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component
that relates to individually significant exposures, and an overall loss component established based on
historical trends and other information. When a receivable balance is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance for accounts receivable.
Accounts receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally due within periods up to 90 days. At
December 31, 2009, the allowance for doubtful accounts was $1,496 (2008- $1,876). The changes in
the allowance during the year were as follows:

Allowance, January 1, 2009
Impairment of receivables
Receivables written-off as uncollectible
Allowance, December 31, 2009

$

$

2009
1,876
2,312
(2,692)
1,496

Trade receivables over 90 days that are past due were:

December 31, 2009
Gross trade accounts receivable
Allowance at end of year

$

December 31, 2008
Gross trade accounts receivable
Allowance at end of year

>90 Days
1,077
1,077

>120 Days
$
1,331
407
924

11,031
1,620
9,471

933
255
677

(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Fund’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund’s reputation.
As at December 31, 2009, the Fund had financial assets held-for-trading of $64,024, available-for-sale
investments of $992, loans and receivables of $147,363 and financial liabilities of $442,344. As at
December 31, 2008, the Fund had financial assets held-for-trading of $37,713, available-for-sale
investments of $987, loans and receivables of $178,668 and financial liabilities of $505,825.

The

original maturity dates for long-term debt were in 2011 and 2012, and 2010 and 2012 for the
Debentures. Both the debt and Debentures have been reclassified as current (refer to notes 10 and
13). The capital lease obligations expire primarily in the years 2010 to 2013.
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The Fund’s strategy is that long-term debt should always form part of its capital structure, assuming
an appropriate cost.

As existing debt approaches maturity, the Fund will either replace it with new

debt, convert into equity or refinance or restructure, depending on the state of the capital markets at
the time.
The Fund manages its liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual gross profit and
cash flows from operations.

(d) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates,
commodity prices and equity prices will affect the Fund’s income or the value of its financial
instruments. The Fund markets its products primarily in Canada and substantially all of the Fund’s
financial assets and liabilities originate in Canadian dollars. The Fund is exposed to currency risk for
purchases that are denominated in U.S. dollars. The Fund believes this risk is minimal and has not
entered into any currency hedging transactions.
The Fund is exposed to currency risk on certain sales and purchases.

At December 31, 2009 and

December 31, 2008, the Fund’s consolidated financial statements included the Canadian equivalent of
the following U.S. dollar denominated balances:

December 31
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

$
$

2009
3,874
(1,694)
2,180

$
$

2008
6,926
(3,747)
3,179

The Fund’s interest rate on the long term debt facility is based on a floating BA rate. If the interest
payments continue to be based on the floating rate, a 1% increase (decrease) in the interest rate
would have resulted in $1,505 decrease (increase) in the earnings from operations of the Fund for the
year ended December 31, 2009 (2008 - $2,100).

This analysis assumes that all other variables

remain constant.
19.

Interests in jointly controlled entities
At December 31, 2009, the Fund holds a 92% interest in Titan, a 90% interest in Peerless, 80% interests
in S&E, NPC, Gemma, Morrison Williams, Gusgo, Armstrong and IC Group, a 78% interest in BMI, a 67%
interest in Capital C and a 64% interest in Quantum Murray (2008- 94% interest in Hargraft, a 92%
interest in Titan, a 90% interest in Peerless, 80% interests in S&E, NPC, Gemma, ESR, Morrison Williams,
Gusgo, Armstrong and IC Group, a 78% interest in BMI, a 67% interest in Capital C and a 64% interest in
Quantum Murray).

The consolidated financial statements include the Fund’s proportionate share of the

revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities of these jointly controlled entities as follows:
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December 31
Current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Long-term investments
Goodwill and intangible assets
Other assets

$

2009
164,951
42,617
7,559
45,564
1,153
261,844

$

211,667
1,267
212,934

$

Current liabilities
Long-term obligations

Year ended December 31
Revenue
Expenses
Net income (loss)

$
$

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities
Financing activities
Investing activities

$

$
20.

2009
569,512
563,383
6,129

38,104
(37,652)
8,592
9,044

$

2008
202,778
42,411
350
89,265
2,027
336,831

$

243,192
6,682
249,874

$

$
$

$

$

2008
638,084
660,869
(22,785)

43,209
(37,085)
(18,625)
(12,501)

Changes in non-cash working capital
Changes in non-cash working capital balances related to operations are as follows:

December 31
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

$

1

$
1

2009
20,557
(922)
(12)
8,566
13,648
(339)
41,498

$

$

2008
(18,986)
2,060
(313)
(392)
12,920
2,131
(2,580)

Includes increase in accrued interest for the year ended December 31, 2009 of $17,112 (refer to note 10).
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21.

Commitments and other contingencies
(a) The Fund is committed to payments under operating leases for equipment and office premises through
2019 in the total amount of approximately $39,714. The minimum annual payments, exclusive of
operating costs under these lease arrangements, are as follows:
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Thereafter

$

$

11,408
9,672
7,441
5,156
2,580
3,457
39,714

The Fund’s contractual obligations for the years 2010 to 2014, and thereafter are as follows:

Interest expense
Long-term debt (note 10)
Convertible debenture
(note 13)
Revolving credit facility
Capital lease obligations
Operating leases
Total contractual
obligations

2010

2011

2012

$ 36,211
150,499

$ 5,598
-

$ 5,598
-

164,466
10,089
5,184
11,408

3,720
9,672

1,673
7,441

523
5,156

616
2,580

$377,857

$18,990

$14,712

$5,679

$ 3,196

2013
$

-

2014
$

-

Thereafter
$

$

Total

-

$ 47,407
150,499

3,457

164,466
10,089
11,716
39,714

3,457

$423,891

The obligation for interest expense includes $18,276 related to the settlement of accrued interest at
December 31, 2009.
(b) The various Acquisition Agreements provide that elections may be made under the Income Tax Act
(Canada) to transfer the assets of the predecessor businesses to the various respective limited
partnerships on a tax deferred basis. Accordingly, the tax cost to the Operating Partnership of the
assets transferred where such elections are made may be less than the fair market value of such
assets and, as such, some of the Operating Partnerships may realize a taxable gain on a future
disposition of the assets.
(c) The Fund and its Operating Partnerships are subject to claims and litigation proceedings arising in the
normal course of operations. These contingencies are provided for when they are likely to occur and
can be reasonably estimated. Management believes that the ultimate resolution of these matters will
not have a material effect on the Fund’s consolidated financial statements.
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A statement of claim has been filed alleging breach of contract and negligence. NPH signed a letter of
intent with a third party to acquire several businesses. The transaction was not completed. The claim
is for $630 relating to third party costs relating to the transaction and $38,600 in damages.

A

statement of defence has been filed. Management is of the opinion that this claim is without merit.
A statement of claim has been filed by the controlling shareholder of the minority unitholder of a
subsidiary business and their related companies for an amount $4,000 plus interest and costs relating
to the acquisition of a company. In addition, damages of a further $900 are being claimed by the
plaintiff who alleges that the subsidiary business is the rightful owner of this company. Management
is assessing this claim but its current view is that the claim is without merit.
A statement of claim has been filed by a minority unitholder of a subsidiary business for damages of
$10,000 alleging that the subsidiary business has breached its fiduciary obligations to the unitholder
group. Management feels that the claim is without merit, and intends to vigorously defend itself.
A statement of claim has been filed by a former senior employee of a subsidiary business alleging
wrongful dismissal. The claim is for an amount of $700 along with such damages as may be proven at
trial.

Management feels that the claim is without merit and has filed a counter claim of $2,300

including damages.
A statement of claim has been filed by a former employee of the Fund alleging breach of contract,
wrongful dismissal, defamation, and intentional interference with economic relations. The claim is for
an amount of $6,500. Management feels the claim is without merit, and will vigorously defend itself.
(d) Certain acquisitions involved various corporate structuring steps to complete the transactions in a taxeffective manner. These transactions involved interpretations of the Income Tax Act (Canada) which
could if interpreted differently result in additional tax liabilities.
(e) The Fund has $3,285 of letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2009. The letters of credit are
predominantly to secure cash management services provided by Royal Bank of Canada and as security
for programs in the Marketing and Industrial Services segment. The letters of credit are collateralized
and the balance is included in cash and cash equivalents held in trust (note 2).
22.

Segmented information
The Fund has six reportable operating segments, each of which has separate operational management and
management reporting information.
Canada.

All of the Fund’s operations, assets and employees are located in

The financial services segment incorporates investment management, institutional money

management, wealth management and insurance brokerage services. The marketing segment represents
the investment in non-traditional marketing operations that acquires rights in media, publications and
television, and an investment in an integrated direct marketing company with its primary focus on inbound
and outbound teleservices, an investment in a fully integrated marketing services agency and investments
in two promotional solutions marketing firms. The industrial services segment includes two reportable
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segments and represents the investments in fully integrated providers of mid-stream production services
to the energy industry and in a provider of demolition contract service and site remediation services. The
other segment incorporates a manufacturer of protective outerwear, a distributor and manufacturer of
heavy equipment, a container transportation business and a reverse logistics provider.

The corporate

segment represents head office administrative and financing costs incurred by the Partnership.
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies in note 1.

The Fund utilizes earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and

amortization (“EBITDA”) as a performance measure for its operating partners and segment results, and
accordingly a reconciliation from net income to EBITDA is included herein.

Year ended

Financial

December 31, 2009

Services

Marketing

Industrial Services
Quantum
Murray

Other

Corporate

Total

NPC
Revenue

$

Cost of revenue

Expenses
Selling, general and
administrative
Amortization of intangible
assets
Depreciation
Income (loss) before the
undernoted
Income (loss) from equity
investment

Expenditures for property,
plant and equipment
Total assets
Total goodwill
(i)

$ 71,159

56,148

206,798

115,203

50,454

-

438,485

17,907

32,252

48,361

27,163

20,705

-

146,388

12,245

18,535

28,883

21,598

10,958

12,803

105,022

7,545

7,052

5,291

3,127

7,353

-

30,368

317

1,485

5,964

4,716

728

119

13,329

20,107

27,072

40,138

29,441

19,039

12,922

148,719

5,180

8,223

46

$

88,400

$

255,159

(50)

$

(2,278)

$

1,666

-

$

584,873

(12,922)

(2,331)

-

-

1,110

-

1,106

184

8,222

485

923

30,768

40,461

11,938

1,274

17,573

1,067

7,554

3,567

42,973

25

-

-

-

-

18

43

(5,441)
(8,555)

82
$

(121)
7,862
1,150
25
(5,441)
$

Goodwill acquired (ii)

$

(121)

Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of Brompton
intangible asset (i)
Income tax expense – current
Income tax expense (recovery)
– future
EBITDA

142,366

9,882

(2,200)

Interest (income) expense
Write-down of goodwill and
intangibles
Income tax expense- current
Income tax expense (recovery)
– future
Income (loss) from continuing
operations
Add back:
Interest (income) expenses

27,789

(5,080)
(20)
96,684
27,493

3,590

(2,112)
$

$

(1,633)

(1,578)

$ (4,068)

(2,676)
$

(44,599)

(14,032)
$

(70,670)

184
8,537

8,222
11,255

485
7,843

923
8,163

30,768
119

40,461
43,779

-

-

-

-

18

1,150
43

82
$

(15,460)

(2,252)

12,393

(2,112)
$

1,905

(2,252)
$

4,498

(1,633)
$

3,385

(2,676)
$

(16,370)

(14,032)
$

731

2,337

-

-

-

4,610

6,947

949

5,258

1,914

146

-

8,247

71,056
18,269

91,371
10,681

85,634
7,183

66,140
5,288

68,439
-

479,324
68,914

The amortization of the intangible asset related to the investment in Brompton is included in income from equity investment.

(ii) Discontinued operations previously part of the financial services segment are included in the corporate segment (refer to note 5).
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Year ended

Financial

December 31, 2008

Services

Marketing

Industrial Services
Quantum
Murray

Other

Corporate

Total

NPC
Revenue

$

Cost of revenue

Expenses
Selling, general and
administrative
Amortization of intangible
assets
Depreciation
Income (loss) before the
undernoted
Income from equity
investment
Other income
Interest (income) expense
Loss on dilution of ownership
interest
Write-down of goodwill and
intangibles
Impairment of long-term
investment
Income tax expense- current
Income tax recovery– future
Loss from continuing
operations
Add back:
Interest (income) expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of Brompton
intangible asset (i)
Income tax expense – current
Income tax recovery– future
EBITDA

Expenditures for property,
plant and equipment
Total assets
Total goodwill
(i)

143,818

$ 85,534

11,622

$

58,181

242,175

109,698

61,496

-

483,172

22,746

35,855

52,788

34,120

24,038

-

169,547

10,079

20,642

30,841

26,231

13,238

6,808

107,839

$

294,963

$

$

-

$

652,719

6,268

6,326

7,122

6,829

-

35,180

323

1,474

5,970

2,960

596

127

11,450

19,037

28,384

43,137

36,313

20,663

6,935

154,469

3,709

7,471

9,651

310

43

-

-

1,471

-

330

-

-

-

-

-

330

309

9,118

336

1,486

30,021

40,966

(2,193)

3,375

(6,935)

15,078
1,824

-

-

-

-

-

845

845

77,516

15,063

25,283

14,711

12,786

85,940

231,299

-

-

-

-

29,000

29,000

-

19
(9,092)
$

94,036

8,635

(304)

$

Goodwill acquired (ii)

34,368

(92,790)

19
(2,518)
$

(5,359)

(304)
8,958

309
7,742

1,936
19
(9,092)

19
(2,518)

(91,273)
-

$

193

6
(1,151)
$

(23,605)

1,333
$

9,118
12,415

(3,217)

-

-

(628)

44
(13,663)

$ (7,819)

$ (123,113)

$ (271,259)

336
10,082

6
(1,151)
$

(18,573)

(1,607)

1,486
7,518

1,333
$

(6,822)
-

30,021
127

(1,607)
$

(422)
1,090

$

40,966
46,842

(628)

1,936
44
(13,663)

(93,593)

$ (195,134)

-

1,090

123

1,237

4,096

3,008

309

-

8,773

190,552
31,021

78,917
16,335

147,211
10,813

78,349
7,183

84,334
5,288

39,679
-

619,042
70,640

The amortization of the intangible asset related to the investment in Brompton is included in income from equity investment.

(ii) Discontinued operations previously part of the financial services segment are included in the corporate segment (refer to note 5).
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NEWPORT PARTNERS INCOME FUND
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of dollars, except per unit amounts)
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

23.

Capital management
The Fund’s objective is to maintain access to diverse and cost-effective sources of capital with which to
finance its operations, cash resources and investments made by it in the Operating Partnerships. The
Fund also provides working capital advances to the Operating Partnerships.
As at December 31, 2008, the Fund was not in compliance with certain covenants under the senior credit
facility. Subsequently, in July 2009, the Fund entered into a Forbearance Agreement with its Lenders. The
terms of the Forbearance Agreement includes positive and negative covenants that can be categorized as
externally imposed capital requirements, which the Fund was in compliance as at December 31, 2009.
As at December 31, 2009, total managed capital was $327,654 (2008 - $402,636) consisting of
unitholders equity of $21,019 (2008 - $39,953), convertible debentures of $156,136 (2008 - $152,683)
and long-term debt of $150,499 (2008 - $210,000).
For 2010 the Fund has set two priorities relating to capital management: restructure its balance sheet and
reduce debt.

24.

Non-monetary transactions
The receipt of consideration in the form of scrap materials was recorded as non-monetary transactions
measured at fair value using active market prices. During the year ended December 31, 2009, $7,212
(2008 - $20,459) of scrap materials was received as consideration for demolition services provided and is
recorded as revenue.

25.

Comparative figures
The comparative financial statements have been reclassified from statements previously presented to
conform to the presentation in the December 31, 2009 annual consolidated financial statements.

26.

Subsequent events
The unitholders of the Fund approved an Incentive Option Plan (the “Plan”) on November 30, 2009.
Pursuant to the Plan 7,100,590 units of the Fund have been listed and reserved for issuance upon the
exercise of the stock options granted.

On January 13, 2010, 7,000,000 options were granted to

employees and directors at an exercise price of $0.403 per unit with options vesting in 2010 through to
2013.
On August 4, 2009, the minority limited partner Gemma delivered to NPH an offer letter to pursuant to the
Shotgun Buy-Sell provision of the limited partnership agreement governing Gemma.

NPH elected to

accept the minority limited partner’s offer to sell its 20% interest in Gemma. The transaction closed on
January 4, 2010, at which time, the Fund paid $4,316 and its interest in Gemma increased to 100%. This
transaction will be accounted for using the purchase method.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of dollars, except per unit amounts)
Years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

On February 19, 2010, the Fund announced that a Second Amendment to the Forbearance Agreement had
been entered into with the Lenders. Under the terms of the Second Amendment, the requirement to repay
$35,000 by February 28, 2010 has been amended to a requirement to pay $18,500. On February 18,
2010 the Fund paid $20,000 from cash on hand, which included a $1,500 rescheduling fee.
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